East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
agenda
Date:

Tuesday 25 August 2020

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

via Video Conference

Membership:
C Jones (Chairman), N Rose (Vice-Chairman), D Bray, J Burton, J Gladwin, P Jones,
J MacBean, J Rush, M Titterington, J Waters, J Wertheim and N Southworth

Webcasting notice
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
being filmed.
You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s
published policy.
Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Legal & Democratic Service
Director at monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Public Speaking
If you have any queries concerning public speaking at Planning Committee meetings,
including registering your intention to speak, please speak to a member of the Planning
team – planning.csb@buckinghamshire.gov.uk 01494 732950.. Please refer to the Guide to
Public Speaking at Planning Committee here.

Agenda Item
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interest

3

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
To note the minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2020.

Page No

5-8

Applications to be determined
4

PL/19/4402/FA - Land to the rear of 104-110 Chartridge Lane,
Chesham, Buckinghamshire, HP5 2RG

9 - 22

Appendix A
Appendix B
5

PL/19/1409/FA - Garages Off Hearnes Meadow, Seer Green,
Beaconsfield, Buckinghamshire, HP9 2YJ

45 - 66

6

PL/19/4178/FA - The Nags Head Public House, London Road, Little
Kingshill, Buckinghamshire, HP16 0DG

67 - 88

7

PL/19/4463/HB - The Nags Head Public House, London Road, Little
Kingshill, Buckinghamshire, HP16 0DG

89 - 102

8

WITHDRAWN PL/20/0335/FA - The Swan Public House, Blackwell Hall
Lane, Ley Hill, Buckinghamshire, HP5 1UT

103 - 128

9

PL/20/1166/FA - Fir Tree Cottage, Monument Lane, Chalfont St Peter,
Buckinghamshire, SL9 0HY

129 - 140

10

PL/20/1214/VRC - 75 Lye Green Road, Chesham, Buckinghamshire,
HP5 3NB

141 - 156

11

Date and Time of the Next Meeting
Tuesday 22 September 2020 at 6.30 p.m.

If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support
in place.

For further information please contact: Leslie Ashton on 01895 837227, email
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Buckinghamshire Council

East Buckinghamshire Area
Planning Committee
Minutes
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE EAST BUCKINGHAMSHIRE AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON
TUESDAY 28 JULY 2020 VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE, COMMENCING AT 6.30 PM AND CONCLUDING AT
8.38 PM
MEMBERS PRESENT
C Jones (Chairman), N Rose (Vice-Chairman), D Bray, J Burton, J Gladwin, P Jones, J MacBean, J Rush,
M Titterington, J Waters, J Wertheim and N Southworth
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE
A Bacon and N Brown
Agenda Item
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor J MacBean declared a personal interest in application PL/19/4402/FA as some of
those who had made objections to the application were known to her but they were not close
associates.

3

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2020 were agreed as an accurate record.

4

PL/19/1734/FA - SPRINGFIELD ROAD INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, SPRINGFIELD ROAD, CHESHAM,
BUCKINGHAMSHIRE
Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide 34 residential units with associated landscaping and
infrastructure.
Notes:
 In addition to the consultation responses and representations noted in Appendix 1 of the
officer report, an objection had been received from residents of the Springfield Road Estate

Page 5









which objected to the applicant seeking support for the application by way of circulating
cards to residents, raised concerns around access to the site and further degradation of the
road, particularly with regard to construction vehicles and raised concern around parking
problems.
Since publication of the report, the Council’s Landscape Advisor had raised no objections
subject to the conditions outlined in the report being implemented. The Council’s
Renewable Energy Environmental Health Officer also raised no objection subject to
condition 16 in the report being implemented.
The Planning Officer advised that were the application to be approved, a number of
conditions would be re-worded to allow demolition on site to commence whilst further
details were submitted to the local planning authority for written approval and to allow a
phased development of the site. Condition 12 which required the written approval of
ecological enhancements would also be amended to require the implementation of those
approved enhancements in due course. The Planning Officer also proposed a change to the
wording of the recommendation to include amending the wording of the conditions and the
delegation to be to the Service Director for Planning and Environment.
Speaking as ward member: Councillor Noel Brown
Speaking on behalf of Chesham Town Council: Councillor Tony Franks
Speaking on behalf of the applicant: Mr Patrick Thomas

It was proposed by J Burton, seconded by J Rush and resolved:
That the application and wording of amended conditions be delegated to the Director of
Planning and Environment to approve subject to conditions and the satisfactory prior
completion of a Section 106 Planning Obligation Agreement relating to on site affordable
housing and necessary education contributions. If the Section 106 agreement cannot be
completed the application be refused for such reasons as considered appropriate.
Note: Councillor M Titterington left the meeting at 7.30 p.m. and took no part in the vote on the
above application.
5

PL/19/4402/FA - LAND TO THE REAR OF 104-110 CHARTRIDGE LANE, CHESHAM,
BUCKINGHAMSHIRE HP5 2RG
Proposal: Four new dwellings, garages and single storey rear extension to No. 108 with
associated works, including: demolition works to No. 108, provision of vehicular access, parking,
turning areas and landscaping.
Notes:
 Since publication of the officer report, additional drainage information had been submitted
by the applicant and had been made available on the council’s website. This information had
been reviewed by the lead local flood authority and the application was subsequently
amended by the applicant from an infiltration based approach to one connecting to the
surface water sewer network which would require discussions to be held between the
applicant and Thames Water. The lead local flood authority therefore requested further
information on this matter, although accepted that the application site location was in an
area at very low risk of surface water flooding and not proportionate to the scale of the
development compared to other sites and as such the planning officers opinion was that
were approval to be granted a condition could be imposed for a detailed drainage strategy
to be provided and approved in writing prior to the commencement of development.
 Speaking as ward member: Councillor Alan Bacon
 Speaking on behalf of the objectors: Mrs Sue Cross and Mrs Joyce Morgan
Page 6

It was proposed by D Bray, seconded by J MacBean and resolved:
That the application be deferred for consideration at a future meeting of the East
Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee to allow for the applicant to look at further
improvements which could be made including to the layout of the site, access and amenity
space and also for Officers to give further consideration to proposed conditions including precommencement conditions.
6

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting would take place on Tuesday 25 August 2020 at 6.30 p.m.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
DEFERRED APPLICATION
Application Number:

PL/19/4402/FA

Proposal:

Four new dwellings, garages and single storey rear extension to
No.108 with associated works, including; demolition works to
No.108, provision of vehicular access, parking, turning areas
and landscaping

Site Location:

Land to the rear of 104-110 Chartridge Lane
Chesham
Buckinghamshire
HP5 2RG

Applicant:

Dr Nick Lewis

Case Officer:

Melanie Beech

Ward affected:

Chiltern Ridges

Town Council:

Chesham

Valid date:

19 December 2019

Determination date:

28 August 2020

Recommendation:

Conditional Permission

1.0

Matters for consideration
1.1 Members will recall that this application was heard by the Planning Committee
at the meeting on 28th July 2020. The original case officer’s report is attached at
Appendix A.
1.2 The application was deferred so that the case officer could seek amendments to
the proposed development, particularly in relation to amenity space and bin
storage. In addition, some amendments to the conditions were suggested and
clarification was sought that the 4.8m wide access road could be achieved.

Page 9

1.3

An amended site plan has been submitted which is attached at Appendix B. The
revisions are as follows:
- Dwellings moved further forward to increase garden depths by approximately
1m
- Obscure glazing to side facing roof lights
- Increased bin storage areas at the collection point near the front of the site.

1.4

The following additional comments have been received from consultees:
Highway Authority
“Having assessed the amended site plan, I can confirm that the proposals are
still acceptable in highway terms and therefore my previous comments remain
unchanged.”
Waste Team
“The Waste Team acknowledge that the developer has increased provision for
bin storage at the front of the properties at the entrance to Chartridge Lane. The
waste receptacles will be collected from and returned to this location. The
householders will be responsible for bringing and returning their containers to
and from this communal collection point. Waste vehicles will not enter the site
to make collections. The Waste Team have no objections to these plans given
these conditions.”
The following additional comments have been received from neighbouring
properties:
94 Chartridge Lane (owner of land to the rear of the site):
“Following a discussion with the applicant Dr Nick Lewis regarding the planned
rear hedge, it was agreed that the developer will erect a 4ft chain link fence
along the boundary line with a green beech hedge within, be planted as soon as
is practicable. This was specifically chosen as it is both native and "horse-safe".
Therefore I can confirm that subject to the later completion of the above agreed
fence and hedge, the boundary issue has now been resolved to our satisfaction.”
112 Chartridge Lane:
Raises concern over the impact of the development (particularly plot 4) on the
adjacent eucalyptus tree in the neighbouring garden, as well as the impact the
tree may have on the new dwelling.
They would also like to retain the chain link fence and hedge between 110 and
112 Chartridge Lane, and the 6-foot privet hedge.

1.5

2.0

Evaluation
Amenity space
2.1 The garden depths now measure between 9m and 11m, and have widths of 14m
– 15m. As such, the garden areas provided are between 179sqm and 214sqm.
Policy H12 of the Local Plan states that “each new house should have a private

Page 10

2.2

2.3

garden area adequate for and appropriate to the size, design and amount of
living accommodation proposed”. The 15m garden depth is a “general standard
expected”. Exceptions to the general standard expected include “where the rear
site boundary abuts an open field or open countryside”. It does not specify that
these have to be accessible open spaces.
The private gardens are considered to provide adequate outdoor amenity space
which is appropriate to the size, design and amount of living accommodation
proposed.
Members queried at the previous Committee whether additional garden space
could be gained by utilising more of the rear gardens of the existing dwellings
along Chartridge Lane. However, this is not achievable due to the shape of the
site. The applicant does not own any of the land outside the red edge.

Bin storage and collection
2.4 The amended plan shows space for 6x wheelie bins, 3x food bins, and 3x
recycling boxes on each side of the access road. This is now adequate for
providing the standard suite of containers as per the Council’s waste policies.
Condition 17 still requires full details of the bin storage, and requires it to be
implemented in accordance with the approved details and thereafter
permanently retained.
2.5 With regard to waste collection, the Highway Authority have confirmed that
they would not adopt the access road, and the Waste Team have confirmed that
waste lorries would not enter the site. Whilst the concerns about waste lorries
waiting on Chartridge Lane are noted, it is not recommended that the
application be refused on this basis, as there are no objections from either the
Highway Authority or the Waste Team.
Access Road
2.6 Concern was raised at the previous Committee that the site is not wide enough
to accommodate the 4.8m wide access road. The applicant has confirmed that
the proposals are based on a topographical survey of the site and is therefore
confident that this can be achieved.
2.7 It is recommended, in response to Members concerns, that condition 5 is reworded so that the access road must be constructed prior to any other works
commencing. If the access road is not constructed in accordance with the
approved plans, there will be a breach of planning control.
Impact on neighbouring properties
2.8 The amended plan shows that all of the roof lights will be obscure glazed, in
order to protect the amenities of neighbouring properties. It is recommended
that an additional condition is imposed to require this.

Page 11

Boundary treatments
2.9 Much discussion was held at the previous Committee regarding the rear
boundary treatment and how this could impact the horses in the field beyond.
The amended plan shows that it is proposed to plant a new native hedge along
the rear boundary, which is considered to be visually the most appropriate for
this setting. However, the applicant has agreed with the owner of the adjacent
land to erect a 4ft chain link fence with a green beech tree hedge within.
Condition 16 requires full details of all boundary treatments to be submitted and
it appears that a satisfactory outcome can be achieved for all parties. For
reassurance, the applicant has agreed to include an informative on any
permission granted to say that any boundary treatment along the rear boundary
will be sensitive to the users of the adjacent field.
2.10 With regard to the other boundaries, it is noted that the existing hedge between
nos. 110 and 112 is shown on the amended plan. It is understood that there is
also a chain link fence along this boundary which the neighbour would like to
see retained. As stated above, condition 16 requires full details of all boundary
treatments to be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. This level of detail is usually dealt with by condition and the Council is
confident that satisfactory boundary treatments can be agreed.
Impact on trees
2.11 The comments from the neighbouring property at no. 112 Chartridge Lane are
noted, particularly with reference to their eucalyptus tree. The Council’s tree
officer has assessed the Arboricultural Impact Assessment submitted with the
application and raises no objection. However, condition 13 requires the tree and
hedge protection measures to be implemented in accordance with the details
set out in the report. This includes a temporary staked tree protection barrier
and site hoarding along the boundary between nos. 110 and 112 Chartridge
Lane. Although the owner of no.112 is keen to retain the eucalyptus in their
garden, it is noted that it is not covered by a Tree Preservation Order or is of
significant public amenity value.
3.0

Conclusion
3.1 It is considered that the amended plan and the suggested revisions to the
conditions, have addressed Members concerns to create an acceptable form of
development. As such, the recommendation is to grant conditional permission.

Recommendation: Conditional Permission
Subject to the following conditions:-

Page 12

1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to
enable the Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the
light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

2.

Before any construction work above ground commences, details of the materials to be
used for the external construction of the development hereby permitted, including
the surface materials for the new access road, parking and turning areas, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall only be carried out in the approved materials.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the development is not
detrimental to the character of the locality or create flooding issues, in accordance
with Policies GC1, GC10 and H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September
2007 and November 2011, and Policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District
(Adopted November 2011).

3.

Prior to the commencement of any works on site, detailed plans showing the existing
ground levels and the proposed slab and finished floor levels of the dwellings hereby
permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed datum point located outside
the application site. Thereafter the development shall not be constructed other than
as approved in relation to the fixed datum point.
Reason: To protect, as far as is possible, the character of the locality, in accordance
with Policies GC1 and H3 of The Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997
(including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and
November 2011 and Policy CS20 of The Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted
November 2011.

4.

No development shall take place, including works of demolition, until a Construction
Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority, in conjunction with the Highway Authority. The CTMP
shall include details of:
o the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
o loading and unloading of plant and materials
o storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
o operating hours
o wheel washing facilities

Page 13

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, convenience of highway users and to
protect the amenities of residents, in accordance with Policies TR2 and TR3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25
and CS26 of The Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.
5.

Prior to the commencement of any other development on the site, the new access
onto Chartridge Lane and the access road within the site shall be laid out in
accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the
highway, in accordance with Policies TR2 and TR3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan
Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated
September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25 and CS26 of The Core Strategy
for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.

6.

Within one month of the new access being brought into use, all other existing access
points not incorporated in the development hereby permitted shall be stopped up by
raising the existing dropped kerb and reinstating the footway and highway boundary
to the same line, level and detail as the adjoining footway and highway boundary.
Reason: To limit the number of access points along the site boundary for the safety
and convenience of the highway user, in accordance with Policies TR2 and TR3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25
and CS26 of The Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.

7.

The scheme for parking and manoeuvring indicated on the approved plans shall be
laid out prior to the initial occupation of the development hereby permitted and those
areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose. For the avoidance of doubt,
this includes the garages which must not be converted to any other use than for the
parking of vehicles.
Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise
danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway, in
accordance with Policies TR2, TR3, TR11 and TR16 of the Chiltern District Local Plan
Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated
September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25 and CS26 of The Core Strategy
for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.

8.

Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning permission (or
such other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority), the following components of a scheme to deal with the risks

Page 14

associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in
writing, by the local planning authority:
i) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:
o all previous uses
o potential contaminants associated with those uses
o a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
o potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.
ii) A site investigation scheme, based on (i) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.
This should include an assessment of the potential risks to: human health, property
(existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, pests, woodland and service lines
and pipes, adjoining land, ground waters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments.
iii) The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (ii) and, based on
these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the
remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken.
iv) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (iii) are complete and identifying any
requirements for longer term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and
arrangements for contingency action. Any changes to these components require
the express consent of the local planning authority. The scheme shall be
implemented as approved.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
9.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme and
prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority for written approval. The approved monitoring and
maintenance programme shall be implemented in accordance with the details
submitted.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors. The above must be undertaken in accordance with DEFRA and the

Page 15

Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination, CLR 11'.
10.

11.

Reporting of Unexpected Contamination: In the event that contamination is found at
any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously
identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority.
An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
requirements of condition 8, and where remediation is necessary a remediation
scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 8, which
is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority in accordance with condition 9.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
No works (other than demolition) shall begin until a surface water drainage scheme
for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently be
implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is
completed. The scheme shall also include:
o Water quality assessment demonstrating that the total pollution mitigation
index equals or exceeds the pollution hazard index; priority should be given to
above ground SuDS components
o Existing and proposed discharge rates and volumes
o Ground investigations including:
o Infiltration in accordance with BRE365
o Subject to infiltration being inviable, the applicant shall demonstrate that an
alternative means of surface water disposal is practicable subject to the
drainage hierarchy as outlined in paragraph 080 of the Planning Practice
Guidance.
o Drainage layout detailing the connectivity between the dwelling(s) and the
drainage component(s), showing pipe numbers, gradients and sizes, complete
together with storage volumes of all SuDS component(s)
o Calculations to demonstrate that the proposed drainage system can contain
up to the 1 in 30 storm event without flooding. Any onsite flooding between the
1 in 30 and the 1 in 100 plus climate change storm event should be safely
contained on site.

Page 16

o Construction details of all SuDS and drainage components
o Details of how and when the full drainage system will be maintained, this
should also include details of who will be responsible for the maintenance
o Details of proposed overland flood flow routes in the event of system
exceedance or failure, with demonstration of flow direction
Reason: The reason for this pre-construction condition is to ensure that a sustainable
drainage strategy has been agreed prior to construction in accordance with Paragraph
163 of the National Planning Policy Framework to ensure that there is a satisfactory
solution to managing flood risk.
12.

Prior to the occupation of the development a whole-life maintenance plan for the site
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan shall set out how and when to maintain the full drainage system (e.g. a
maintenance schedule for each drainage/SuDS component), with details of who is to
be responsible for carrying out the maintenance. The plan shall also include as as-built
drawings and/or photographic evidence of the drainage scheme carried out by a
suitably qualified person. The plan shall subsequently be implemented in accordance
with the approved details.
Reason: The reason for this prior occupation condition is to ensure that arrangements
have been arranged and agreed for the long term maintenance of the drainage system
as required under Paragraph 165 of the NPPF.

13.

The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the tree
and hedge protection measures described in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment
report dated 16/12/2019 Ref: 101 443 and those shown on the Tree Protection Plan
dated 12/16/2019 in Appendix 2 of the document by Arbol Euro Consulting. This shall
include the use of tree protection fencing and no-dig construction in accordance with
these documents.
Reason: To ensure that the existing established trees and hedgerows in and around
the site that are to be retained, including their roots, do not suffer significant damage
during building operations, in accordance with Policy GC4 of the Chiltern District Local
Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001)
Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.

14.

No development above ground level shall take place until there has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of landscaping at a
scale of not less than 1:500 which shall include indications of all existing trees and
hedgerows on the land, with details of those to be retained, those to be felled being
clearly specified, and full details of those to be planted. This shall include full details of
the locations, size and species of all trees, hedgerows and shrubs to be planted,

Page 17

removed and retained and should include the installation of bat and/or bird bricks
and/or boxes.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality and to
ensure biodiversity enhancements and to ensure a good quality of amenity for future
occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted, in accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and
H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and
policies CS20 and CS24 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November
2011).
15.

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality and to
ensure biodiversity enhancements and to ensure a good quality of amenity for future
occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted, in accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and
H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and
policies CS20 and CS24 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November
2011).

16.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, full details of the
proposed boundary treatments for the site shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved boundary treatments shall then
be erected/constructed prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted.
Reason: To protect, as far as possible, the character of the locality and the amenities
of the adjoining properties and approved dwellings, in accordance with policies GC1,
GC3 and H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including
alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011,
and policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

17.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, full details of the
proposed bin storage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The bin store shall then be implemented in accordance with the
approved details and thereafter permanently retained for bin storage.
Reason: To ensure that the development respects the character of the area, does not
appear cluttered with bins and to ensure that there is adequate bin storage for future

Page 18

occupiers of the development, in accordance with policies GC1, GC3 and H3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and policy CS20 of
the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).
18.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order)
no development falling within Classes A - E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the said Order
shall be erected, constructed, or placed within the application site unless planning
permission is first granted by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority can properly consider whether any
future proposals will be detrimental to the character of the locality or the amenities of
neighbouring properties, in accordance with policies GC1, GC3 and H3 of the Chiltern
District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May
2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and policy CS20 of the Core
Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

19.

Before the first occupation of each new dwelling hereby permitted, all of the roof
lights on that dwelling shall be fitted with obscured glazing and any part of the
windows that are less than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which they are
installed shall be non-opening. The windows shall be permanently retained in that
condition thereafter unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining property, in accordance
with policy GC3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997
(including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and
November 2011.

20.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans:
Received
Plan Reference
30 Jul 2020
TL-4328-19-2C
19 Dec 2019
TL-4328-19-3
26 May 2020 TL-4328-19-4B Plot 1
26 May 2020 TL-4328-19-4B Plot 4
26 May 2020 TL-4328-19-5B Plot 2
26 May 2020 TL-4328-19-5B Plot 3
21 May 2020 TL-4328-19-7A

INFORMATIVE(S)

Page 19

1.

The applicant is advised that the rear boundary treatment, details of which are
required under condition 16 of this permission, should be sensitive to users of the
adjacent field.

2.

The Council is the Charging Authority for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL
is a charge on development; it is tariff-based and enables local authorities to raise
funds to pay for infrastructure.
If you have received a CIL Liability Notice, this Notice will set out the further
requirements that need to be complied with.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice, the development may still be liable for
CIL. Before development is commenced, for further information please refer to the
following website https://www.chiltern.gov.uk/CIL-implementation or contact 01494
732792 for more information.

3.

Due to the proximity of the site to existing residential properties, the applicants'
attention is drawn to the Considerate Constructors Scheme initiative. This initiative
encourages contractors and construction companies to adopt a considerate and
respectful approach to construction works, so that neighbours are not unduly affected
by noise, smells, operational hours, vehicles parking at the site or making deliveries,
and general disruption caused by the works.
By signing up to the scheme, contractors and construction companies commit to being
considerate and good neighbours, as well as being clean, respectful, safe,
environmentally conscious, responsible and accountable. The Council highly
recommends the Considerate Constructors Scheme as a way of avoiding problems and
complaints from local residents. Further information on how to participate can be
found at www.ccscheme.org.uk.

4.

The applicant is advised that the off-site works will need to be constructed under a
Section 184 of the Highways Act legal agreement. This Small Works Agreement must
be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any
footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. A minimum
period of 3 weeks is required to process the agreement following the receipt by the
Highway Authority of a written request. Please contact Development Management at
the following address for information or apply online via Buckinghamshire County
Council's website at https://www.buckscc.gov.uk/services/transportandroads/licences-and-permits/apply-for-a-dropped-kerb/
Highways Development Management
6th Floor, County Hall
Walton Street, Aylesbury,
Buckinghamshire
HP20 1UY

Page 20

Telephone 01296 382416

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A
Agenda Item 5

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/19/4402/FA

Proposal:

Four new dwellings, garages and single storey rear extension
to No.108 with associated works, including; demolition works
to No.108, provision of vehicular access, parking, turning areas
and landscaping

Site Location:

Land to the rear of 104-110 Chartridge Lane
Chesham
Buckinghamshire
HP5 2RG

Applicant:

Dr Nick Lewis

Case Officer:

Melanie Beech

Ward affected:

Chiltern Ridges

Town Council:

Chesham

Valid date:

19 December 2019

Determination date:

31 July 2020

Recommendation:

Conditional Permission

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1

The application proposes four new dwellings to be located to the rear of nos.
104 – 110 Chartridge Lane, as well as works to no. 108 Chartridge Lane and a
new access road. The proposed development provides much needed housing in
a sustainable location on land which is outside the Green Belt and Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The design and layout of the proposed
houses are not considered to harm the character of the area or amenities of
neighbouring properties. There is adequate parking and amenity space within
the development, and in consultation with the Highway Authority, the additional
vehicular movements can safely be accommodated into the local highway
network.

Page 23
31

2.0

1.2

Cllr Bacon has requested that this application be determined by the Area
Committee if the officer's recommendation is to approve. His main areas of
concern relate to short back gardens of the new houses and the possible effect
on the equestrian business in the field below.

1.3

The officer recommendation is to grant conditional permission for this
application.

Description of Proposed Development
2.1

The application site is located on the South-western side of Chartridge Lane
within the built up area of Chesham. It currently consists of two detached
dwellings (nos. 106 and 108 Chartridge Lane) and the rear gardens of nos. 104 –
110 Chartridge Lane.

2.2

To either side of the site are residential gardens, and to the rear of the site are
open fields which are within the Green Belt and Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB). The site itself is not within any designated areas.

2.3

The application seeks planning permission for four two-storey detached
dwellings to be located to the rear of nos. 104 – 110 Chartridge Lane, as well as
part demolition and proposed single storey rear extension to no. 108 Chartridge
Lane. The proposed development includes a new access road between nos. 106
and 108, measuring 4.8m wide and parking/garages for the new dwellings.

2.4

Each new dwelling includes a lounge, dining room, kitchen and entrance hall on
the ground floor, and four bedrooms on the first floor. They are 12m deep by 9m
wide and have a cat slide roof with a maximum height of 7.4m. All are provided
with two external car parking spaces plus a garage.

2.5

The works to no. 108 Chartridge Lane include demolition of the existing garage
and kitchen, to make way for the new access road, and construction of a new
flat roof single storey rear extension to provide a new kitchen. This extends 4m
beyond the rear wall of the existing dining room and 1.8m beyond the rear wall
of the existing lounge. It has a width of 4.6m and height of 2.7m and includes a
roof lantern.

2.6

The proposed development also includes landscaping, and a bin storage area at
the front of the site.

2.7

The application is accompanied by:
a) A Planning Statement
b) A Design and Access Statement
c) A Tree Report
d) Drainage Information

2.8

Amended plans were received on 21st May 2020 which removed two additional
dwellings located between the existing dwellings on Chartridge Lane and those
now proposed. Further amended/additional plans were received on 26 th May
2020 for clarification purposes (one plan per new dwelling was requested).

Page 24
32

3.0

Relevant Planning History
3.1

Relevant planning history for the site:
104 Chartridge Lane:
CH/1979/1109/FA – Conditional Permission 19th July 1979 – Proposed kitchen,
garage and workshop and extension to ground floor
CH/1991/0241/FA – Conditional Permission 2nd April 1991 - Alterations, first
floor and single storey rear extensions.
106 Chartridge Lane:
CH/1984/0914/FA – Conditional Permission 22nd June 1984 - Construction of
front and side dormer window.
108 Chartridge Lane:
CH/2011/0091/FA – Conditional Permission 14th March 2011 - Single storey front
extension and replacement roof over existing single storey side projection.
110 Chartridge Lane:
CH/1996/0835/FA – Conditional Permission 22nd August 1996 - Alterations and
change of use of dwelling house to residential home for the elderly.
CH/1997/1034/FA – Conditional Permission 28th August 1997 - Variation to
condition 3 of planning permission 96/0835/CH in order to permit residential
accommodation and care for up to 10 people in need of care
CH/1999/0028/FA – Conditional Permission 18th February 1999 – Rear
conservatory
CH/2010/0491/FA – Conditional Permission 16th June 2010 – Retention of
detached outbuilding
CH/2010/1102/FA – Conditional Permission 17th September 2010 - Variation to
condition no. 3 of planning permission CH/1996/0835/FA in order to permit
residential accommodation and care for up to 11 people in need of care, and
single storey front extension
CH/2017/0900/FA – Conditional Permission 21st July 2017 - Replacement of
outbuilding (retrospective)
PL/18/3540/FA – Conditional Permission 1st July 2019 - Construction of single
storey building for use in conjunction with nursing home.

Page 25
33

4.0

Summary of Representations
4.1

5.0

A summary of consultation responses and representations made on the
application can be viewed in Appendix A.

Policy Considerations and Evaluation


National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019



National Design Guidance, October 2019



Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011



Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011



Draft Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan 2036



Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) - Adopted 21
February 2012



Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule

Principle and Location of Development
 Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy),
CS2 (Amount and distribution of residential development 2006-2026)
 Local Plan Saved Policies:
H3 (Provision of new dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt
(other than in accordance with Policies H2, H4 & H7)),
The site is located within the built up area of Chesham where in accordance with Local
Plan Policy H3, proposals for new dwellings are acceptable in principle subject to there
being no conflict with any other Local Plan policy. In addition, the spatial strategy for
Chiltern District, in accordance with Policies CS1 and CS2 of the Core Strategy, is to
focus development on land within existing settlements and in particular to the built up
areas of the main settlements which includes Chesham.
5.1

It is noted that the Council cannot currently demonstrate a 5-Year Housing Land
Supply and in accordance with paragraph 11 of the NPPF, this means that
planning permission for housing should be granted unless the policies in the
NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance (such as the Green
Belt or AONB) provide a clear reason for refusing the development, or any
adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the framework as a whole.

5.2

Furthermore, Paragraph 117 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should
promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses
while safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and

Page 26
34

healthy living conditions. Paragraph 122 goes onto say that planning decisions
should support development that makes efficient use of land, taking into
account the availability of land suitable for accommodating housing, and the
desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing character and setting
Raising the quality of place making and design
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
CS22 (Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
H11 (Distance between flank elevation(s) of a proposed multi-storey dwelling and
boundary of dwelling's curtilage throughout the district)
H13 (Extensions to dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt and in
Policy GB4 and GB5 areas in the Green Belt - general policy)
H15 (Design and siting of extensions throughout the district)
H16 (Distance between multi-storey or upper floor side and/or rear extensions and
boundary of dwelling curtilage throughout the district)
H17 (Distance between single storey side extensions and boundary of dwelling
curtilage throughout the district)
H20 (Ancillary residential buildings (domestic garages, workshops, etc.) in the built-up
areas excluded from the Green Belt)
5.3

The area is residential in nature, and characterised by detached dwellings
located at the front of long, narrow plots. The proposed dwellings would be
situated in shorter plots but this does not necessarily mean that they would
harm the character and appearance of the area. They would be viewed from
Chartridge Lane to the east and from Pednor Valley to the west. They are
located no further back than other development on this side of Chartridge Lane,
including The Chiltern Hills Academy, and properties on Little Court and
Westridge Close. The dwellings have been designed to have a relatively low
ridge and eaves height, and the cat slide roofs will help to maintain views from
Chartridge Lane across to the AONB and Green Belt beyond. Furthermore, the
new access road is akin to other access roads taken from Chartridge Lane and
therefore it is not considered that this element is harmful to the character of the
area.

5.4

There is sufficient space between and around the new dwellings so that they do
not appear cramped, but in order to retain this spacious character, it is
recommended that a condition be imposed to restrict Permitted Development.
In addition, conditions are recommended to require full details of materials,
landscaping and boundary treatments.

Page 27
35

Amenity of existing and future residents
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
H12 (Private residential garden areas throughout the district)
H13 (Extensions to dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt and in
Policy GB4 and GB5 areas in the Green Belt - general policy)
H14 (Safeguarding the amenities of neighbours in relation to extensions throughout
the district)
5.5

The proposed dwellings are at least 45m from any of the existing properties
along Chartridge Lane, which is sufficient to ensure that they do not appear
overbearing or cause a loss of privacy. There are no first floor windows in any of
the side elevations, and given the low eaves it would not be feasible to insert
any either. Furthermore, it is not considered that the roof lights would cause any
overlooking. As such, it is not considered necessary to impose any conditions
relating to additional windows or obscure glazing.

5.6

With regard to the amenity of future occupiers of the development, each
dwelling has a private rear garden measuring at least 120sqm in area. They are
between 8m and 10m deep. Members will be aware that Policy H12 of the Local
Plan requires each new house to have a private garden area which is adequate
for and appropriate to the size, design and amount of living accommodation
proposed. It suggests a “general expected standard” of a garden depth of at
least 15m except in certain circumstances. One of these circumstances is “where
adequate private amenity space exists within the application site or where the
rear site boundary abuts a public bridleway or footpath, an open field, open
countryside, a recreation or playing field”. In this case, the rear boundary does
abut an open field and it is considered that the amount of private garden space
is adequate for the amount of accommodation proposed.

5.7

Some local concern has been raised with regard to the impact that the proposed
development may have on the welfare of the horses occupying the land to the
rear of the site, and the associated equestrian business. Little information has
been provided regarding this business, but given the scale of the development
proposed and the conditions to require details of landscaping and boundary
treatments, it is not considered that this could be sustained as a reason for
refusal.

Transport matters and parking
Core Strategy Policies:
CS25 (Dealing with the impact of new development on the transport network)
CS26 (Requirements of new development)
Local Plan Saved Policies:

Page 28
36

TR2 (Highway aspects of planning applications throughout the district)
TR3 (Access and road layout throughout the district)
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
5.8

It is noted that many of the comments from local residents raise concern over
the additional traffic that will be generated by the development, particularly
given the amount of housing that has been built along Chartridge Lane over
recent years. They also raise concern over the access point causing danger to
pedestrians and other highway users, and consider there to be insufficient
parking spaces within the proposed development.

5.9

In this regard, the comments from the Highway Authority are a material
consideration in the assessment of the application. They assessed the original
plans (which proposed 6 dwellings) and concluded that the additional vehicular
movements could safely be accommodated into the local highway network. As
such, it must be concluded that a reduced scheme (of 4 dwellings) can also be
safely accommodated into the highway network. The Highway Authority have
also assessed the acceptability of the access and raise no objections.

5.10 With regard to parking, the Council’s standard is three spaces for dwellings with
a gross floor area in excess of 120sqm. These have been provided and the
Highway Authority have confirmed that there is sufficient space for vehicles to
park, manoeuvre and egress in a forward gear. In order to ensure that the
garages are retained for parking, a condition is recommended.
5.11 Based on the sustainable location of the site close to Chesham Town Centre, and
the comments from the Highway Authority, it is not considered that a reason for
refusal relating to parking or highway matters could be sustained.
Environmental issues
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
CS24 (Biodiversity)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
GC9 (Prevention of pollution throughout the district)
5.12 Some of the comments received in relation to this application have raised
concern over the potential light and noise pollution caused by the development.
It is noted that there is a large amount of glazing on the rear elevations of the
dwellings which may be visible from Pednor Valley and the AONB. However, it is
argued that this development would be no more intrusive in terms of light

Page 29
37

pollution than the existing developments along Chartridge Lane. Furthermore, it
is likely that occupiers of the new dwellings would close their curtains at night
which would mitigate the impacts of light pollution.
5.13 In terms of noise, it is understood that the concern relates to noise pollution
both during construction and subsequently from the increased activity at the
site. In this regard, developers will be encouraged to sign up to the “Considerate
Contractors Scheme”, and a condition is recommended to require a
Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) to include operating hours. As for
potential noise pollution once the development is complete and occupied, the
scale of development is not considered to be so vast that this would significantly
harm the amenities of neighbouring properties.
5.14 As previously stated, the site is currently occupied by residential garden land
and, in consultation with the Council’s Environmental Protection team, the most
recent use of the site is unlikely to give rise to anything more than diffuse
anthropogenic contamination. However, the development will increase the
number of receptors that could be exposed to contaminants of concern that
may be present in the underlying soils and therefore a conditions are
recommended to require a scheme to deal with any risks associated with
contaminated land.
5.15 As with any residential development, it is important to ensure that sufficient
storage space is provided for waste and recycling bins, and that waste collection
is safe and convenient. In this regard, each dwelling has their own bin storage,
and there is a holding area at the front of the access drive where bins can be
stored on collection day. The Council’s waste team have confirmed that the
collection point is agreeable and that waste collection lorries will not enter the
site. In order to ensure that the bin stores are of an adequate size and
appropriate design, a condition is recommended to require full details to be
provided.
5.16 An Aboricultural Impact Assessment with tree survey was submitted with the
application which has been reviewed by the Council’s Tree Officer. It is noted
that some trees were removed prior to the submission of the application, which
is regrettable. However, the Tree Officer has confirmed that the proposed
development would not result in the loss of any important trees and therefore
no objections are raised in this regard. It is however recommended that a
condition be imposed to ensure that the retained trees are protected and that a
landscaping scheme is submitted.
Flooding and drainage
Core Strategy Policy:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
Local Plan Saved Policy:
GC10 (Protection from flooding in the areas as defined on the Proposals Map and

Page 30
38

throughout the district)
5.17 The application site is not located within flood zones 2 or 3, or within any
designated Area of Critical Drainage. The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) have
confirmed that the site lies within an area of very low risk of surface water
flooding. However, they requested further information relating to surface water
management in the form of a comprehensive Drainage Strategy and
accompanying Drainage Statement. Additional information was submitted by
the applicant which was reviewed by the LLFA. The LLFA have advised the
applicant to demonstrate a viable method of surface water disposal, based on
site specific infiltration rate testing. Although the LLFA have requested this
information to be provided prior to determination of the application, it is
considered by the planning officer and Area Team Leader that a planning
condition would suffice in this instance. This is because the site is not within any
designated flood zone or critical drainage area, and the level of detail required
must be proportionate to the scale of development proposed. The Council has
not insisted on this level of detail at other sites of this scale and must be
consistent in its approach. A planning condition would meet the tests set out in
the NPPG of being necessary, relevant, enforceable, precise and reasonable. It
would also give certainty that the development would not be able to proceed
until a surface water drainage scheme had been agreed.
Affordable Housing and Housing Mix
 Core Strategy Policies:
CS8 (Affordable housing policy)
5.18 The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) states that there are specific
circumstances where contributions for affordable housing and tariff style
planning obligations should not be sought, including from small scale and selfbuild development, such as developments of 10 units or less, or which have a
gross floorspace of less than 1,000sqm. As the proposed development falls
below these thresholds and the NPPG carries greater weight than the Core
Strategy, no objections are raised to the scheme without a contribution to
affordable housing.
6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1

This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order
to weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a
conclusion on the application.

6.2

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should apply a
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Sustainable development
has three overarching objectives; economic, social and environmental. In this
case, the development provides an economic benefit in creating jobs in the

Page 31
39

construction industry and a social benefit in providing four homes in a location
which is close to services and facilities. In terms of the environmental objective,
it is preferable to build homes on land that is outside protected areas such as
the Green Belt or AONB, and also in locations such as this which are close to
services and therefore not so reliant on the private car.

7.0

6.3

The above assessment demonstrates that the development complies with the
relevant Development Plan policies and is therefore recommended for approval,
subject to conditions.

6.4

Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must
have due regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which
may result from socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not
considered that this proposal would disadvantage any sector of society to a
harmful extent].

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach
decision-taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments.

7.2

The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner
by offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating
applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their
application.

7.3

In this instance, the agent was made aware of concerns with the proposed
development and was invited to submit amended plans and additional
information. Based on these amendments, the application is recommended for
conditional permission. The application will be considered at the East Area
Planning Committee where the applicant/agent will be given the opportunity to
speak.

Recommendation: Conditional Permission
Subject to the following conditions:1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to
enable the Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the
light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

2.

Before any construction work above ground commences, details of the materials to be
used for the external construction of the development hereby permitted, including
the surface materials for the new access road, parking and turning areas, shall be

Page 32
40

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall only be carried out in the approved materials.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the development is not
detrimental to the character of the locality or create flooding issues, in accordance
with Policies GC1, GC10 and H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September
2007 and November 2011, and Policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District
(Adopted November 2011).
3.

Prior to the commencement of any works on site, detailed plans showing the existing
ground levels and the proposed slab and finished floor levels of the dwellings hereby
permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed datum point located outside
the application site. Thereafter the development shall not be constructed other than
as approved in relation to the fixed datum point.
Reason: To protect, as far as is possible, the character of the locality, in accordance
with Policies GC1 and H3 of The Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997
(including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and
November 2011 and Policy CS20 of The Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted
November 2011.

4.

No development shall take place, including works of demolition, until a Construction
Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority, in conjunction with the Highway Authority. The CTMP shall include
details of:
- the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
- loading and unloading of plant and materials
- storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
- operating hours
- wheel washing facilities
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, convenience of highway users and to
protect the amenities of residents, in accordance with Policies TR2 and TR3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25
and CS26 of The Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.

5.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, the access onto
Chartridge Lane shall be laid out in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the
highway, in accordance with Policies TR2 and TR3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan
Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated
September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25 and CS26 of The Core Strategy
for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.

6.

Within one month of the new access being brought into use, all other existing access
points not incorporated in the development hereby permitted shall be stopped up by

Page 33
41

raising the existing dropped kerb and reinstating the footway and highway boundary
to the same line, level and detail as the adjoining footway and highway boundary.
Reason: To limit the number of access points along the site boundary for the safety
and convenience of the highway user, in accordance with Policies TR2 and TR3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25
and CS26 of The Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.
7.

The scheme for parking and manoeuvring indicated on the approved plans shall be
laid out prior to the initial occupation of the development hereby permitted and those
areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose. For the avoidance of doubt,
this includes the garages which must not be converted to any other use than for the
parking of vehicles.
Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise
danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway, in
accordance with Policies TR2, TR3, TR11 and TR16 of the Chiltern District Local Plan
Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated
September 2007 and November 2011 and Policies CS25 and CS26 of The Core Strategy
for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011.

8.

Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning permission (or
such other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority), the following components of a scheme to deal with the risks
associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in
writing, by the local planning authority:
i) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:
- all previous uses
- potential contaminants associated with those uses
- a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
- potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.
ii) A site investigation scheme, based on (i) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.
This should include an assessment of the potential risks to: human health, property
(existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, pests, woodland and service lines and
pipes, adjoining land, ground waters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments.
iii) The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (ii) and, based on
these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the
remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken.
iv) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (iii) are complete and identifying any
requirements for longer term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and
arrangements for contingency action. Any changes to these components require the
express consent of the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as
approved.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,

Page 34
42

property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
9.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme and
prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance
programme shall be implemented.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors. The above must be undertaken in accordance with DEFRA and the
Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination, CLR 11'.

10.

Reporting of Unexpected Contamination: In the event that contamination is found at
any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously
identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority.
An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
requirements of condition 1, and where remediation is necessary a remediation
scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 1, which
is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority in accordance with condition 1.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

11.

No works (other than demolition) shall begin until a surface water drainage scheme
for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently be
implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is
completed. The scheme shall also include:
o Water quality assessment demonstrating that the total pollution mitigation index
equals or exceeds the pollution hazard index; priority should be given to above ground
SuDS components
- Existing and proposed discharge rates and volumes
- Ground investigations including:
- Infiltration in accordance with BRE365

Page 35
43

- Subject to infiltration being inviable, the applicant shall demonstrate that an
alternative means of surface water disposal is practicable subject to the drainage
hierarchy as outlined in paragraph 080 of the Planning Practice Guidance.
- Drainage layout detailing the connectivity between the dwelling(s) and the drainage
component(s), showing pipe numbers, gradients and sizes, complete together with
storage volumes of all SuDS component(s)
- Calculations to demonstrate that the proposed drainage system can contain up to
the 1 in 30 storm event without flooding. Any onsite flooding between the 1 in 30 and
the 1 in 100 plus climate change storm event should be safely contained on site.
- Construction details of all SuDS and drainage components
- Details of how and when the full drainage system will be maintained, this should also
include details of who will be responsible for the maintenance
- Details of proposed overland flood flow routes in the event of system exceedance or
failure, with demonstration of flow direction
Reason: The reason for this pre-construction condition is to ensure that a sustainable
drainage strategy has been agreed prior to construction in accordance with Paragraph
163 of the National Planning Policy Framework to ensure that there is a satisfactory
solution to managing flood risk.
12.

Prior to the occupation of the development a whole-life maintenance plan for the site
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan shall set out how and when to maintain the full drainage system (e.g. a
maintenance schedule for each drainage/SuDS component), with details of who is to
be responsible for carrying out the maintenance. The plan shall also include as as-built
drawings and/or photographic evidence of the drainage scheme carried out by a
suitably qualified person. The plan shall subsequently be implemented in accordance
with the approved details.
Reason: The reason for this prior occupation condition is to ensure that arrangements
have been arranged and agreed for the long term maintenance of the drainage system
as required under Paragraph 165 of the NPPF.

13.

The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the tree
and hedge protection measures described in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment
report dated 16/12/2019 Ref: 101 443 and those shown on the Tree Protection Plan
dated 12/16/2019 in Appendix 2 of the document by Arbol Euro Consulting. This shall
include the use of tree protection fencing and no-dig construction in accordance with
these documents.
Reason: To ensure that the existing established trees and hedgerows in and around
the site that are to be retained, including their roots, do not suffer significant damage
during building operations, in accordance with Policy GC4 of the Chiltern District Local
Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001)
Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.

14.

No development above ground level shall take place until there has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of landscaping at a scale of
not less than 1:500 which shall include indications of all existing trees and hedgerows
on the land, with details of those to be retained, those to be felled being clearly

Page 36
44

specified, and full details of those to be planted. This shall include full details of the
locations, size and species of all trees, hedgerows and shrubs to be planted, removed
and retained and should include the installation of bat and/or bird bricks and/or
boxes.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality and to
ensure biodiversity enhancements and to ensure a good quality of amenity for future
occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted, in accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and
H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and
policies CS20 and CS24 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November
2011).
15.

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality and to
ensure biodiversity enhancements and to ensure a good quality of amenity for future
occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted, in accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and
H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and
policies CS20 and CS24 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November
2011).

16.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, full details of the
proposed boundary treatments for the site shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved boundary treatments shall then
be erected/constructed prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted.
Reason: To protect, as far as possible, the character of the locality and the amenities
of the adjoining properties and approved dwellings, in accordance with policies GC1,
GC3 and H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including
alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011,
and policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

17.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, full details of the
proposed bin storage shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The bin store shall then be implemented in accordance with the approved
details and thereafter permanently retained for bin storage.
Reason: To ensure that the development respects the character of the area, does not
appear cluttered with bins and to ensure that there is adequate bin storage for future
occupiers of the development, in accordance with policies GC1, GC3 and H3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and policy CS20 of
the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

Page 37
45

18.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order)
no development falling within Classes A - E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the said Order
shall be erected, constructed, or placed within the application site unless planning
permission is first granted by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority can properly consider whether any
future proposals will be detrimental to the character of the locality or the amenities of
neighbouring properties, in accordance with policies GC1, GC3 and H3 of the Chiltern
District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May
2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and policy CS20 of the Core
Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

19.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
Received
21 May 2020
19 Dec 2019
26 May 2020
26 May 2020
26 May 2020
26 May 2020
21 May 2020

Plan Reference
TL-4328-19-2A
TL-4328-19-3
TL-4328-19-4B Plot 1
TL-4328-19-4B Plot 4
TL-4328-19-5B Plot 2
TL-4328-19-5B Plot 3
TL-4328-19-7A

INFORMATIVE(S)
1.

The Council is the Charging Authority for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL
is a charge on development; it is tariff-based and enables local authorities to raise
funds to pay for infrastructure.
If you have received a CIL Liability Notice, this Notice will set out the further
requirements that need to be complied with.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice, the development may still be liable for
CIL. Before development is commenced, for further information please refer to the
following website https://www.chiltern.gov.uk/CIL-implementation or contact 01494
732792 for more information.

2.

Due to the proximity of the site to existing residential properties, the applicants'
attention is drawn to the Considerate Constructors Scheme initiative. This initiative
encourages contractors and construction companies to adopt a considerate and
respectful approach to construction works, so that neighbours are not unduly affected
by noise, smells, operational hours, vehicles parking at the site or making deliveries,
and general disruption caused by the works.
By signing up to the scheme, contractors and construction companies commit to being
considerate and good neighbours, as well as being clean, respectful, safe,
environmentally conscious, responsible and accountable. The Council highly
recommends the Considerate Constructors Scheme as a way of avoiding problems and

Page 38
46

complaints from local residents. Further information on how to participate can be
found at www.ccscheme.org.uk.
3.

The applicant is advised that the off-site works will need to be constructed under a
Section 184 of the Highways Act legal agreement. This Small Works Agreement must
be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any
footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. A minimum
period of 3 weeks is required to process the agreement following the receipt by the
Highway Authority of a written request. Please contact Development Management at
the following address for information or apply online via Buckinghamshire County
Council's website at https://www.buckscc.gov.uk/services/transportandroads/licences-and-permits/apply-for-a-dropped-kerb/
Highways Development Management
6th Floor, County Hall
Walton Street, Aylesbury,
Buckinghamshire
HP20 1UY
Telephone 01296 382416

Page 39
47

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
PL/19/4402/FA
Councillor Comments
Councillor Bacon has requested that this application be determined by the Area Planning
Committee if the Officer’s recommendation is to approve. His main areas of concern relate
to short back gardens of the new houses and the possible effect on the equestrian business
in the field below.
Town Council Comments
“The Committee recommends REFUSAL of this application of the grounds of inadequate
access, poor vision splays and traffic concerns; being infill development; size and bulk and
being overdevelopment within the area.”
Consultation Responses
Building Control and Fire Fighting Access:
“I have no objections to this development”
Tree Officer:
“Although I regret the tree removal prior to the submission of the proposal, no further
important trees would be lost so I have no objections to the application provided there is
adequate protection for the retained trees.”
Strategic Environment Team:
Recommends conditions relating to contaminated land.
Waste Development Team:
The collection point is agreeable with the Waste Team, subject to the Council’s
requirements, but it must be large enough to accommodate the standard suite of
containers. The waste collection lorry will not enter the site and will not reverse down the
length of the access road to make collections.
Highway Authority:
Confirm that the additional vehicular movements can safely be accommodated into the
local highway network, that adequate visibility splays are achievable, and that there is
sufficient room within the site to park, manoeuvre and egress the site in a forward gear.
Therefore no objection subject to conditions.
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA):
“The LLFA objects to the proposed development due to insufficient information regarding
the proposed surface water drainage scheme.” However, if the Local Planning Authority is
minded to approve the application, conditions are recommended to provide a surface water
drainage scheme and a whole life maintenance plan.

Page 40
48

Representations
18 representations have been made on the application which are summarised below:
- Inadequate/dangerous access
- increased traffic causing danger to highway users
- Impact on air quality from increased traffic
- Inadequate parking
- Cumulative impact of development in Chartridge Lane, changing the character of the
whole area and adding to traffic problems
- Impact on adjacent AONB and Green Belt
- High density, proposed layout and new access road are not in keeping with the area
- Danger of setting a precedent for future tandem development
- Car dominated views for the new houses
- Landscaping would take years to mature
- Landscaping on the rear boundary would cast a shadow on the new rear gardens
- Drainage issues
- Insufficient garden sizes
- Suggest restricting conservatories and conversion of garages, and conditions relating to
windows to protect privacy
- Light and noise pollution
- Loss of privacy to existing homes
- Impact on wildlife, including horses on the adjacent land
- Impact on trees, including a eucalyptus in the rear garden of 112 Chartridge Lane
- Disturbance during construction.
- Inaccuracies on plans and inadequate neighbour consultation.

Page 41
49

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan PL/19/4402/FA

Do not scale – this map is indicative only
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 42
50

LEGEND:
C

H

A

R

110

T

R

I

D

G

Existing trees to be retained and
protected during the course of the
development to BS 5837:2012

E
L

108

A

N

E

106
104

Castanea Sativa (Sweet Chestnut)
Crataegus Monogyna (Common Hawthorn)
Tilia X Europaea (Common Lime)
Acer campestre (Field Maple)

N

Existing and proposed hedges
(all new hedges to be planted as
'instant hedging' of a native mix
6No. 240L Wheelie Bins
3No. 23L Food Caddy
3No. 55L Kerbside Recycling Box

2.4m x 45m
Vibility Splays

110

Location Plan 1:1250 @ A1

SHRUBS & GROUND COVER
Potentilla Fruiticosa
Cornus Alba
Cotoneaster Horizontallis
Symphoricarpas Albus
Vinca Variegata

Ordnance Survey © Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100020449

5m x 10m
Tarmac Entrance
No. 108

Existing
Hedge

Areas laid to grass
Parking for
No. 108
(3No. Spaces)

Bins

New Native
Screening
Hedge

Proposed
4.8m wide
Access Road

On site surface
water drainage

Bin Presentation
Area No. 2

Proposed Rooflights
(Obscured Glazing)

Private Rear
Garden to No. 108
Parking for
Plot 4
(3No. Spaces)

4

Proposed Rooflight
(Obscured Glazing)

Private Rear
Garden to Plot 4
(221 Sq.m. Private Area)

Parking for
No. 106
(3No. Spaces)

Proposed
4.8m wide
Access Road

Bins

1.0m

New Native
Hedge

Page 43

Proposed Rooflights
(Obscured Glazing)

No. 106

B(i)

Proposed
Size Three
Turning Head

Parking for
Plot 3
(3No. Spaces)

Proposed Rooflight
(Obscured Glazing)

3

6No. 240L Wheelie Bins
3No. 23L Food Caddy
3No. 55L Kerbside Recycling Box

Bins

Private Rear
Garden to No. 106

N E
L A

Private Rear
Garden to Plot 3
(179 Sq.m. Private Area)

104
2.0m
Parking for
Plot 2
(3No. Spaces)

Bins

G E
I D
T R
A R
C H

A

Bin Presentation
Area No. 1

N
Existing
Hedge

Bins

2
Existing
Hedge

Proposed Rooflight
(Obscured Glazing)

Private Rear
Garden to Plot 2
(188 Sq.m. Private Area)

Proposed Rooflights
(Obscured Glazing)

1.0m

B

New Native
Screening
Hedge

Parking for
Plot 1
(3No. Spaces)

1

New Native
Hedge

Proposed Rooflight
(Obscured Glazing)

Existing
Hedge
Proposed Rooflights
(Obscured Glazing)

Private Rear
Garden to Plot 1
(214 Sq.m. Private Area)

A(i)

Bins

Proposed Site Plan 1:200 @ A1

Existing
Hedge

0

10

20

30

40

50
Revision C
Revision B
Revision A

Anglia Design
architects . surveyors
mail@angliadesign.co.uk

LLP

www.angliadesign.co.uk

London Office: 30 Robin House, Newcourt Street, St Johns Wood, London NW8 7AD
tel: 020 7722 9558
fax: 0870 131 3804
Nor wich Office: 11 Charing Cross, Norwich, Norfolk , NR2 4AX
tel: 01603 666576
fax: 01603 764535

LAND AT AND TO THE REAR OF No. 104 to No. 110 CHARTRIDGE LANE, CHESHAM.
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

29.07.20
26.05.20
21.05.20

Planning Revisions
Planning Revisions
Planning Revisions

Proposed Residential Dwellings on Land at and
to the rear of No. 104 to No.110 Chartridge Lane
Chesham, Bucks, HP5 2RG.
For Dr. Nick Lewis
Date: Dec. 2019 Scale: 1:200, 1:1250 Dwg No. TL-4328-19-2C

Proposed Site Plan
C ANGLIA DESIGN LLP

DO NOT SCALE

Appendix B: Amended site plan received 30 July 2020

Page 44

Agenda Item 5

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/19/1409/FA

Proposal:

Demolition of existing garages and erection of 3
dwellinghouses with associated car parking and landscaping.

Site Location:

Garages Off Hearnes Meadow, Seer Green, Beaconsfield,
Buckinghamshire, HP9 2YJ

Applicant:

Paradigm Housing

Case Officer:

Lucy Wenzel

Ward affected:

Chalfont St Giles

Parish Council:

Seer Green

Valid date:

24 April 2019

Determination date:

17 September 2019

Extension of time:

28 August 2020

Recommendation:

Defer subject to legal agreement

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1 Permission is sought for the demolition of existing garages and the erection of
three dwellings with associated car parking and landscaping.
1.2 The application is before Committee as the Local Member Councillor Patel has
indicated that he would like the application heard before Committee should the
Officers’ recommendation be for approval.
1.3 The recommendation for the proposal is for approval; but is subject to the prior
completion of a Legal Agreement in relation to a financial contribution towards
Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation, as the site falls within the 5.6km
buffer of this important site. The applicant has agreed to the S106.

2.0

Description of Proposed Development

Page 45

2.1
2.2

2.3

2.4
2.5

Permission is sought for the demolition of existing garages and the erection of
three dwellings with associated car parking and landscaping.
Plot 1 is a detached dwelling measuring approximately 8.1 metres to the ridge
and 5 metres to the eaves. The maximum depth measured is 9.7 metres with the
width measuring to 6.9 metres.
Plots 2 and 3 are a semi-detached pair measuring approximately 8.2 metres to
the ridge and 5 metres to the eaves. The maximum depth of each dwelling is
measured at 9.6 metres with the width measuring to 5.3 metres creating a built
unit of width 10.5 metres.
All three dwellings are proposed to be constructed from brick with some level of
detailing above openings.
The application is accompanied by
a) Design and Access Statement
b) Parking Survey
c) Environmental Report

3.0

Relevant Planning History
3.1 No planning history found on our records.

4.0

Policy Considerations and Evaluation
•
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.
•
National Design Guidance, October 2019
•
Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:
•
Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.
•
Draft Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan 2036.
•
Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) - Adopted 21
February 2012
•
Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule
Principle and Location of Development
Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy),
CS2 (Amount and distribution of residential development 2006-2026),
Local Plan Saved Policies:
H3 (Provision of new dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt
(other than in accordance with Policies H2, H4 & H7)),
4.1

The site is located in the built up area of Seer Green where, in accordance with
Development Plan Policy H3, proposals for replacement dwellings are acceptable
in principle, provided the proposed development is compatible with the

Page 46

4.2

character of the area by respecting the general density, scale, siting, height and
character of buildings in the locality and the presence of trees, shrubs, lawns and
verges and the size, design and external appearance of the dwelling should be
compatible with existing dwellings.
In addition, Core Strategy Policy CS20 also states that the Council will require
that new development within the District is of a high standard of design which
reflects and respects the character of the surrounding area and those features
which contribute to local distinctiveness. All other relevant Development Plan
Policies should be complied with.

Raising the quality of place making and design
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
H11 (Distance between flank elevation(s) of a proposed multi-storey dwelling and
boundary of dwelling's curtilage throughout the district)
4.3

4.4

The two plots currently accommodate a number of garage blocks which are
standard in their design and form with hardstanding separating the spaces.
Surrounding these blocks are rows of terraced housing mixed with semidetached dwellings creating a level of uniformity to the street design. These
dwellings form natural constraints to development and create the two parcels of
land set to be developed. The proposed siting of the dwellings will follow the
linear pattern of existing development that exists around the site boundary. The
dwellings have been sensitively designed and placed within the site constraints
to ensure limited negative impacts to the existing street character. To ensure
that the dwellings enhance the area in terms of visual impact; design features,
forms and materials have been drawn from the surrounding locality. The
dwellings reflect existing designs and forms and as such subtly blend into the
locality without appearing at odds.
In relation to the dwellings themselves, they have been designed so as to fit
compactly and without constraint into either parcel of land and to be viewed as
a visual extension to the existing built form that surrounds the sites which as a
result sit appropriately in the context of the site. The plots therefore do not
appear visually cramped or confined and sit well within their respective plots.
The parcels of land will house a semi-detached pair (plots 2 and 3) and a
detached dwelling (plot 1) which are of a scale and form that reflects
neighbouring dwellings. Given this, when viewing the dwellings in the context of

Page 47

4.5

the locality, they have been sensitively designed so as not to damage existing
character levels and provide a visual enhancement to the area. The overall
design of the dwellings is a traditional hipped roof with both front and rear
gabled elements of two storeys in scale. The materials proposed are red brick
which maintains a traditional visual appearance but with modern elements
proposed such as large scaled window openings.
Overall, having consideration of the above assessment, the proposed dwellings
are considered to actively enhance the surrounding locality. They do not cause a
resultant detrimental impact to Hearnes Meadow and the scheme is as such
considered to be acceptable.

Amenity of existing and future residents
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
H14 (Safeguarding the amenities of neighbours)
H12 (Private residential garden areas throughout the district)
4.6

4.7

In terms of its impact upon residential amenities, there are a number of
neighbouring dwellings sited to the north and south of either site. However,
careful consideration has been given to ensure minimal impact is presented to
existing occupiers. The northern plot that will be developed, will sit to the rear
of gardens serving numbers 26 and 27 with the parking area sited to the rear of
numbers 24 and 25. The southern plot and parking area will sit to the east of
numbers 22a, 22b and 22c and to the south of number 23. Separation distances
to these neighbour dwellings are considered to be appropriate and do not
encroach negatively to these existing dwellings along Hearnes Meadow. First
floor windows are proposed on both the semi-detached pair and detached
dwelling but these are proposed to be obscurely glazed; a condition will be
attached to the permission to ensure that these windows are constructed with
obscure glazing; and they therefore do not pose negative impacts to
neighbouring dwellings. Overall, the dwellings proposed are considered to
respect separation distances to neighbouring dwellings ensuring that they don’t
appear as visually dominant and intrusive and therefore are not deemed to
present negative implications to existing occupiers of dwellings along Hearnes
Meadow.
In terms of amenities for future occupiers, each dwelling has been designed with
a private rear garden which provides an area of private outdoor space for
residents. Policy H12 states that garden depths should be adequate for and
appropriate to the size, design and amount of living accommodation proposed.
In line with this, the general standard depth expected is 15 metres. Where
average garden depths in the vicinity of the development are significantly more

Page 48

4.8

or less than 15 metres then the proposed garden depth should reflect this. From
assessing the site plan, the garden depths are significantly less than 15 metres
but this reflects a number of neighbouring dwellings in the locality and there
remains to be adequate rear garden provision that is appropriate to and
adequate for the scale of the dwellings. Therefore, no concerns are raised having
regard to Policy H12.
In relation to bin storage, no specific details have been mentioned in relation to
scale and design but it is mentioned that bin storage is provided for each
individual dwelling which ensures that there is adequate and appropriate bin
storage for each dwelling. A condition will be attached to the permission to
submit details of the bin storage units to ensure that these are appropriate in
scale and design. The Council’s Waste Officer has raised no objections to the
proposal and states that the bins serving the three dwellings shall be presented
at the junction that the private drive meets with Hearnes Meadow.

Transport matters and parking
Local Plan Saved Policies:
TR2 (Highway aspects of planning applications throughout the district)
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the district)
TR12 (Relaxation of parking standards throughout the district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
4.9

In order to serve the proposed three dwellings, the existing access drive leading
to replacement dwelling, a new access point is proposed which will feed onto
Monument Lane and therefore an assessment is required to ensure that the
adjacent highway can safely accommodate associated vehicular movements. The
Highways Authority have stated that in line with the Manual for Streets
Guidance, visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m would be required; however, these
can be achieved at the right hand exist but not along the left. Whilst this is
noted, a visibility splay of 34m can be accommodated. Although this is a noted
shortfall, this is not a substantive reason for a refusal that could be sustained
and upheld at appeal. Therefore, subject to conditions ensuring the creation of
these visibility splays no concerns are raised.
4.10 Each dwelling is provided with two off road parking spaces; with two spaces
sited to the west of plot 1 and to the south of plots 2 and 3. These spaces are
positioned as such to ensure adequate manoeuvrability for vehicles.
Additionally, pedestrian access is acceptable into the site and provides a
sustainable option for future residents given the close proximity of the village
centre.

Page 49

Trees
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
CS24 (Biodiversity)
4.11 A number of amended plans were received which altered the level of vegetation
retention on site; specifically, around the boundaries of each plot. Along the
access drive to both sites, existing tree canopies are to be reduced in scale with
some tree removal being proposed. However, a large level of the existing trees
are set to be retained. With this, root protection zones are proposed to ensure
provide protection throughout the construction process. The Council’s Tree
Officer overall raises no objection and welcomes the level of tree retention.
Burnham Beeches
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring development is sustainable)
CS24 (Biodiversity)
Emerging Local Plan Policies:
NP3 (Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation)
4.12 Under new guidance from Natural England; a Habitats Regulations Assessment
(HRA) is required should development proposing new dwellings be located
within 5.6km from Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation (SAC). In
addition to this, a financial contribution needs to be sought by securing a S106
to go towards the Burnham Beeches Access Management Scheme to mitigate
against the likely significant effect that new development will bring to Burnham
Beeches SAC. The applicant has agreed to enter into a S106 agreement along
with a HRA.
5.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
5.1 This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order
to weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a
conclusion on the application.
5.2 In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. In addition, Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the
Town and Country Planning Act relating to the determination of planning
applications and states that in dealing with planning applications, the authority
shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,

Page 50

5.3
5.4

6.0

b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the
application (such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations
As set out above it is considered that, the proposed development would accord
with the development plan policies.
Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must
have due regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which
may result from socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not
considered that this proposal would disadvantage any sector of society to a
harmful extent.

Working with the applicant / agent
6.1 In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach
decision-taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments.
6.2 The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner
by offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating
applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their
application.
6.3 In this instance, the Officers requested additional information and this was
submitted along with amended plans.

Recommendation: Application PL/19/1409/FA be delegated to the Director of Planning,
Growth & Sustainability to approve subject to conditions and the satisfactory prior
completion of a Section 106 planning obligation agreement relating to the Burnham
Beeches Access Management Scheme. If the Section 106 Agreement cannot be completed
the application be refused for such reasons as considered appropriate.
Subject to the following conditions:1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to
enable the Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the
light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

2.

Before any construction work commences above ground level, named types, or
samples of the facing materials and roofing materials to be used for the external

Page 51

construction of the development hereby permitted shall be made available to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the development is not
detrimental to the character of the locality.
3.

Prior to the commencement of any works on site, detailed plans, including cross
section as appropriate, showing the existing ground levels and the proposed slab and
finished floor levels of the dwelling hereby permitted shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be shown in
relation to a fixed datum point normally located outside the application site.
Thereafter the development shall not be constructed other than as approved in
relation to the fixed datum point.
Reason: To protect, as far as is possible, the character of the locality and the amenities
of neighbouring properties.

4.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order,
with or without modification), no additional windows shall be inserted or constructed
at any time at first floor level or above in either of the flank elevations of the
dwellings.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining properties.

5.

No other part of the development shall be occupied until the existing means of access
has been altered in accordance with the approved drawing (Ref L4287/003L) and
constructed in accordance with Buckinghamshire County Council's guide note
"Commercial Vehicular Access Within Highway Limits" 2013.
Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the
highway and of the development.

6.

Prior to occupation of the development, space shall be laid out within the site for
parking for cars, loading and manoeuvring, in accordance with the approved plans (Ref
L4287/003L). This area shall be permanently maintained for this purpose. Should Plot
1 be completed prior to Plots 2 and 3 and vice versa; these individual plots can be
occupied subject to space being laid out for parking, loading and manoeuvring cars
for.
Reason: To enable vehicles to drop off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise
danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway.

7.

Reporting of Unexpected Contamination: In the event that contamination is found at
any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously
identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority.

Page 52

An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken, and where remediation is
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in
the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
8.

No development shall take place until a Tree Protection Plan including full details of all
surface treatments has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This plan shall clearly show the trees and hedges to be retained
and those to be removed, along with the positions of tree protection fencing and any
other appropriate tree protection measures, such as no-dig construction. Before any
other site works commence on the development hereby permitted this tree
protection fencing shall be erected around all the trees and hedges to be retained in
accordance with both this plan and British Standard 5837:2012. The fencing shall then
be retained in these positions until the development is completed. Within these
enclosed areas there shall be no construction works, no storage of materials, no fires
and no excavation or changes to ground levels. These protection measures shall then
be implemented in accordance with the details in the approved plan.
Reason: To ensure that the existing established trees and hedgerows within and
around the site that are proposed to be retained are safeguarded during building
operations, in accordance with Policy GC4 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated
September 2007 and November 2011.

9.

No development above ground level shall take place until there has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of landscaping at a scale of
not less than 1:500 which shall include indications of all existing trees and hedgerows
on the land, with details of those to be retained, those to be felled being clearly
specified, and full details of those to be planted. This shall include full details of the
locations, size and species of all trees, hedgerows and shrubs to be planted, removed
and retained and should include the installation of bat and/or bird bricks and/or
boxes.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality and to
ensure biodiversity enhancements and to ensure a good quality of amenity for future
occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted, in accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and
H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations

Page 53

adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and
policies CS20 and CS24 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November
2011).
10.

Prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted, full details of the bin
storage area including the size, appearance and means of enclosure shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The bin storage area shall
only be carried out in line with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure that adequate provision for the storage of waste is made for future
occupiers of the development and to ensure that the bin storage area does not appear
out of keeping with the development scheme in accordance with

11.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans:
Received
24.04.2019
24.04.2019
24.04.2019
24.04.2019
18.12.2019
03.03.2020
03.03.2020

Plan Reference
006 PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS PLOT 002 003
005 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 001
004 PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS PLOT 001
002 SITE CONSTRAINTS PLAN
AMENDED L4287 001B SITE LOCATION PLAN
AMENDED 007A PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOT 002 003
AMENDED 003L PROPOSED SITE PLAN

INFORMATIVE(S)
1.

The applicant is advised that the off-site works will need to be constructed under a
Section 184 of the Highways Act legal agreement. This Small Works Agreement must
be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any
footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. A minimum
period of 3 weeks is required to process the agreement following the receipt by the
Highway Authority of a written request. Please contact Development Management at
the following address for information or apply online via Buckinghamshire County
Council's website at www.buckscc.gov.uk/services/transport-androads/highwaysdevelopment-management/apply-online/section-184-licence/
Highways Development Management
6th Floor, County Hall
Walton Street, Aylesbury,
Buckinghamshire

Page 54

HP20 1UY
Telephone 01296 382416
Email: highwaysdm@buckinghamshire.gov.uk
2.

It is an offence under S151 of the Highways Act 1980 for vehicles leaving the
development site to carry mud onto the public highway. Facilities should therefore be
provided and used on the development site for cleaning the wheels of vehicles before
they leave the site.

3.

No vehicles associated with the building operations on the development site shall be
parked on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction. Any such wilful
obstruction is an offence under S137 of the Highways Act 1980.

4.

The Council is the Charging Authority for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL
is a charge on development; it is tariff-based and enables local authorities to raise
funds to pay for infrastructure.
If you have received a CIL Liability Notice, this Notice will set out the further
requirements that need to be complied with.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice, the development may still be liable for
CIL. Before development is commenced, for further information please refer to the
following website https://www.chiltern.gov.uk/CIL-implementation or contact 01494
732792 for more information.

Page 55

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Councillor Comments
Councillor Patel has called the application forward to Planning Committee should the
Officers recommendation be for conditional permission.
Parish Council Comments
Received on the 6th June 2019
“While we have no objection in principle to the application, there are a number of
significant matters of detail regarding, in particular, the loss of mature trees and car
parking.”
Received on the 14th July 2020
“I am writing to you on behalf of Seer Green Parish Council to express our concern at
various aspects of the recently-uploaded Amended Parking Survey carried out around the
site of the proposed erection of three houses by Paradigm Housing (see reference above).
The Amended Parking Survey was conducted between Wednesday 27th and Thursday 28th
May 2020, in the middle of the Coronavirus lockdown when the traffic movement in the
village of Seer Green was almost non-existent. The survey appears to be counting street
metreage (where there are no yellow lines) as available parking spaces with no regard
whatsoever to the practicalities of parking, ie: if both sides of the road were used for
parking, as their survey seems to suggest, there would be no room for traffic flow.
Given the arguments above, the survey would appear to give a completely false picture of
parking availability within the village and casts doubt on the validity of the Survey itself.”

Consultation Responses
Highways Officer:
Received on the 31st May 2019
“I am preparing a response for the above application, as a loss of garaging is expected there
is a potential for displaced on-street parking. Therefore it is expected that adequate parking
is provide within the application site to accommodate this loss. Alternatively the applicant
would need to demonstrate with evidence that there is adequate capacity to accommodate
any displaced parking on-street without there being a highway safety concerns. This would
be through parking beat surveys for the surrounding highway and a parking accumulation
exercise for the existing garages.
It is our view that the level of parking required to replace the garages should be based upon
the lawful use of the site (and therefore the number of existing garages on site); however
this can be relaxed if sufficient evidence is submitted showing the level of garage occupancy
(by car) is lower, along with the parking beat surveys noted above.
The information required above is not within the current application information, could you
please request the applicant to provide this information. Once I am in receipt of these, I will
then be in a position to provide you with my comments regarding the proposals.”

Page 56

Received on the 28th July 2020
“The site is accessed via Hearnes Meadow which is an unclassified residential no through
road subject to 30 mph speed limit. Currently, the site comprises 19 single garages. The
application seeks planning permission to demolish the garages and erect three dwellings
and widen the existing access to serve the development. To be clear, when assessing this
site, the current level of use is not a material consideration. The Highway Authority must, in
all matters, consider the maximum levels of movement and occupation associated with its
existing lawful use. This would then be used as an assessment against the proposals as
presented by the applicant.
When considering trip generation, there are no residential garage courts in the TRICS
database; however, for the purpose of the assessment of garage sites the Highway
Authority has found that the following assumptions are a good estimation; the peak hour
trip rate is be deemed to be the same as the peak hour residential trip rate (each garage
representing one dwelling), but the daily trip rate is deemed to be half the residential trip
rate. This assumes that, when in full occupancy, around half the garages would generate a
peak hour trip but across the day they would generate fewer trips than a stand-alone
dwelling. Based on these assumptions I would expect the proposed development to have a
lower trip generation potential (18 two way trips*) when compared with that of the
historical/lawful use of the site (approximately 50 two way trips**). Therefore, I would not
regard the development to result in an intensification of the site.
As the access is located at the southern end of Hearne’s Meadow, the Highway Authority
would expect the access to achieve adequate visibility splays of 2.4m x 43m to the north, in
line with current guidance contained within Manual for Streets. From the submitted plans, I
am satisfied the required visibility splay can be achieved within the publicly maintained
highway. I note that the loop nature of Hearnes Meadow does not have any features that
would restrict visibility to the right as vehicles egress from the site.
From the submitted plans, it appears that the existing access is to be widened in excess of
4.8 metres. I am satisfied that the proposed width would allow for simultaneous two-way
vehicular movements and is appropriate to serve the development. In terms of proposed
parking provision, I note that six parking spaces are proposed for the new dwellings with an
additional 3 parking spaces allocated to the existing dwellings which are accessed through
the site. Whilst I trust the Local Planning Authority will comment on the adequacy of the
parking provision, I can confirm that the parking spaces are of adequate dimensions and
there is sufficient hardstanding within the site for vehicles to manoeuvre and egress in a
forward gear.
With respect to the parking survey, I write further to the email sent by the Highway
Authority dated the 31st May 2019 which requested the submission of a parking survey
before comments could be submitted. Since my colleague’s last correspondence, the
applicant has submitted information in order to demonstrate that the development will not
lead to displaced parking to the detriment of highway safety and convenience.
The submitted parking beat survey was carried out on Wednesday 27th and Thursday 28th
May at 00:30 which is in accordance with the Lambeth Transport Parking Survey

Page 57

Methodology. Whilst I acknowledge this was during the current COVID-19 pandemic, I do
not consider the lockdown to have a significant effect on levels of parking within the area,
as it is more likely that residents would have stayed at home. Therefore, I am satisfied with
the date and timings of the parking survey. However, a map showing the location of the
extent of the survey or photographic evidence has not been provided. Whilst this is not
ideal, I have made the assumption that the surveys were carried out on the entirety of the
roads identified in the document and, whilst preferable, photographic evidence is not
compulsory.
Notwithstanding the above, having assessed the submitted parking survey, I have concerns
over some roads surveyed due to their distance from the site and the supposed level of
parking available. In accordance with Lambeth Methodology, the parking survey should
cover where residents, or in this case current garage renters, would be most likely to park
which is usually within 200m of the site. On this basis and having carried out a site visit, I
consider that Orchard Road and Manor Farm Way are not located in close proximity to the
development and therefore are not a viable solution for displaced parking. As such I have
not included these roads in my assessment of available parking.
Similarly, whilst the first part of Howard Road and Howard Crescent may be possible
locations for displaced parking, it is not appropriate to consider the entirety of the roads
due to their distance from the site. As a map has not been shown for the location of the
occupied parking spaces along both of these roads, as suggested within the Lambeth
Methodology, I am not able to determine whether the available parking spaces are distant
from the site, therefore I have discounted these roads from my assessment.
Hearnes Close has been stated to have a total length of 80m which constitutes 16 parking
spaces, with only 3 and 4 occupied on the 27th and 28th May respectively. However, having
carried out my own assessment, only 30m is available for the safe parking of vehicles in
Hearnes Close which constitutes 6 parking spaces. As such, I do not consider Hearnes Close
has sufficient capacity to accommodate a large number of additional vehicles.
Whilst it is noted that Chalfont Road has a number of unrestricted parking spaces, only a
small number are in the vicinity of Hearnes Meadow which is where residents would be
most likely to park. In addition, as it is a ‘C’ class road and the main route through Seer
Green, I would consider additional parking in this location to prevent the free-flow of traffic
and could cause a detriment to highway safety and convenience. Therefore, I have
discounted this road from my assessment.
In light of the above, the road from the survey which I consider to be appropriate and which
I will base my assessment on is Hearnes Meadow; I am in agreement with the assessment of
the space along the road that could be used for parking. The parking survey suggests that
the road had 21 and 19 spaces unoccupied on the evening of the 27th and 28th May which
equates to 53% and 58% respectively which demonstrates that the road has moderate
capacity for additional vehicles.
I note within the submitted Design and Access statement that a number of licensees of the
garages do not live within the vicinity of the site so are unlikely to use their garage as a

Page 58

parking space and more likely for storage purposes. In addition, the stated internal
dimensions of the garages are too small to fit a modern car, in line with current parking
standards, which increases the likelihood that the majority of the garages are used for
storage purposes. Following a site visit, I have confirmed that the number of existing
dwellings on Hearnes Meadow with access to off-street parking as shown within Appendix 1
is correct. In light of this information and the amount of available parking on Hearnes
Meadow, I am satisfied that the demolition of these garages would not result in displaced
parking to the detriment of highway safety and convenience.
Mindful of the above, the Highway Authority has no objection to the proposed
development, subject to conditions.”
Tree Officer:
Received on the 3rd June 2019
“A tree survey of the site appears to have been carried out but has not been submitted and
only a brief summary is shown on the Proposed Site Plan. The vegetation around the
garages appears to have been largely neglected for many years.
The Proposed Site Plan shows that for Plot 1 group G5 would be removed and that G4 would
be “trimmed/removed”. Both of these groups of trees appear to have been parts of an old
field hedge adjacent to the public footpath. However they have been neglected for many
years and have grown up to heights of about 12m. The species present include hawthorn,
hazel and elm. The elms have now reached a size where they are likely to become infected
by Dutch Elm Disease within a few years and the largest tree is already showing some signs
of die-back at the top. Old hedgerows are important for biodiversity and the loss of these
sections would be unfortunate but individually the trees are not high quality specimens.
Plots 2 and 3 would also require some tree loss. This includes G1, a small remnant of
hedgerow that includes some hawthorn and elder about 5m in height but also a cypress
about 10m in height. G2, a small clump of hazel and holly of little importance is also shown
for removal. H1 is a cypress hedge owned by the adjacent property that would be retained.
A hawthorn about 5m in height at the end of G3 would be lost for Plot 3 but the rest of the
hedge is shown to be retained.
Overall none of the trees proposed for removal is a high quality specimen so I would not
object to the application but I would regret the loss of the old hedgerow by the public
footpath in G4 and G5.”
Received on the 5th August 2019
“A revised Proposed Site Plan has been submitted that shows a section of pavement
adjacent to the front of 23 Heanes Meadow.
It also shows the boundary of Plot 1 with the public footpath set back a little from the
footpath in order to retain a footpath width of 2.8 metres. It is possible that this might allow
the retention of a small part of the existing hedgerow in G5 by the public footpath but the
proposal is not clear and there would be little available space for vegetation so it is likely

Page 59

that the hedgerow would still be removed. As stated previously I would regret the loss of
the old hedgerow by the public footpath in G4 and G5.”
Received on the 15th January 2020
“Some further revised plans have now been submitted including a revised Proposed Site
Plan Rev J, which shows some amendments to the site boundary and to the tree retention
proposals. This states: “Refer to tree survey report for schedule of trees and their recorded
condition” but this has not been submitted.
The boundary of Plot 1 has been amended and now seems to show part, but not all, of the
old field hedge adjacent to the public footpath outside the application site allowing the
retention of part of the hedgerow. Part of G4 is now shown to be retained with some
trimming but the part at the north-eastern end, partially outside the application site
appears to be removed for no obvious reason.
The parking spaces for Plot 1 have been moved away from the hedgerow allowing the
retention of part of G5. Three additional parking spaces are now shown within the garden of
No 22c. In Plot 3 G2 and the cypress hedge H1 are now shown to be retained.
Overall the revised plans show some additional tree retention and none of the trees
proposed for removal is a high quality specimen. Consequently, I would not object to the
application but I would still regret the loss of the parts of the old hedgerow by the public
footpath in G4 and G5 shown for removal and I would like to see some restoration work or
replanting to maintain a continuous hedgerow adjacent to the public footpath.”
Received on the 10th May 2020
“There are now further revised plans including a revised Proposed Site Plan Rev L. This
shows a revision to the red edge of the application site around Plots 2 and 3. The area
behind the existing block of garages has now been excluded from the application site and
the vegetation in this area is now shown to be retained. In addition, the two houses and the
parking spaces have been moved about a metre away from the new boundary towards the
existing dwellings in Hearnes Meadow.
Some additional vegetation in the old field hedge by the public footpath adjacent to Plot 1
in G4 and G5 is now shown to be retained but the part at the north-eastern end, partially
outside the application site appears to be still shown for removal for no obvious reason. The
area on the footpath side of the proposed 1.8m close boarded fence is now shown as
“Retained vegetation (tree canopies and existing hedgerow) with new infill hedges as
required”, which suggests that there would be infill planting along the whole length of the
hedgerow. The revised plan also shows some “Low Level/Low Maintenance landscaping”
along the edges of the proposed access and around the proposed parking spaces.
Overall the revised plans show some additional tree retention and landscape planting.
Consequently, I would not object to the application but I would still regret the loss of the
parts of the old hedgerow by the public footpath in G4 and G5 shown for removal although
it now appears that there would be some restoration work or replanting to maintain a
continuous hedgerow adjacent to the public footpath.”

Page 60

Strategic Access Officer:
Received on the 20th June 2019
“Footpath Footpath 16 Seer Green Parish (SEG/16/1) passes from the eastern side of Seer
Green village in a north-easterly direction to Newbarn Lane at Threehouseholds.
I visited the site twice: at 3.15pm on 28th May and 11am on 19th June 2019 where the path
was respectively busy with school children and dog walkers. With reference to my letter of
12th June 2019, I have checked the two historic diversion orders relating to this footpath
and neither are relevant to the section adjoining the proposed development. I have
nonetheless checked a number of historic plans indicating a consistent north-western
boundary for the footpath.
With no legally recorded width one has to fall back on ‘the width the pubic have become
accustomed to using’. On returning to site I’ve measured from the adjoining (south-east
side) close-boarded fence to the centre of the mature trees on the opposite (development)
side and conclude the footpath width is wider than that allowed by the south-eastern side
garden fence for Plot 001 on the Proposed Site Plan.
While there is one pinch-point measuring 2.2m at one tree, the impression looking along the
‘tunnel’ created by the adjoining trees is that, generally, 2.8m is available between
aforementioned fence and the centre of each mature tree – these are shown on the
Proposed Site Plan shaded red and listed for removal. The width of highways are measured
to the centre of hedges and trees, for example, the centre of the larger tree marked G5
forms the footpath boundary, together with the northern most tree marked G4.
I am therefore concerned the footpath amenity will be diminished should the existing plans
be implemented. You will recall in my previous correspondence the plans narrowed the
width down to 1.35m and 1.67m, which is less than that currently available. This letter
supersedes my previous comment suggesting 2m would be acceptable.
With the above in mind, and assuming you are otherwise content for the tree belt to be
removed, I would request revised plans illustrating a width of 2.8m is made available for the
footpath adjoining Plot 001.”
Environmental Health:
Received on the 13th June 2019
“The historical maps show that there have been garages on site since the 1955-1974 epoch,
the site appears to have been previously undeveloped.
Garage sites can pose certain risks. These can include leaking fuels, oils and fluids from the
parking or storage of motor vehicles, the storage of fuels, oils, chemicals etc. and the
presence of asbestos containing materials (i.e. corrugated cement roofing sheets). Direct
contact with contaminants in soft landscaping is a possibility. Inhalation of fibres is also a
possibility.
Due to the presence of hydrocarbons, vapour intrusion and permeation of water pipes can
be a possibility. I have reviewed the Environmental Desk Study and Preliminary Risk

Page 61

Assessment prepared by Apple Environmental (Report ref. CL/2513/HM). I would agree with
the consultant’s recommendation that an intrusive investigation is required to fully
characterise the site. Based on this, a contaminated land condition is recommended.”
Received on the 19th August 2019
“I have no additional comments to make on behalf of the Strategic Environment Team.”
Received on the 23rd January 2020
“Thank you for consulting us on the submitted amended plans. I have no further comments
to make on behalf of the Strategic Environment Team. Please refer to my original comments
dated 12/06/2019.”
Received on the 31st March 2020
“Thank you for consulting us on the submitted amended plans. I have no further comments
to make on behalf of the Strategic Environment Team. Please refer to my original comments
dated 12/06/2019.”
Waste Officer:
Received on the 24th May 2019
“Waste services note the proposal for 3 new dwellings off Hearnes Meadow. Residents of all
3 dwellings to present their bins in a safe and suitable location at the property boundary on
Hearnes Meadow. Collection teams will not access the driveway.”
Received on the 5th August 2019
“Waste services has previously commented on this proposal. We have no additional
comments to make, collections to take place in accordance with council policies.”
Landscape Officer:
Received on the 18th June 2019
“The landscape proposals shown on application PL/19/1409/FA - Garages Off Hearnes
Meadow, Seer Green - are minimal. Drawing number L4287 003B (Proposed Site Plan)
shows general layout and works to existing trees - but no details are given of any new
planting.
The removal of existing mature trees and hedgerows is regrettable as a loss of wildlife
habitats and loss of screening to surrounding residential properties. Suitable replacement
tree/ hedgerow planting should be provided to maintain the screening of these properties,
and provide habitats for wildlife.
I note that the resident at 12 Chalfont Road disputes the ownership of land between his
dwelling and the existing garages, in the area of the group of trees at G1. This dispute
should be resolved and suitable replacement tree screening provided if the development is
permitted.
I suggest that new tree and hedge planting should be provided within the new gardens and
on the site boundaries. Screening should be provided between plot 1 and the footpath, on

Page 62

the boundaries of plots 2 and 3, and to the rear of the parking area next to plot 2. Details
are required of all the new planting species, sizes and numbers.”
Received on the 25th March 2020
“Following previous comments about this application, I would make the following
comments about the revised proposals - The landscape proposals shown on application
PL/19/1409/FA - Garages Off Hearnes Meadow, Seer Green– shown on the revised
‘Proposed Site Plan’ number L4287/003J - are acceptable.
I welcome the retention of existing trees and the proposed additional planting. I note the
proposed “new low level/ low maintenance landscaping.” Further details are required about
this – plant species, sizes and numbers.”
Natural England:
Received on the 17th March 2020
“Due to new evidence coming to light as part of the evidence base for the emerging Chiltern
and South Bucks Local Plan, Natural England recognises that new housing within 5.6km of
the internationally designated Burnham Beeches Special Area of Conservation (SAC) can be
expected to result in an increase in recreation pressure.
The 5.6km zone proposed within Policy DM NP3 of the emerging Chiltern and South Bucks
Local Plan represents the core area around the SAC where increases in the number of
residential properties will require Habitats Regulations Assessment. Mitigation measures
will be necessary to rule out adverse effects on the integrity of the SAC from the cumulative
impacts of development.
In light of the new evidence relating to the recreation impact zone of influence, planning
authorities must apply the requirements of Regulation 61 of The Conservation of Habitats
and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), to housing development within 5.6km of the
SAC boundary. The authority must decide whether a particular proposal, alone or in
combination with other plans or projects, would be likely to have a significant effect on the
SAC.
Development in accordance with the emerging Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan’s DM
NP3 Policy and emerging Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy would not be likely to have a
significant effect on the SAC because they will provide, or make an appropriate contribution
to, acceptable avoidance and mitigation measures.
The planning authority can grant planning permission to such developments in accordance
with the Regulations. However, development proposals which are not in accordance with
the above would be likely to have a significant effect on the SAC, either alone or in
combination with other plans and projects. In accordance with Regulation 61, before
granting planning permission for such a proposal, the planning authority must undertake an
appropriate assessment of the implications of the development on the SAC, in light of the
site’s conservation objectives. The conservation objectives are to maintain and, where not
in favourable condition, to restore, the Atlantic acidophilous beech forest habitat.
Consequently, it is Natural England’s view that the planning authority will not be able to

Page 63

ascertain that this proposed development as it is currently submitted would not adversely
affect the integrity of the SAC.
In combination with other plans and projects, the development would be likely to
contribute to a deterioration of the quality of the habitat by reason of increased access to
the site including access for general recreation and dog-walking. There being alternative
solutions to the proposal and there being no imperative reasons of overriding public interest
to allow the proposal, despite a negative assessment, the proposal will not pass the tests of
Regulation 62.
Between 500 metres to 5.6km from Burnham Beeches SAC, a Habitats Regulations
Assessment is required to determine Likely Significant Effect. Additionally, financial
contributions should be made towards the Burnham Beeches Access Management Scheme,
or any subsequent scheme which replaces this; and it should be demonstrated that no
adverse impacts on the SAC will arise as a result of additional visitors to the SAC from the
development. Such mitigation will need to be determined in agreement with Natural
England.”
Representations
30 letters of objection have been received throughout the process of the planning
application which have been summarised below. It should however be noted that many
residents support the principle of the development and the provision of housing in the
locality:
Character and Appearance
- Cutting back the trees will be detrimental to the area.
- The new dwellings should be provided with ample off street parking to prevent
additional on street parking along Hearnes Meadow.
- The cutting back of the trees will expose the heavily used footpath.
- The heights of the dwellings are excessive for an infill development.
- The removal of the trees and hedging seems unnecessary.

Residential amenity
- The removal of the trees will reduce privacy for neighbours.
- Proposed fencing along the boundaries should be adequate to ensure privacy.
- The dwellings could result in overshadowing to neighbours.
- The dwellings could appear overbearing.
- Some neighbours have disputed the ownership of land within the red edge claiming
that they have maintained and used this land for many years.
- There could be a resultant detrimental impact to the bungalow occupiers such as an
increase in noise.
- The garages are a valuable asset to those residents that use them and so will be
disadvantaged with their removal.
Highways
- The knocking down of the garages will increase parking on Hearnes Meadow.

Page 64

-

Greater parking issues than those that already exist will be created.
Construction traffic will create issues for existing residents.
Many residents use these garages and their vehicles will be displaced.

Page 65

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 66

Agenda Item 6

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/19/4178/FA

Proposal:

Demolition of existing two storey extension and erection of
replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension,
erection of outbuilding to form additional accommodation,
internal alterations, an extension to the existing car park and
associated soft and hard landscaping.

Site Location:

The Nags Head Public House
London Road
Little Kingshill
Buckinghamshire
HP16 0DG

Applicant:

Mr A Michaels

Case Officer:

Emma Showan

Ward affected:

Great Missenden

Parish Council:

Great Missenden

Valid date:

18 December 2019

Determination date:

23 September 2020

Recommendation:

Conditional permission

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1 This application proposes the demolition of the existing two storey extension and
erection of replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension, in
addition to the erection of an outbuilding to form additional accommodation,
internal alterations, an extension to the existing car park and associated soft and

Page 67

hard landscaping at The Nags Head Public House in Great Missenden. The public
house is located on a corner plot to the south-west of London Road and to the
north-west of Nags Head Lane. The site is within the open Green Belt, Chilterns
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). It is also adjacent to the
Conversation Area, which is situated to the north-east of the site. The public
house itself is a Grade II Listed building.
1.2 The main issues for consideration are the impact of the development on the
openness of the Green Belt; the impact of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the AONB; the impact on the Grade II Listed building and
conservation area; and the parking and highway implications.

2.0

1.3

Cllr Gladwin has called in this application for consideration by committee if the
Officer’s recommendation is for refusal. No reason is stated for the call in,
however it is noted that this application was called before the committee prior
to the Council becoming Buckinghamshire Unitary Council and the adoption of
a new constitution.

1.4

The recommendation is to grant permission, subject to conditions.

Description of Proposed Development
2.1 This application proposes the demolition of the existing two storey extension and
erection of replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension, in
addition to the erection of an outbuilding to form additional accommodation,
internal alterations, an extension to the existing car park and associated soft and
hard landscaping.
2.2 The proposed side/rear extension to the main public house would have a
maximum depth of 3 metres beyond the existing rear elevation and width of 1.7
metres beyond the existing flank elevation. The height of the two storey
extension would be 8 metres to meet the height of the existing building. At
ground floor level, this would allow for an extension to the kitchen and food
store. At first floor level, this would allow for the creation of bedrooms and ensuite bathrooms. The height of the two storey extension would be comparable to
that of the existing building.
2.3 A new, detached part single storey, part two-storey outbuilding is also proposed.
This would have a maximum width of 16.9 metres, depth of 3.6 metres and
pitched roof height of 9.5 metres at two storey level and 6 metres at single
storey level. It would accommodate six bedrooms with en-suite bathrooms. The
building would be in two parts, the two storey element comprising brick and flint
facing materials and the single storey element having a traditional barn-like
appearance which would incorporate horizontal weatherboarding. It would be
located along north-west flank boundary of the site and adjacent to London
Road.
2.4 It is also proposed to extend the car park to the rear of the public access and into
an area currently used as the pub garden. A total of 27 parking spaces would be

Page 68

proposed and two disabled parking spaces and the access would continue to
remain onto London Road. A cycle stand will also be incorporated.
2.5 Internal alterations and landscaping are also proposed.
2.6 In support of the application, the Applicant has submitted:


Arboricultural report



Business support statement



Heritage statement



Planning statement



Topographical survey



Tree constraints plan



Tree survey

2.7 Numerous amended plans have been submitted during the course of this
application. The amendments have been in consultation with the Council’s
Historic Buildings Officer in order to secure a scheme that is considered
acceptable in terms of its impact on the Grade II Listed public house. The
amended plans have led to revisions to and a reduction in scale of the external
accommodation block, as well as internal and external alterations to the main
public house.
3.0

Relevant Planning History
ADDRESS: Flat The Nags Head Public House London Road Little Kingshill
Buckinghamshire HP16 0DG
PL/19/4463/HB - Demolition of the existing two storey extension and erection of
replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension, in addition to the
erection of an outbuilding to form additional accommodation, internal alterations,
an extension to the existing car park and associated soft and hard landscaping,
pending consideration.
CH/2018/0266/HB - Roof extension to existing building and attached two storey
building to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen, extension to the dining room and
store. Refused permission as the proposal is not consistent with the conservation of
the Listed building due to the impact of the scale of what is proposed, and the
historic building would be overwhelmed by the addition and the harm that is caused
is not outweighed by additional public benefits.
CH/2018/0265/FA - Roof extension to existing building and attached two storey
building to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen, extension to the dining room and
store. Refused permission for the following reasons:

Page 69

1.
The proposed extension is considered to be a disproportionate addition
over and above the size of the original building, and as such, the development does
not fall into any of the categories listed in Policy GB2 of the Local Plan and
paragraphs 89 and 90 of the National Planning Policy Framework. It therefore
constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Furthermore, given the
scale of the proposed extension and the expanse of hardstanding proposed for the
new car parking area, the development would have a detrimental impact on the
openness of the Green Belt. No very special circumstances have been demonstrated
which clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt.
2.
The proposed development consists of a substantial extension which
almost doubles the size of the existing building, a large expanse of hardstanding on
land which is currently grass, and a new access onto Nags Head Lane which would
require road signs or dragons teeth to enforce a one way system. The proposal will
create a much more dominant building within the landscape and a development
which fails to conserve or enhance the rural character of the area or high landscape
quality of the AONB.
3.
This proposal is not consistent with the conservation of the listed building
due to the impact of the scale of what is proposed, the historic building would be
overwhelmed by the addition and the harm that this would cause is not outweighed
by additional public benefits. The additional hardstanding for the new parking area
and the consequent reduction of garden would also harm the setting of the listed
building. The less than substantial harm identified is not outweighed by public
benefit or securing the buildings optimum viable use.
CH/2017/0915/HB - Internal and external alterations with the erection of a building
to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen, extension to the dining room and store.
Refused permission.
CH/2017/0914/FA - Erection of a building to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen,
extension to dining groom and store. Refused permission.
CH/2008/0311/FA - New car park and vehicular access onto Nags Head Lane, refused
permission.
CH/2001/1283/HB - First floor rear extension including new external stair
(amendment to Listed Building Consent CH/1999/1841/HB), conditional consent.
CH/2001/1282/FA - First floor rear extension including new external stair
(amendment to planning permission CH/1999/1840/FA) for use of whole first floor to
provide seven rooms for bed and breakfast accommodation, conditional permission.

Page 70

CH/1999/1841/HB - First floor rear extension, conditional consent.
CH/1999/1840/FA - First floor rear extension, conditional permission.
CH/1980/0287/FA - Erection of single storey rear and side extension, conditional
permission.
4.0

Summary of Representations
4.1 'The Parish Council support this application to provide additional much needed
hotel accommodation in the Parish, subject only to the planning authority being
satisfied that the parking provision on site is adequate for the property if
extended as proposed, and that there is adequate provision for disabled access.'
4.2 In addition, three letters of support received which can be summarised as
follows:
- Visitors to the area and to the tennis club need more accommodation
options
-

Shortage of accommodation locally

-

More parking is required as there is currently overspill to the tennis club

-

The development would attract visitors to the District

-

Opportunities for tourism and hospitality

-

Job creation

-

Would secure future viability for The Nags Head

4.3 The Applicant has also submitted five further letters of support.
5.0

Policy Considerations and Evaluation







National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.
National Design Guidance, October 2019
Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:
Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.
Draft Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan 2036.
Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging
Schedule

Principle and Location of Development
 Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy),

Page 71

 Local Plan Saved Policies:
GB2 (Development in general in the Green Belt)
5.1 The site is located within the Green Belt where most development is
inappropriate and there is a general presumption against such development.
Chapter 13 of the NPPF emphasises the importance of Green Belts and states
that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and
should not be approved except in very special circumstances. When considering
any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt.
5.2 Paragraph 145 of the NPPF outlines some exceptions to this, including the
extension or alteration of a building, providing that it does not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building. This is
supported by Local Plan Policy GB2. The original building has previously been
extended under planning permission CH/2001/1282/FA and Listed Building
Consent CH/2001/1283/HB. Accordingly, the existing building, including the
permitted extension, has a floor area of 358.6 square metres.
5.3 The application follows on from planning application CH/2018/0265/FA and
Listed Building Consent CH/2018/0266/HB, both of which were refused for the
following reasons:
o The proposed extension is considered to be a disproportionate addition over and above
the size of the original building, and as such, the development does not fall into any of
the categories listed in Policy GB2 of the Local Plan and paragraphs 89 and 90 of the
National Planning Policy Framework. It therefore constitutes inappropriate development
in the Green Belt. Furthermore, given the scale of the proposed extension and the
expanse of hardstanding proposed for the new car parking area, the development would
have a detrimental impact on the openness of the Green Belt. No very special
circumstances have been demonstrated which clearly outweigh the harm to the Green
Belt.
o The proposed development consists of a substantial extension which almost doubles the
size of the existing building, a large expanse of hardstanding on land which is currently
grass, and a new access onto Nags Head Lane which would require road signs or dragons
teeth to enforce a one way system. The proposal will create a much more dominant
building within the landscape and a development which fails to conserve or enhance the
rural character of the area or high landscape quality of the AONB.
o This proposal is not consistent with the conservation of the listed building due to the
impact of the scale of what is proposed, the historic building would be overwhelmed by
the addition and the harm that this would cause is not outweighed by additional public
benefits. The additional hardstanding for the new parking area and the consequent
reduction of garden would also harm the setting of the listed building. The less than
substantial harm identified is not outweighed by public benefit or securing the buildings
optimum viable use.
5.4 The current application differs from the previous application in that the
extensions to the public house itself have been reduced in scale and additional
accommodation is instead proposed to be erected within a separate, detached
part single, part two storey outbuilding located within the existing car park and

Page 72

along the north-west site boundary. Further, whilst a car park extension remains
part of the proposal, the existing access onto London Road will remain as existing
and a new access onto Nags Head Lane is no longer proposed.
5.5 Each of these elements will be assessed separately in terms of their impact on
the Green Belt. Taking the proposed extensions to the public house first, these
would for a large part replace the existing extension erected as part of the 2001
planning permission. The proposed extension would be two-storey for the most
part with a small single storey rear/side projection with a lean-to roof. The first
floor ridge height would be 8 metres, which is the same as the height of the
existing building. Taking into account the proposed demolition of the existing
extension, the extension would add approximately 43 square metres to the
existing footprint, equating to a 12% increase above the existing. Taking into
account the proposed extension in addition to the previous extension (some of
which is being demolished as part of this extension), it is considered that the
proposal would not result in a disproportionate addition over and above the size
of the original building. Furthermore, the siting of the extension to the rear/side
of the building would consolidate the built form and its design is such that the
increase to the footprint would not be substantial, further ensuring that the
proposal has an acceptable impact on the openness of the Green Belt.
5.6 It is also proposed to erect a part single, part two storey detached outbuilding
along the north-west site boundary to provide six bedrooms and their en-suite
bathrooms. The proposed floor area of this building would be 77 square metres.
Paragraph 145 of the NPPF states that a local planning authority should regard
the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt. A new
building to provide additional hotel accommodation is not included in the list of
acceptable development in the Green Belt, as per the provisions of the NPPF.
This outbuilding would therefore constitute inappropriate development, and can
only be considered acceptable in very special circumstances. It is noted that the
Applicant's supporting statement states that this building would replace a coach
house that previously existed on site but that was demolished in the 1970s.
There is no trace of the building on site currently and so it cannot be taken into
account. It is therefore clear that the proposed outbuilding would constitute
inappropriate development and by virtue of the fact that it would introduce built
form where there is presently none, it would have a detrimental impact on the
openness of the Green Belt.
5.7 The application proposes to extend the existing car park to enable the provision
of 27 parking spaces, two disabled parking spaced and provision of a cycle roack.
The car park extension would be onto an area of existing lawn which currently
serves as the pub garden. By virtue of extending the parking into this area,
visually, there would be a spread of urbanising features into the Green Belt.
Whilst the appearance of the car park could be improved through the use of
landscaping planting and Breedon gravel to ensure that extensive tarmac and
hardstanding is not used across the site, the harm to the Green Belt and
detrimental impact on the appearance of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB) would need to be weighed against the overall benefits of the proposal.

Page 73

5.8 It has been set out above that whilst the proposed extensions to the public house
could have an acceptable impact on the openness of the Green Belt, the erection
of a new outbuilding to house additional accommodation would constitute
inappropriate development, whilst the extension to the car park would
undermine the rural character of the Green Belt also. The proposal would not
therefore be acceptable unless very special circumstances can be demonstrated.
5.9 The Applicant has submitted a Planning Statement which sets out their case for
very special circumstances. This will be evaluated in the following sections of this
report which will also identify if any other harm exists, before a balanced
judgement is made as to whether any very special circumstances exist to
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and any other identified harm.
Raising the quality of place making and design
 Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
CS22 (Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty)
CS29 (Community)
 Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
5.10
The application site is in a relatively remote location which has a rural
character. It is surrounded on three sides by fields and is within the Chilterns
AONB and close to the Great Missenden Conservation Area.
5.11
In accordance with Paragraph 172 of the NPPF, great weight should be
given to conserving and enhancing the landscape and scenic beauty of AONBs
which have the highest status of protection in relation to landscape and scenic
beauty. Policy LSQ1 of the Local Plan states that the scale, size, siting and design
of the development as well as the external materials to be used, shall be
considered in assessing whether the development is appropriate within the
AONB and Policy CS22 of the Core Strategy seeks to safeguard views in and out of
the area.
5.12
The previous planning application raised concern in respect of the
dominance of the building within the landscape in addition to the detrimental
impact of the expanse of hardstanding proposed and the new access requiring
signage or dragons teeth which were all considered to be contrary to the rural
nature of the locality. This latest application has reduced the size of the
extensions to the public house (instead providing the additional accommodation
in a separate outbuilding) and proposes to retain the existing access
arrangements onto London Road, and does not include a new access and signage
onto Nags Head Lane.
5.13
As the proposed extensions to the public house have been reduced in size
and scale in comparison to those proposed as part of the previous application,
they are now considered to be more sympathetic and in proportion to the

Page 74

existing building. This has had a positive impact in reducing the visual impact of
the proposal and reducing the prominence of the building in the landscape.
5.14
With regards to the proposed outbuilding, this would be a part single
storey, part two storey rectangular structure incorporating a gable roof and
simple, agricultural appearance. It would be designed to reflect a traditional
Chilterns building through its use of weatherboard cladding along the single
storey element whilst bricks and flint would be used on the two storey element.
The openings would be simple and laid informally. This would ensure that the
building retains a simple, rural character. Should planning permission be granted,
a condition requiring the submission of details in respect of facing materials
would be essential to ensure that the resultant building is in keeping with the
rural character of the area. Overall, it is considered that this proposed new
building would be designed to respect the character of the area and the AONB.
5.15
The creation of a second access onto Nags Head Lane was previously
rejected in that the loss of hedging along this road and laying of hardstanding
would puncture the landscape and increase the visibility of the car park, to the
detriment of the open and rural character of the area. It is now proposed to rely
solely on the existing access onto London Road, taking away the need for hedging
to be removed and dragons teeth/signage to be erected. Whilst the extension of
the car park would undermine the rural character of the landscape to an extent,
the additional parking would now no longer extend across the site to Nags Head
Lane and so dominate the landscape. Whilst the increase in car parking spaces
would have some harm to the appearance of the AONB, it can to an extent be
mitigated with the use of appropriate materials and soft planting. To this end,
the harm can be reduced, and the scheme represents a positive change away
from the concerns raised under the previous planning application.
5.16
Finally, the proposal would require the loss of various trees and a
hawthorn, but as these are all fairly small trees, they are of limited importance.
As such, there are no objections to the application, provided there is adequate
protection for the retained trees.
Historic environment (or Conservation Area or Listed Building Issues)
 Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
 Local Plan Saved Policies:
LB1 (Protection of special architectural or historic interest of Listed Buildings
throughout the district)
LB2 (Protection of setting of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
CA2 (Views Within, out of, or into the Conservation Areas as defined on the
Proposals Map)
5.17
The Historic Buildings Officer previously objected to the proposal on the
grounds that the scale of the proposed extension would overwhelm the historic
building and this harm would not be outweighed by public benefits. In response
to the amended proposal, the Historic Buildings Officer has worked extensively
with the Applicant to advise on a scheme that is considered to be more

Page 75

appropriate to the Listed Building on site. Following discussions with the Historic
Buildings Officer, the Applicant has reduced the scale of works to the Listed
public house itself, so that the extension to this building would now be single
storey with a minor projection to the rear. It is considered that the modest
nature of this extension would have an acceptable impact on the pubic house.
5.18
In terms of the impact of the new building accommodation, the Historic
Buildings Officer has retained concerns that this building remains over large to
the extent that it could dominate the rural setting of the listed building.
Comments have also been provided in respect of the materials and glazing,
although the Historic Buildings Officer has acknowledged that appropriate
materials and openings can all be secured by way of planning conditions, should
planning permission be granted.
5.19
The concerns of the Historic Buildings Officer in relation to the size of the
detached accommodation block are noted however, the impact this block has on
the siting of the Grade II Listed public house must be weighed up against the
benefits of this scheme, namely the opportunity to increase the viability of the
business operation on site, the increase in service provision, and the increase in
employment generation. This will be considered and weighed up in the final
section of this report.
Transport matters and parking
 Core Strategy Policies:
CS25 (Dealing with the impact of new development on the transport
network)
 Local Plan Saved Policies:
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the
district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
5.20
It is proposed to provide a total of 27 parking spaces, two of which would
be designated for disabled users. This is an increase of nine spaces compared
with the existing situation. Local Plan Policy TR16 recommends that for hotels
one space per bedroom is to be provided. Meanwhile, for public houses, one car
space per four square metres of public floor space is to be provided. To this end,
the proposed extensions to the public house would entail the creation of a larger
kitchen and food store (in addition to hotel rooms at first floor level), as opposed
to additional public space. Therefore, in accordance with the standards set out in
this Policy, nine parking spaces are to be provided to serve the nine proposed
hotel rooms. As an increase of nine spaces is shown on the site plan, the proposal
accords with the Council's parking standards and no objections are raised with
respect of parking.
5.21
It is proposed to rely on the existing access onto London Road. This
arrangement has been assessed by the Highway Authority who has raised
concern that adequate visibility splays cannot be achievable to the left upon exit.

Page 76

Due to the intensification of use of this access at a point where visibility is
substandard it is considered that the proposal would have a detrimental impact
upon the safety of highway users and so the Highway Authority has
recommended refusal of this application on this basis. Since the submission of
the Highway Authority comments, the Applicant has submitted amended plans
showing a reduction in height to the boundary wall at the north flank elevation
to 0.6 metres. This reduction in height to the boundary wall is considered to be
an acceptable solution to achieve the required visibility splays in this direction
and thus overcome the Highway Authority concern in this regard.
5.22
Furthermore, the Highway Authority has confirmed that the access point is
wide enough to accommodate two-way vehicular movements and that the
parking spaces are of adequate dimensions to allow for vehicles to park, turn and
leave in a forward gear.
Amenity of existing and future residents
 Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
GC7 (Noise-generating developments throughout the district)
5.23
The proposed development is located at a sufficient distance away from
neighbouring properties and so it remains that it would not adversely affect any
residential amenities.
6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1 It has been set out above that the proposed outbuilding providing additional
accommodation would amount to inappropriate development in the Green Belt
and therefore can only be considered acceptable if very special circumstances
can be demonstrated. To this end, the Applicant has submitted both a planning
statement and business statement setting out what they consider to be the very
special circumstances of the proposal.
6.2 The case can be summarised as follows:











Removal of poorly integrated existing extension
Reinstatement of a lost building that has a significant historical interest
Proposal represents good design
The site constitutes previously developed land
There is need for additional accommodation on this site
Represents sustainable development
NPPF support for economic and rural development
There is debate about the effectiveness and purpose of the Green Belt
Creation of additional habitat for wildlife through landscaping proposals
Provision of local community facility

6.3 Having regard to the very special circumstances set out by the Applicant, many of
these circumstances are not unique and can clearly be replicated at other sites.

Page 77

6.4 However, it is noted that the NPPF does support a prosperous rural economy,
with Paragraph 83 stating that planning policies and decisions should enable the
sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas, both
through the conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings
and; the retention and development of accessible local services and community
facilities, such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open spaces,
cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship.
6.5 The Applicant has also submitted a business statement. This states that to
survive pubs must either diversify their offer and/or expand their present
facilities. Details of the existing business mix are provided, including information
about the overheads and cash flow. It is outlined that the ratio of staff costs
versus turnover have become unsustainable between 2011 and 2019. In addition
to this, the business statement sets out there is demand for hotel
accommodation locally, with the average annual occupancy of the Nags Head
being 87%. This is higher than the national average which is 72%. Further, it is
shown that revenue from letting rooms has increased 61% over the previous six
years. It is concluded that development at the site will aid the shortage of
accommodation in the Chilterns as documented by the Chilterns Tourism
Network and letters of support from local businesses; create extra employment
for up to five people; and ensure the continued viability of a community asset.
6.6 It is clear from the submitted business statement that the existing business on
site is viable and operating at a high level of occupancy. The proposed
development would allow for the business to continue to remain viable and
sustainable, as evidenced by their submitted figures in the business statement.
At the same time, expansion of the business would have benefits for the wider
economy. It is further noted that the Applicant has demonstrated their
commitment to the business by way of securing LEP funding to support its
growth and viability going forward.
6.7 It is acknowledged that the proposed extension to the existing public house
would not constitute inappropriate development whilst the proposed outbuilding
has been appropriately sited close to the road frontage and other buildings on
site. In addition, it has been sympathetically designed to reflect the rural
character of the area and appearance of other traditional buildings in the
Chiltern District. The key question is therefore whether the need for expansion to
the public house constitutes very special circumstances sufficient to outweigh
the serious harm to the openness of the Green Belt.
6.8 The NPPF's support for the rural economy has been set out above and the
business statement is clear in setting out how the additional accommodation
would relate to the existing business and future viability of the business. By
providing additional accommodation and rationalising the space within the
existing public house, the proposal would help to secure the future of the
business whilst supporting both sustainable rural tourism and employment, in
line with the provisions of Paragraph 83 of the NPPF. It has already been stated
above that the Applicant has already secured LEP funding to help secure a viable
future for the public house.

Page 78

6.9 It is considered that, based on the support documents, that the Nags Head Public
House is operating a viable business model which can continue to expand in pace
with existing demand. By providing additional accommodation on site, this would
help to meet both current and future demand, and would help the public house
to diversify, supporting both sustainable rural tourism and rural employment, in
line with the provisions of the NPPF.
6.10
Throughout the course of this application, the Applicant has submitted a
number of amended plans in an attempt to overcome the concerns raised by the
Historic Buildings Officer. Reductions have been made to the scale and nature of
works to be undertaken to the Listed Building itself, and the resultant single
storey rear extension is considered to be acceptable. However, the Historic
Buildings Officer retains concerns in respect of the scale of the separate
accommodation block as it is considered that it could dominate the rural setting
of the Listed building. These concerns must be weighed up against the merits of
the scheme, namely the opportunity to increase the viability of the business
operation on site, the increase in service provision, and the increase in
employment generation. It has already been set out above that the business is
operating at high capacity and seeks to expand in order to secure its long term
viability. Securing the long-term viability of the public house and business is in
the interests of the Grade II listed building as it would allow the public house to
remain in use and therefore be maintained. Although there are concerns about
the size of the accommodation block, justification has been provided for its size
in terms of the viability of the public house. In addition, it has been sited at the
flank boundary of the site where it would be set back from the highway to lessen
its prominence in views from the public highway, whilst being sited close to the
other development on site so as to limit the sprawl of development into the
surrounding countryside, to the detriment of the open Green Belt and AONB.
Furthermore, the Historic Buildings Officer has stated that planning conditions
would mitigate harm by way of ensuring that the proposed building is
appropriately erected and faced, if planning permission is granted. For this
reason, taking into account the benefits of the scheme, and the fact that
planning conditions can secure a satisfactory appearance for the accommodation
block in line with the advice of the Historic Buildings Officer, it is considered that
the benefits of the scheme would outweigh the harm caused by the
accommodation block, in terms of its scale undermining the setting of the Listed
building.
6.11
No other objections have been raised with regards to the impact of the
proposal on neighbouring amenities; highway or transport matters; character of
the area or setting of the AONB; and landscaping.
6.12
Consequently, on balance and taking into account the merits of the
scheme, although the proposal would constitute inappropriate development, it is
considered that, in this instance, very special circumstances have been
demonstrated and it is considered that the proposal would accord with
Paragraph 83 of the NNPF which seeks to support the sustainable growth and
expansion of all types of business in rural areas through well-designed new
buildings.

Page 79

6.13
In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. In addition, Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the
Town and Country Planning Act relating to the determination of planning
applications and states that in dealing with planning applications, the authority
shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the
application (such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations
6.14 In this instance, it is considered that the proposal has had appropriate regard
to the policies of the Local Development Plan and National Planning Policy
Framework and it is considered that the proposal is acceptable.
6.15 Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must
have due regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which
may result from socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not
considered that this proposal would disadvantage any sector of society to a
harmful extent.
7.0

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach
decision-taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments.

7.2

The Council works with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive
manner by offering a pre-application advice service and, as appropriate,
updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of
their application.

7.3

The applicant has agreed to the pre-commencement conditions.

7.4

In this instance the applicant/agent


was provided with pre-application advice,



the applicant/agent was updated of any issues after the initial site visit,



The applicant was provided the opportunity to submit a number of
amendments to the scheme/address issues.



The application was considered by the Planning Committee where the
applicant/agent had the opportunity to speak to the Committee and
promote the application.

Recommendation: Conditional Permission

Page 80

Subject to the following conditions:1.

General time limit

2.
No part of the development shall commence until a Demolition Method Statement
and Construction Traffic Management Plan have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. These shall
include details of: Construction access; Management and timing of deliveries; Routing of
construction traffic; Vehicle parking for site operatives and visitors; Loading/off-loading and
turning areas; Site compound; Storage of materials; and precautions to prevent the deposit
of mud and debris on the adjacent highway. The development herby permitted shall
thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the highway
and of the development.
3.
No part of the development shall commence until tree protection fencing is erected
around the trees and hedges to be retained in accordance with both British Standard
5837:2012 and the tree protection proposals set out in the submitted Arboricultural Report
(GHA Trees, March 2017). The fencing shall then be retained in position until the
development is completed. Within the enclosed areas there shall be no construction works,
no storage of materials, no fires and no excavation or changes to ground levels.
Reason: To ensure that the existing established trees and hedgerows within and around the
site that are proposed to be retained are safeguarded during building operations.
4.
No part of the development shall commence until the new means of access has
been sited and laid out in accordance with the approved drawings. This includes the
reduction in height of the wall along the north side boundary to 0.6 metres as shown on the
approved plans and the provision of visibility splays on both sides of the access between a
point 2.4 metres along the centre line of the access measured from the edge of the
carriageway and a point 79 metres along the edge of the carriageway measured from the
intersection of the centre line of the access. The area contained within the splays shall be
kept free of any obstruction exceeding 0.9 metres in height above the nearside channel
level of the carriageway.
Reason: To provide adequate intervisibility between the access and the existing public
highway for the safety and convenience of users of the highway and of the access.
5.
Before any construction works above ground level commence, details and samples
of the external facing and roofing materials to be used for the accommodation block and
extension to The Nags Head Public House hereby permitted shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building and extension shall be
constructed using the approved materials and all new brickwork should be laid in a
traditional bond (no stretcher bond).

Page 81

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is not detrimental to the
character of the locality, the AONB or detrimental to the Grade II Listed building.
6.
Before any construction works above ground level commence, details of the
materials and location of the hardstanding hereby permitted for the car park and paths
within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The hardstanding shall only be erected in accordance with the approved details
and no alterations shall take place thereafter, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the amount and appearance of the hardstanding is not detrimental
to the character of the locality and the AONB and to ensure that it is in keeping with the
rural character of the Green Belt.
7
Before any construction works above ground level commence, an elevation plan
and sample panel (no smaller than one square metre) showing the flintwork with additional
brickwork to support the flint panels shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The proposed flint panels shall be formed of fractured or knapped
flint with the dressed face exposed and set in lime mortar. The use of pre-cast flint panels
would not be considered acceptable. The development shall only be erected in accordance
with the approved details and no alterations shall take place thereafter, unless otherwise
first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The sample panel shall be retained on
site for the duration of the works.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not harm the appearance or character of the
Listed Building on site.
8.
Before any construction works above ground level commence, full details of the
propose flue/chimney for the kitchen extract, including elevations, materials and details of
any extraction equipment, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be erected in accordance with the approved
details and no alterations shall take place thereafter, unless otherwise first agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not harm the appearance or character of the
Listed Building on site.
9.
The scheme for parking and manoeuvring shown on AMENDED PROPOSED SITE
PLAN 32-15-21 shall be laid out prior to the occupation of the accommodation block hereby
permitted and that area shall thereafter be reserved for parking in connection with the use
of The Nags Head Public House and ancillary accommodation and shall not be used for any
other purpose. The hard surface shall either be made of porous materials, or alternatively
provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or
porous area or surface within the site.

Page 82

Reason: To ensure that adequate and satisfactory provision is made for the parking of
vehicles clear of the highway and to prevent the risk of increased flooding and pollution of
watercourses.
10.
All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the
buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or
plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives
written consent to any variation.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality.
11.
No external lighting shall be fixed to the buildings or installed within or around the
site unless first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to maintain the rural character of the locality and to prevent harm to
ecology.
12.

Approved plans:

Nags Head ground floor main 32-15-16

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head main N and E elevation 32-15-18

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head main S and W elevation 32-15-19

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head first floor main 32-15-17

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head site plan 32-15-21

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head acc block 32-15-20

- 10.08.2020

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

- 03.08.2020

Page 83

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Parish/Town Council Comments
The Parish Council support this application to provide additional much needed hotel
accommodation in the Parish, subject only to the planning authority being satisfied that the
parking provision on site is adequate for the property if extended as proposed, and that
there is adequate provision for disabled access.
Consultation Responses
Economic Development Officer: With both business growth and tourism identified as
priorities for the area, it is important that businesses within the sector are supported to
grow and succeed. The development proposed at The Nags Head will play a key role in
ensuring its future sustainability and growth, safeguarding current jobs and creating new.
Furthermore, there will be benefits to the local economy, through supporting tourism and
enabling more visitors to stay locally and hopefully patronize other local businesses and
tourist attractions. The Nags Head is already engaged with local organisations such as The
Chilterns Tourism Network and local visitor attractions such as the Roald Dahl Museum.
Continuing such engagement alongside an expanded accommodation offer could bring
benefits to the visitor economy, local businesses, visitor attractions and the local economy
as a whole. For these reasons, I would like to express my support for the proposed
development.
Highway Officer: London Road is classified as the A413 and in this location is subject to a
speed restriction of 40mph. This application proposes demolition of existing two storey
extension and erection of replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension,
erection of outbuilding and extension to the existing car park area.
The parking standards specify that each parking space should measure a minimum of 2.4m x
4.8m. Whilst I trust that the Local Planning Authority will consider the level of parking
proposed, I can confirm that these spaces are of adequate dimensions and would allow for
vehicles to park, turn and leave the site in a forward gear.
Having assessed the proposed plans, I am satisfied that the width of the access point is wide
enough to safely allow two-way vehicular movements.
Having interrogated the TRICS® (Trip Rate Information Computer System) database, I
consider that the proposed development of 6 additional bedrooms would have the potential
to generate in the region of 79 additional vehicular movements a day, two-way. As this is
the case, the existing access point serving the development must be assessed in order to
determine its suitability to accommodate this increase in movements.
In accordance with guidance contained within Manual for Streets, visibility splays of 2.4m x
82m are required in both directions commensurate with a speed limit of 40mph. Having
reviewed the submitted plans, I am aware the splays are not achievable to the left upon
exit, due to the existing boundary wall. A splay of 2.4m x 12m is achievable to the left upon
exit, which equates to vehicle speeds of 11mph, this is a significant reduction on the

Page 84

required visibility splays and an intensification of use at this point will subsequently have a
detrimental impact upon the safety of highway users.

Historic Buildings Officer: I have finally had an opportunity to study the revised plans and
have the following comments.
My previous advice on the amended plans submitted on 28th July is below in the email chain
for clarity.
The new building accommodation block is considerably longer bigger than the previous
scheme which I considered to be over large; the rooms are all extremely generous in size;
there are now three, three bed rooms proposed (previously there were just 2), and all
rooms still have baths rather than showers. The two storey section is more than 2 metres
longer than is necessary for good sized bedrooms, and the single storey element is now over
long and even if reduced by 4 metres would still provide generous sized bedrooms.
I am afraid there is still a serious concern that the new block would dominate the rural
setting of the listed building in this open rural setting, and it is considered that the
accommodation required could be fitted into a much smaller new building.
With regard to the details of the proposal; the flintwork on the south elevation of the would
need to be broken up into smaller panels by brickwork to provide visible support; perhaps
this could be agreed by condition? The use of pre-cast flint panels would not be considered
acceptable; Flint should be fractured or knapped with the dressed face exposed and set in a
lime mortar- I would suggest a sample panel be required in association with the brickwork
to ensure the correct details/ materials.
The first floor left flank window on the older part of the building (facing the junction) has
been changed at some time since the building was listed. It was agreed that a window
matching the original design would be reinstated here, but this is still not shown on the
amended drawings. Large scale elevations and sections should be provided and the
reinstatement conditioned. On the main building the windows should be single glazed;
elsewhere the thin 12mm double glazing would be acceptable as this would enable narrow
through glazing bars to be used. New doors should have the traditional wide planks. All new
brickwork should be laid in a traditional bond (no stretcher bond), with local matching bricks
I have been asked to provide conditions if the application is approved;


Large scale elevations and sections shall be submitted and approved in writing;
showing the proposed eaves and verge details; to ensure the details are compatible
with the listed building and its setting.

Page 85













Large scale elevation and sections shall be submitted and approved in writing
showing the proposed new windows and doors, drawn in situ.
Before the use of the new extension, the first floor window on the south elevation of
the front historic part of the building shall be fitted in accordance with the approved
plans.
The proposed flint panels shall be formed of fractured or knapped with the dressed
face exposed and set in a lime mortar. Note; the use of pre-cast flint panels would
not be considered acceptable. A large scale elevation showing the flintwork with
additional brick work to support the flint pales shall be submitted for approval in
writing.
All new brickwork should be laid in a traditional bond (no stretcher bond), with local
matching bricks
A sample panel showing the flint and brickwork, no smaller that 1meter square shall
be provided for approval and retained on site for the duration of the works.
Traditional deep feather edged boarding, stained black shall be used for the single
storey element of the detached block- samples to be approved
The roofs shall be covered in hand made plain clay tiles to match those on the main
building. (the single storey element may be natural slate???)
All new external rainwater goods shall be painted cast metal.
Detailed elevation drawings showing the proposed chimney for the kitchen extract
shall be approved in writing
Full details of any new external pipework, flues vents, extracts etc shall be submitted
and agreed in writing; for the avoidance of doubt

Representations
Other Representations
Three letters of support received which can be summarised as follows:
 Visitors to the area and to the tennis club need more accommodation options
 Shortage of accommodation locally
 More parking is required as there is currently overspill to the tennis club
 The development would attract visitors to the District
 Opportunities for tourism and hospitality
 Job creation
 Would secure future viability for The Nags Head

The Applicant has also submitted five further letters of support.

Page 86

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/19/4463/HB

Proposal:

Listed Building Consent for: Demolition of existing two storey
extension and erection of replacement part two, part singlestorey side/rear extension, erection of outbuilding to form
additional accommodation, internal alterations, an extension
to the existing car park and associated soft and hard
landscaping.

Site Location:

The Nags Head Public House
London Road
Little Kingshill
Buckinghamshire
HP16 0DG

Applicant:

Mr A Michaels

Case Officer:

Emma Showan

Ward affected:

Great Missenden

Parish Council:

Great Missenden

Valid date:

20 December 2019

Determination date:

23 September 2020

Recommendation:

Conditional consent

Page 89

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1 This application proposes the demolition of the existing two storey extension and
erection of replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension, in
addition to the erection of an outbuilding to form additional accommodation,
internal alterations, an extension to the existing car park and associated soft and
hard landscaping at The Nags Head Public House in Great Missenden. The public
house is located on a corner plot to the south-west of London Road and to the
north-west of Nags Head Lane. The site is within the open Green Belt, Chilterns
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). It is also adjacent to the
Conversation Area, which is situated to the north-east of the site. The public
house itself is a Grade II Listed building.
1.2 The main issue for consideration is the impact of the development on the Grade
II Listed building.

2.0

1.3

Cllr Phillips has called in this application for consideration by committee if the
Officer’s recommendation is for approval. No reason is stated for the call in,
however it is noted that this application was called before the committee prior
to the Council becoming Buckinghamshire Unitary Council and the adoption of
a new constitution.

1.4

The recommendation is to grant consent, subject to conditions.

Description of Proposed Development
2.1 This application proposes the demolition of the existing two storey extension and
erection of replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension, in
addition to the erection of an outbuilding to form additional accommodation,
internal alterations, an extension to the existing car park and associated soft and
hard landscaping.
2.2 The proposed side/rear extension to the main public house would have a
maximum depth of 3 metres beyond the existing rear elevation and width of 1.7
metres beyond the existing flank elevation. The height of the two storey
extension would be 8 metres to meet the height of the existing building. At
ground floor level, this would allow for an extension to the kitchen and food
store. At first floor level, this would allow for the creation of bedrooms and ensuite bathrooms. The height of the two storey extension would be comparable to
that of the existing building.
2.3 A new, detached part single storey, part two-storey outbuilding is also proposed.
This would have a maximum width of 16.9 metres, depth of 3.6 metres and
pitched roof height of 9.5 metres at two storey level and 6 metres at single
storey level. It would accommodate six bedrooms with en-suite bathrooms. The

Page 90

building would be in two parts, the two storey element comprising brick and flint
facing materials and the single storey element having a traditional barn-like
appearance which would incorporate horizontal weatherboarding. It would be
located along north-west flank boundary of the site and adjacent to London
Road.
2.4 It is also proposed to extend the car park to the rear of the public access and into
an area currently used as the pub garden. A total of 27 parking spaces would be
proposed and two disabled parking spaces and the access would continue to
remain onto London Road. A cycle stand will also be incorporated.
2.5 Internal alterations and landscaping are also proposed.
2.6 In support of the application, the Applicant has submitted:


Heritage statement

2.7 Numerous amended plans have been submitted during the course of this
application. The amendments have been in consultation with the Council’s
Historic Buildings Officer in order to secure a scheme that is considered
acceptable in terms of its impact on the Grade II Listed public house. The
amended plans have led to revisions to and a reduction in scale of the external
accommodation block, as well as internal and external alterations to the main
public house.

3.0

Relevant Planning History
ADDRESS: Flat The Nags Head Public House London Road Little Kingshill
Buckinghamshire HP16 0DG
PL/19/4463/HB - Demolition of the existing two storey extension and erection of
replacement part two, part single-storey side/rear extension, in addition to the
erection of an outbuilding to form additional accommodation, internal alterations,
an extension to the existing car park and associated soft and hard landscaping,
pending consideration.

CH/2018/0266/HB - Roof extension to existing building and attached two storey
building to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen, extension to the dining room and
store. Refused permission as the proposal is not consistent with the conservation of
the Listed building due to the impact of the scale of what is proposed, and the
historic building would be overwhelmed by the addition and the harm that is caused
is not outweighed by additional public benefits.

Page 91

CH/2018/0265/FA - Roof extension to existing building and attached two storey
building to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen, extension to the dining room and
store. Refused permission for the following reasons:
1.
The proposed extension is considered to be a disproportionate addition
over and above the size of the original building, and as such, the development does
not fall into any of the categories listed in Policy GB2 of the Local Plan and
paragraphs 89 and 90 of the National Planning Policy Framework. It therefore
constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Furthermore, given the
scale of the proposed extension and the expanse of hardstanding proposed for the
new car parking area, the development would have a detrimental impact on the
openness of the Green Belt. No very special circumstances have been demonstrated
which clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt.
2.
The proposed development consists of a substantial extension which
almost doubles the size of the existing building, a large expanse of hardstanding on
land which is currently grass, and a new access onto Nags Head Lane which would
require road signs or dragons teeth to enforce a one way system. The proposal will
create a much more dominant building within the landscape and a development
which fails to conserve or enhance the rural character of the area or high landscape
quality of the AONB.
3.
This proposal is not consistent with the conservation of the listed building
due to the impact of the scale of what is proposed, the historic building would be
overwhelmed by the addition and the harm that this would cause is not outweighed
by additional public benefits. The additional hardstanding for the new parking area
and the consequent reduction of garden would also harm the setting of the listed
building. The less than substantial harm identified is not outweighed by public
benefit or securing the buildings optimum viable use.

CH/2017/0915/HB - Internal and external alterations with the erection of a building
to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen, extension to the dining room and store.
Refused permission.

CH/2017/0914/FA - Erection of a building to create 9 new bedrooms, new kitchen,
extension to dining groom and store. Refused permission.

CH/2008/0311/FA - New car park and vehicular access onto Nags Head Lane, refused
permission.

Page 92

CH/2001/1283/HB - First floor rear extension including new external stair
(amendment to Listed Building Consent CH/1999/1841/HB), conditional consent.

CH/2001/1282/FA - First floor rear extension including new external stair
(amendment to planning permission CH/1999/1840/FA) for use of whole first floor to
provide seven rooms for bed and breakfast accommodation, conditional permission.

CH/1999/1841/HB - First floor rear extension, conditional consent.

CH/1999/1840/FA - First floor rear extension, conditional permission.

CH/1980/0287/FA - Erection of single storey rear and side extension, conditional
permission.

4.0

Summary of Representations
4.1 'The Parish Council support this application to provide additional much needed
hotel accommodation in the Parish, subject only to the planning authority being
satisfied that the parking provision on site is adequate for the property if
extended as proposed, and that there is adequate provision for disabled access.'
4.2 In addition, three letters of support received which can be summarised as
follows:
- Visitors to the area and to the tennis club need more accommodation
options
-

Shortage of accommodation locally

-

More parking is required as there is currently overspill to the tennis club

-

The development would attract visitors to the District

-

Opportunities for tourism and hospitality

-

Job creation

-

Would secure future viability for The Nags Head

4.3 The Applicant has also submitted five further letters of support.

Page 93

5.0

Policy Considerations and Evaluation







National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.
National Design Guidance, October 2019
Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:
Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.
Draft Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan 2036.
Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging
Schedule

Historic environment (or Conservation Area or Listed Building Issues)
 Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
 Local Plan Saved Policies:
LB1 (Protection of special architectural or historic interest of Listed Buildings
throughout the district)
LB2 (Protection of setting of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
CA2 (Views Within, out of, or into the Conservation Areas as defined on the
Proposals Map)
5.1 The Historic Buildings Officer previously objected to the proposal on the grounds
that the scale of the proposed extension would overwhelm the historic building
and this harm would not be outweighed by public benefits. In response to the
amended proposal, the Historic Buildings Officer has worked extensively with the
Applicant to advise on a scheme that is considered to be more appropriate to the
Listed Building on site. Following discussions with the Historic Buildings Officer,
the Applicant has reduced the scale of works to the Listed public house itself, so
that the extension to this building would now be single storey with a minor
projection to the rear. It is considered that the modest nature of this extension
would have an acceptable impact on the pubic house.
5.2 In terms of the impact of the new building accommodation, the Historic Buildings
Officer has retained concerns that this building remains over large to the extent
that it could dominate the rural setting of the listed building. Comments have
also been provided in respect of the materials and glazing, although the Historic
Buildings Officer has acknowledged that appropriate materials and openings can
all be secured by way of planning conditions, should planning permission be
granted.
5.3 The concerns of the Historic Buildings Officer in relation to the size of the
detached accommodation block are noted however, the impact this block has on
the siting of the Grade II Listed public house must be weighed up against the
benefits of this scheme, namely the opportunity to increase the viability of the
business operation on site, the increase in service provision, and the increase in
employment generation. This will be considered and weighed up in the final
section of this report.

Page 94

6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1 It has been set out above that the proposed outbuilding providing additional
accommodation would dominate the rural setting of the listed building. To this
end, the Applicant has submitted both a planning statement and business
statement setting out what they consider to be the merits of the proposal.
6.2 The case can be summarised as follows:











Removal of poorly integrated existing extension
Reinstatement of a lost building that has a significant historical interest
Proposal represents good design
The site constitutes previously developed land
There is need for additional accommodation on this site
Represents sustainable development
NPPF support for economic and rural development
There is debate about the effectiveness and purpose of the Green Belt
Creation of additional habitat for wildlife through landscaping proposals
Provision of local community facility

6.3 It is noted that the NPPF does support a prosperous rural economy, with
Paragraph 83 stating that planning policies and decisions should enable the
sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas, both
through the conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings
and; the retention and development of accessible local services and community
facilities, such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open spaces,
cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship.
6.4 The Applicant has also submitted a business statement. This states that to
survive pubs must either diversify their offer and/or expand their present
facilities. Details of the existing business mix are provided, including information
about the overheads and cash flow. It is outlined that the ratio of staff costs
versus turnover have become unsustainable between 2011 and 2019. In addition
to this, the business statement sets out there is demand for hotel
accommodation locally, with the average annual occupancy of the Nags Head
being 87%. This is higher than the national average which is 72%. Further, it is
shown that revenue from letting rooms has increased 61% over the previous six
years. It is concluded that development at the site will aid the shortage of
accommodation in the Chilterns as documented by the Chilterns Tourism
Network and letters of support from local businesses; create extra employment
for up to five people; and ensure the continued viability of a community asset.
6.5 It is clear from the submitted business statement that the existing business on
site is viable and operating at a high level of occupancy. The proposed
development would allow for the business to continue to remain viable and
sustainable, as evidenced by their submitted figures in the business statement.
At the same time, expansion of the business would have benefits for the wider
economy. It is further noted that the Applicant has demonstrated their

Page 95

commitment to the business by way of securing LEP funding to support its
growth and viability going forward.
6.6 It is considered that, based on the support documents, that the Nags Head Public
House is operating a viable business model which can continue to expand in pace
with existing demand. By providing additional accommodation on site, this would
help to meet both current and future demand, and would help the public house
to diversify, supporting both sustainable rural tourism and rural employment, in
line with the provisions of the NPPF.
6.7 Throughout the course of this application, the Applicant has submitted a number
of amended plans in an attempt to overcome the concerns raised by the Historic
Buildings Officer. Reductions have been made to the scale and nature of works to
be undertaken to the Listed Building itself, and the resultant single storey rear
extension is considered to be acceptable. However, the Historic Buildings Officer
retains concerns in respect of the scale of the separate accommodation block as
it is considered that it could dominate the rural setting of the Listed building.
These concerns must be weighed up against the merits of the scheme, namely
the opportunity to increase the viability of the business operation on site, the
increase in service provision, and the increase in employment generation. It has
already been set out above that the business is operating at high capacity and
seeks to expand in order to secure its long term viability. Securing the long-term
viability of the public house and business is in the interests of the Grade II listed
building as it would allow the public house to remain in use and therefore be
maintained. Although there are concerns about the size of the accommodation
block, justification has been provided for its size in terms of the viability of the
public house. In addition, it has been sited at the flank boundary of the site
where it would be set back from the highway to lessen its prominence in views
from the public highway, whilst being sited close to the other development on
site so as to limit the sprawl of development into the surrounding countryside, to
the detriment of the open Green Belt and AONB. Furthermore, the Historic
Buildings Officer has stated that planning conditions would mitigate harm by way
of ensuring that the proposed building is appropriately erected and faced, if
planning permission is granted. For this reason, taking into account the benefits
of the scheme, and the fact that planning conditions can secure a satisfactory
appearance for the accommodation block in line with the advice of the Historic
Buildings Officer, it is considered that the benefits of the scheme would outweigh
the harm caused by the accommodation block, in terms of its scale undermining
the setting of the Listed building.
6.8 Consequently, on balance, it is considered that the benefits of the proposal are
sufficient to outweigh any harm identified.
6.9 In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. In addition, Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the
Town and Country Planning Act relating to the determination of planning

Page 96

applications and states that in dealing with planning applications, the authority
shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the
application (such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations
6.10 In this instance, it is considered that the proposal has had appropriate regard
to the policies of the Local Development Plan and National Planning Policy
Framework and it is considered that the proposal is acceptable.
6.11 Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must
have due regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which
may result from socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not
considered that this proposal would disadvantage any sector of society to a
harmful extent.

7.0

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach
decision-taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments.

7.2

The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive
manner by offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate
updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of
their application.

7.3

The applicant has agreed to pre-commencement conditions.

7.4

In this instance the applicant/agent


was provided with pre-application advice,



the applicant/agent was updated of any issues after the initial site visit,



The applicant was provided the opportunity to submit a number of
amendments to the scheme/address issues.



The application was considered by the Planning Committee where the
applicant/agent had the opportunity to speak to the committee and
promote the application.

Page 97

Recommendation: Conditional Consent
Subject to the following conditions:1.

General time limit

2.
Before any construction works above ground level commence, details and samples
of the external facing and roofing materials to be used for the accommodation block and
extension to The Nags Head Public House hereby permitted shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building and extension shall be
constructed using the approved materials and all new brickwork should be laid in a
traditional bond (no stretcher bond).
Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is not detrimental to the
character of the locality, the AONB or detrimental to the Grade II Listed building.
3.
Before any construction works above ground level commence, large scale elevation
plans and sections shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. These plans shall show the proposed eaves and verge details and new windows
and doors in situ. The development shall only be erected in accordance with the approved
details and no alterations shall take place thereafter, unless otherwise first agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority
Reason: To ensure that the development does not harm the appearance or character of the
Listed Building on site.
4.
Before any construction works above ground level commence, full details of the
propose flue/chimney for the kitchen extract, including elevations, materials and details of
any extraction equipment, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be erected in accordance with the approved
details and no alterations shall take place thereafter, unless otherwise first agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not harm the appearance or character of the
Listed Building on site.
5.
No amendments to existing or installation of new external pipework, flues, vents or
extracts shall take place within or around the site unless first agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not harm the appearance or character of the
Listed Building on site.
6.

All new external rainwater goods shall be painted cast metal.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not harm the appearance or character of the
Listed Building on site.

Page 98

7.
Approved plans:
Nags Head ground floor main 32-15-16

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head main N and E elevation 32-15-18

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head main S and W elevation 32-15-19

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head first floor main 32-15-17

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head site plan 32-15-21

- 10.08.2020

Nags Head acc block 32-15-20

- 10.08.2020

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

- 03.08.2020

Page 99

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Parish/Town Council Comments
The Parish Council support this application to provide additional much needed hotel
accommodation in the Parish, subject only to the planning authority being satisfied that the
parking provision on site is adequate for the property if extended as proposed, and that
there is adequate provision for disabled access.
Consultation Responses
Historic Buildings Officer: I have finally had an opportunity to study the revised plans and
have the following comments.
My previous advice on the amended plans submitted on 28th July is below in the email chain
for clarity.
The new building accommodation block is considerably longer bigger than the previous
scheme which I considered to be over large; the rooms are all extremely generous in size;
there are now three, three bed rooms proposed (previously there were just 2), and all
rooms still have baths rather than showers. The two storey section is more than 2 metres
longer than is necessary for good sized bedrooms, and the single storey element is now over
long and even if reduced by 4 metres would still provide generous sized bedrooms.
I am afraid there is still a serious concern that the new block would dominate the rural
setting of the listed building in this open rural setting, and it is considered that the
accommodation required could be fitted into a much smaller new building.
With regard to the details of the proposal; the flintwork on the south elevation of the would
need to be broken up into smaller panels by brickwork to provide visible support; perhaps
this could be agreed by condition? The use of pre-cast flint panels would not be considered
acceptable; Flint should be fractured or knapped with the dressed face exposed and set in a
lime mortar- I would suggest a sample panel be required in association with the brickwork
to ensure the correct details/ materials.
The first floor left flank window on the older part of the building (facing the junction) has
been changed at some time since the building was listed. It was agreed that a window
matching the original design would be reinstated here, but this is still not shown on the
amended drawings. Large scale elevations and sections should be provided and the
reinstatement conditioned. On the main building the windows should be single glazed;
elsewhere the thin 12mm double glazing would be acceptable as this would enable narrow
through glazing bars to be used. New doors should have the traditional wide planks. All new
brickwork should be laid in a traditional bond (no stretcher bond), with local matching bricks

Page 100

I have been asked to provide conditions if the application is approved;













Large scale elevations and sections shall be submitted and approved in writing;
showing the proposed eaves and verge details; to ensure the details are compatible
with the listed building and its setting.
Large scale elevation and sections shall be submitted and approved in writing
showing the proposed new windows and doors, drawn in situ.
Before the use of the new extension, the first floor window on the south elevation of
the front historic part of the building shall be fitted in accordance with the approved
plans.
The proposed flint panels shall be formed of fractured or knapped with the dressed
face exposed and set in a lime mortar. Note; the use of pre-cast flint panels would
not be considered acceptable. A large scale elevation showing the flintwork with
additional brick work to support the flint pales shall be submitted for approval in
writing.
All new brickwork should be laid in a traditional bond (no stretcher bond), with local
matching bricks
A sample panel showing the flint and brickwork, no smaller that 1meter square shall
be provided for approval and retained on site for the duration of the works.
Traditional deep feather edged boarding, stained black shall be used for the single
storey element of the detached block- samples to be approved
The roofs shall be covered in hand made plain clay tiles to match those on the main
building. (the single storey element may be natural slate???)
All new external rainwater goods shall be painted cast metal.
Detailed elevation drawings showing the proposed chimney for the kitchen extract
shall be approved in writing
Full details of any new external pipework, flues vents, extracts etc shall be submitted
and agreed in writing; for the avoidance of doubt

Representations
Other Representations
Three letters of support received which can be summarised as follows:
 Visitors to the area and to the tennis club need more accommodation options
 Shortage of accommodation locally
 More parking is required as there is currently overspill to the tennis club
 The development would attract visitors to the District
 Opportunities for tourism and hospitality
 Job creation
 Would secure future viability for The Nags Head

The Applicant has also submitted five further letters of support.

Page 101

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 102

Agenda Item 8

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/20/0335/FA

Proposal:

Change of use and conversion to two dwellings (C3) to include
external and internal alterations and rear extension.
Demolition of porch and a shed. Changes to windows and
doors and addition of side rooflights and provision of on site
parking.

Site Location:

The Swan Public House
Blackwell Hall Lane
Ley Hill
Buckinghamshire
HP5 1UT

Applicant:

Mr N and Mrs C Byatt

Case Officer:

Margaret Smith

Ward affected:

Chess Valley

Parish Council:

Latimer & Ley Hill

Valid date:

13 February 2020

Determination date:

28 August 2020

Recommendation:

Refuse permission

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1

This application proposes the change of use of this Public House to residential
use and its conversion into two dwellings including internal and external
alterations and a 2 storey rear extension. The application also proposes the

Page 103

subdivision of the existing curtilage of the Public House separating off land in the
rear ‘half’ of the existing curtilage so that it falls outside of the application site
and subdividing the remaining ‘half’ to propose a garden and 3 parking spaces to
the front for the proposed Unit on the south side of the building, and 2 parking
spaces and an enclosed garden for the proposed Unit on the north side of the
building.

2.0

1.2

The Council’s expert Surveyor has considered the application submissions
seeking to set out those exceptional circumstances as to why the loss of this
Community facility should be allowed, in the context of Core Policy CS29 and has
concluded that although the property was advertised at an unrealistically high
price, the only genuine interest was for the use of the building as a Day Nursery,
which was refused. Given the particular circumstances pertaining to this Public
House, the Council’s Surveyor has concluded that it would be difficult to defend
the retention of this Public House.

1.3

However, the Council’s Historic Buildings Officer has a fundamental objection to
the proposed subdivision of this property and the scale of the proposed
extensions and the fact that the proposed change of use would preclude general
access to members of the public. The scale of the proposed extensions would
also result in an overbearing impact on those adjacent properties to the north
and a loss of their residential amenity. As such, this application is recommended
for refusal.

1.4

Cllr Andrew Garth has called in this application regardless of the
recommendation for consideration by committee.

1.5

Recommendation – refusal.

Description of Proposed Development
2.1

2.2

This application relates to The Swan Public House located on the west side of
Blackwell Hall Lane, Ley Hill. The site lies within the open Green Belt and is
Grade II listed (listed in 1984) dating from the 16th and 17th century. The
building has been in use as a Public House since at least 1843 and prior to this
was originally three cottages, with two built in approx. 1520 and the third in
1680. The site is surrounded by mainly residential development but is sited
directly next to an existing pub (The Crown Public House). The first-floor of the
pub is currently used for ancillary accommodation. The Swan Public House was
designated as an Asset of Community Value on the 26th November 2018.
Permitted development rights for this building are therefore removed.
The application is accompanied by:
a)

A Planning Statement

Page 104

2.3

3.0

b)

Heritage Assessment

c)

Report by Chartered Surveyor

d)

Design and Access Statement

Amended plans were received on 22 May, 2020

Relevant Planning History
PL/20/0336/HB – Pending Consideration - Listed Building Consent for: Change of use
and conversion to two dwellings (C3) to include external and internal alterations and
rear extension. Demolition of porch and a shed. Changes to windows and doors and
addition of side rooflights and provision of on site parking.
CH/2018/0231/HB – Conditional consent 23 April 2019 - Internal alterations to
facilitate change of use of The Swan Public House to use class D1 (Non-residential
institutions - nursery).
CH/2017/2353/FA – Refused 25 April 2019 - Change of use of The Swan Pub to use
class D1 (Non-residential institutions - nursery).
CH/2016/1250/DM – No Objection 26 July 2016 - Prior notification for approval of the
demolition of double garages.
CH/1993/1315/HB – Conditional consent 6 January 1994 - Alterations, single storey
extension to dining room on south and west elevations, new pergola, external
staircase on north elevation to serve first floor flat and additional car parking.
CH/1992/0401/HB - Conditional consent 1 May 1992 - Single storey rear extension to
provide store.
CH/1992/0400/FA - Conditional Permission 1 May 1992 - Single storey rear extension
to provide store.
CH/1985/0675/HB - Conditional consent 7 June 1985 - Erection of a single storey side
extension
CH/1985/0623/FA - Conditional Permission 6 June 1985 - The erection of a single
storey side extension
CH/1985/0048/HB – Refused Consent 8 March 1985 - The erection of a single storey
side extension for use as an eating area, ancillary to the public house.

Page 105

CH/1985/0047/FA – Refused Permission 8 March 1985 - The erection of a single storey
side extension for use as an existing area, ancillary to the public house.
CH/1982/2045/FA - Conditional Permission - 21 January 1983 - Construction of single
storey extension to form internal male and female public toilets and additional beer
storage area.
3.1

4.0

The development has been screened under the Environmental Impact
Assessment Regulations and the local planning authority has concluded that an
environmental impact assessment will not be required in this case.

Summary of Representations
4.1

Letters of objections have been received from 52 addresses and the Campaign
for Rear Ale (CAMRA) and the Chiltern Society Heritage Group on the following
grounds:
 Principle of loss of Public House;
 Contrary to development plan policies including policy EP10 of the emerging
Draft Local Plan and adopted Local Plan GB11;
 Loss of public access to this historic building;
 The Ley Hill Community Pub Ltd have advanced and credible plans for bidding
for the pub and running it;
 The existing owners have refused to engage positively with members of the
community to enable its continued use as a Public House;
 The pub garden has not been used to its potential, restricted opening hours,
precluded dog walkers and hikers;
 The pub has been allowed to run down;
 The asking price for the Pub was too high;
 The marketing was deficient;
 Reference to cricket club licensed sales is erroneous because it is only open
when matches are played;
 The Council’s Surveyors did not undertake a site visit;
 The application was submitted before Covid 19 and this pub has the
advantage of a large rear garden, a front garden and is opposite a common;
 The Council’s Surveyors did not appreciate the fact that the Pub did not fit
their 3 models because it is frequented by visitors to the countryside and is a
community pub;
 There is no substance to claims that The Bellcote/The Lazy Pig has caused
business to fall and that is a chain and has had to be rebranded;

Page 106

 This Public House has been deliberately allowed to decline;
 The Crown and The Swan complemented each other and worked together;
 The owners did not allow a cash buyer to further their interest in purchasing
the Pub;
 Loss of employment opportunity for local young people;
 Loss of access by the public to this historic building;
 Loss of a community facility;
 Detrimental to the listed building and Conservation Area;
 Loss of residential amenity to adjoining properties including 65 Blackwell Hall
Lane, Crown Cottages.

5.0

Policy Considerations and Evaluation







National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.
National Design Guidance, October 2019
Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:
Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.
Draft Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan 2036.
Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule

Principle and Location of Development
Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy),
CS2 (Amount and distribution of residential development 2006-2026),
CS3 (Amount and distribution of non-residential development 2006-2026)
CS29 (Community)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GB2 (Development in general in the Green Belt)
GB5 (Residential Development in the Green Belt in Settlements As Defined on the
Proposals Map)
GB11 (Re-use of existing Non-Residential Buildings in the Green Belt for Residential
Use (Class C3)
GB24 (Redevelopment or Change of Use of Buildings used for the provision of Local
Community Facilities in the Green Belt)
5.1

This application proposes the change of use of this Public House to residential
use by way of its conversion into two dwellings. In this connection internal and
external alterations are proposed. As such this application proposes the loss of
the existing Community Facility which is available to the general public.

Page 107

5.2

Adopted Local Plan policy GB24 states that the change of use of such local
community facilities will not be allowed unless a convenient replacement is
proposed, which is not applicable to this proposal, or it can be demonstrated
that the facility is no longer required for any other community use in the village
and adjoining area. Core Policy CS29: Community states that the loss of
community facilities will only be permitted in exceptional circumstances.

5.3

In this regard, a report has been submitted with this application from a Fellow of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors setting out the marketing of the
application property by two agencies as a Public House. The key points raised by
this report include the conclusion that the initial asking price was ‘optimistic’,
but that no offers were made, other than one from an individual who wished to
use the premises as an office and from an individual who wished to use the
property as a day nursery, a planning application was submitted for a proposed
change of use in 2018.

5.4

That Surveyor’s report concludes that the apparent lack of interest to purchase
the Public House for the continuation of that use is due to a number of factors
including competition from the adjacent Public House ‘The Crown’ and also the
sale of alcoholic liquor and food at the Cricket Club opposite. Other factors
highlighted in that report include macro-economic effects such as Brexit,
changes in legislation such as an increase in the minimum wage, and increased
business costs. This submitted report concludes that in the market and trading
conditions at the time of the submission of the application, The Swan is no
longer capable of operating profitably and is no longer saleable as a Public
House.

5.5

To scrutinise the submitted Surveyor’s report, the Council has attained its own
expert advice in this regard. The Council’s Surveyor has similarly advised that the
asking price was unrealistic but, nevertheless, it would seem that there was no
genuine interest or lower offers, other than as an office or as a Day Nursery, as
stated above.

5.6

A number of the objections received refer to an apparent failure of the
marketing agents to respond to those enquiring about purchasing. The Council’s
Surveyor has advised that sensitive financial information would only be disclosed
to those showing a genuine interest in purchasing, having already visited the
premises, and that it would be interest of the marketing agents to secure a
relatively quick sale as a Public House. Also it is a fact that following interest by a
Day Nursery a planning application was received, indicating that the applicant
for that Day Nursery did receive the relevant marketing information.

Page 108

5.7

Consequently, the Council’s Surveyor has concluded that this Public House was
marketed appropriately, albeit that the asking price was too high, although that
is often the case and does not preclude lower offers. The Council’s expert has
also given particular consideration to the viability of The Swan as a trading
entity, having regard to the current condition and layout of the Property, the
likely level of business and profit it may potentially generate, and has then
determined whether the profit level would be considered sufficient by a
potential operator. The Council’s expert has concluded that the pub would
currently have to be sold within the trade as a ‘life-style’ business, where a price
is determined by reference to the building value with an adjustment for trade.
Apparently, such a deal would have to be financed from cash resources as the
majority of lenders would expect a loan to be covered by a secure trading
position. The Council’s expert has concluded that this would be likely to have a
detrimental impact on the achievable price and is probably the principal reason
that a trade sale has not been achieved.

5.8

With regard to viability, the Council’s expert has concluded that the limiting
factors highlighted make any major investment for business purposes a notably
higher-than-average financial risk. Coupled with the costs of potential
refurbishment and working capital, the viability of the Property as a public house
will be entirely dependent upon the price for which it can be acquired and a
consistent minimum level of business. The Council’s Surveyor has also concluded
that the location of this Public House is such that an operator would have to run
a business strongly biased towards food sales, promoted regionally rather than
just locally, but he concludes that the entire site does not appear to have
sufficient land to provide parking facilities.

5.9

Furthermore, the Council’s Surveyor considers that the social distancing
protocols as a result of Covid 19 will result in the permanent closure of a
significant number of public houses, restaurants and similar venues and
businesses, and that smaller public houses with significant competition, such as
The Swan, will experience the greatest pressure and face the highest risk of
closure.

5.10 Given the conclusions of the Council’s expert advisor, it is noted that the
marketing price was unrealistically high, but notwithstanding that it is also noted
that there were no offers other than as an office and a Day Nursery. Also, it is
clearly in the interest of an agent to secure a sale, but that was not forthcoming.
5.11 Many objections have been received regarding the proposed loss of this Public
House but given the advice of the Council’s own expert advisor, it would be
difficult to defend a refusal of this application on the basis that exceptional
circumstances have not been raised in this instance.

Page 109

5.12 With regard to the principle of the proposed change of use from a Public House
to a Class C3 residential use in the Green Belt, the NPPF states that in principle
the re-use of existing permanent and substantially constructed buildings may be
appropriate development providing they preserve the openness of the Green
Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it. This
building is of permanent and substantial construction and the proposed change
of use would be likely to result in less vehicular activity, fewer parked cars within
the site and as such would preserve the openness of the Green Belt and its
purposes.
5.13 In order to convert the existing Public House into 2 dwellings, extensions are
proposed to the rear and northern side following the removal of the existing
rear conservatory and rear fire escape. The proposed extensions would
introduce new built development at 1st floor level above the existing kitchendiner and former conservatory and the eaves and ridge height of that extension
would align with that of the existing bathroom. This extension would not be
needed if the building were proposed to be converted into 1 residential unit.
Furthermore, policy GB11 considers extensions to statutorily listed buildings to
be acceptable in principle if the conversion would facilitate its retention but
would not harm its special interest. This proposed extension is not considered
essential to facilitate the retention of this building and it would harm its special
interest, as such the proposed extension conflicts with policy GB11.

Transport matters and parking
Core Strategy Policies:
CS25 (Dealing with the impact of new development on the transport network)
CS26 (Requirements of new development)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
TR2 (Highway aspects of planning applications throughout the district)
TR3 (Access and road layout throughout the district)
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the district)
TR12 (Relaxation of parking standards throughout the district)
TR14 (Retention of existing areas of off-street vehicle parking throughout the district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
5.14 The Highways Officer has raised no objection to these proposals, which would
result in a reduction in vehicular activity.
5.15 The amended proposals include the provision of 2 off-street parking spaces for
the dwelling proposed to occupy the northern part of this building and 3 offstreet parking spaces for the dwelling proposed to occupy the southern part of

Page 110

this building. Manoeuvring into the 2 spaces would only be possible in the event
of the proposed gates being opened and manoeuvring into the 3 spaces would
be frustrated by the fabric of the building opposite the 3rd space, but there is
ample room to provide on-street parking for the 2 units proposed. As such, the
proposal would be acceptable in highways and parking terms.

Raising the quality of place making and design
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
CS22 (Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty)
CS29 (Community)
CS32 (Green infrastructure)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
GC14 (Access for disabled people to developments used by the public throughout the
district)
H11 (Distance between flank elevation(s) of a proposed multi-storey dwelling and
boundary of dwelling's curtilage throughout the district)
H13 (Extensions to dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt and in
Policy GB4 and GB5 areas in the Green Belt - general policy)
H15 (Design and siting of extensions throughout the district)
H16 (Distance between multi-storey or upper floor side and/or rear extensions and
boundary of dwelling curtilage throughout the district)
H17 (Distance between single storey side extensions and boundary of dwelling
curtilage throughout the district)
H18 (Dormer windows on dwellings throughout the district)
H20 (Ancillary residential buildings (domestic garages, workshops, etc.) in the built-up
areas excluded from the Green Belt)
5.16 This application proposes the change of use of this Public House to 2 residential
units. As stated above, in order to convert the existing Public House into 2
dwellings, extensions are proposed to the rear and northern side following the
removal of the existing rear conservatory and rear fire escape. The proposed
extensions would introduce new built development at 1st floor level above the
existing kitchen-diner and former conservatory and the eaves and ridge height
of that extension would align with that of the existing bathroom. This extension
would not be needed if the building were proposed to be converted into 1
residential unit. Furthermore, policy GB11 considers extensions to statutorily
listed buildings to be acceptable in principle if the conversion would facilitate its
retention but would not harm its special interest. This proposed extension is not
considered essential to facilitate the retention of this building and it would harm

Page 111

its special interest as cited by the Council’s Historic Buildings Officer, as such the
proposed extension conflicts with policy GB11.
5.17 Also, policy GC1 of the adopted Local Plan states that extensions to existing
buildings should be designed to respect the scale and proportions of the host
building but, in conflict, with this policy the proposed extension would be
disproportionate to the scale and proportions. The existing rear additions are
subordinate to the main frontage building, whereas the proposed extension
would not be viewed as being subservient.
5.18 It is also noted that this application proposes the subdivision of this site into 3
planning units, by virtue of the erection of an enclosure within the curtilage of
the listed building to separate that rear section from the application site. These
enclosures within the curtilage of a listed building do not constitute permitted
development and detract from the setting and character of this listed building.

Amenity of existing and future residents
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
GC7 (Noise-generating developments throughout the district)
GC8 (Residential and other noise sensitive development in areas of high noise level
throughout the district)
H12 (Private residential garden areas throughout the district)
H13 (Extensions to dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt and in
Policy GB4 and GB5 areas in the Green Belt - general policy)
H14 (Safeguarding the amenities of neighbours in relation to extensions throughout
the district)
5.19 Objections have been received pertaining to the resultant impact on the
amenities of those adjacent properties to the north comprising 65 Blackwell Hall
Lane and Crown Cottages. Currently, at 1st floor level there is a west facing
bathroom window, a fire escape staircase and staircase window that afford
angled views towards the rear of the garden of the Crown Cottage dwellings,
whereas the proposals would result in the introduction of the sole windows
serving 2 bedrooms at a distance of only 6 and 7 metres from the rear of the
garden of the Crown Cottage dwellings and 14 metres from the corner of the
garden of 65 Blackwell Hall Lane.
5.20 In addition, the proposed development would result in an obtrusive 2 storey
elevation only 4m to 7m to the south of the rear boundary of the Crown
Cottages gardens, which would be overdominant, although it would be difficult
to substantiate a reason for refusal based on a loss of sunlight and daylight.

Page 112

5.21 The proposed units would have sufficient private amenity space, although the
proposed curtilages have been artificially created and their limited size is as a
result of the application choosing to separate off the rear part of the site as a
separate planning unit, which would have a retained lawful use as a Public
House but with no associated building.
5.22 These proposals are considered unacceptable on the basis of the proposed
impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties.

Community facilities
Core Strategy Policies:
CS29 (Community)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GB24 (Redevelopment or change of use of buildings used for the provision of local
community facilities in the Green Belt)
5.23 As considered in detail above, many objections have been received regarding
the proposed loss of this Public House but given the advice of the Council’s own
expert advisor, it would be difficult to defend a refusal of this application on the
basis that exceptional circumstances have not been raised in this instance.

Historic environment (or Conservation Area or Listed Building Issues)
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
LB1 (Protection of special architectural or historic interest of Listed Buildings
throughout the district)
LB2 (Protection of setting of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
LB3 (Demolition of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
LB4 (Change of use of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
5.24 The Council’s Conservation and Design Officer has considered these proposals
and has advised the following:
‘The heritage assessment is the impact on the significance the special historic
and architectural interest of the listed building.
Significance
The Swan PH dates from the 16th century. The northern two timber framed bays
were constructed in 1520, with the southern brick wing added in 1680. Part of
the building was used as a PH from at least 1843, and by 1881, the entire

Page 113

building was used as a pub. The building sits on the edge of the common; an
area of public open space on the edge of the village, and views across the green
to the building and its open rural setting are part of its significance.
This attractive composition of historic buildings is prominently located facing
onto the common. The earlier timber framed building has a timber fronted gable
to the right with a thin brick 17th century stack behind, with the main entrance
in the central bay. To the left/ south is the later brick wing, the gable end of
which faces the road. Although the building has been altered over the years,
the building retains many original features including the exposed timber frame,
a narrow winding staircase, original plan form and many old doors etc.
The building has also been designated as ‘an asset of community value.’

Description of proposed works
This building has been in use a public house since at least 1843, but following
the refusal of the application last year for the change of use to a children’s
nursery, it is now proposed to divide the property in half to provide two semidetached houses.
The application as originally submitted also included the addition of five
allocated parking spaces in the front garden, and a single story extension,
including a conservatory at the rear of the northern cottage, a new rooflight on
the modern front extension on the front/south side, and the rear garden of the
public house had been subdivided to leave a plot at the rear and then further
subdivided to provide small rear gardens for the two cottages.
Amended plans submitted on 22nd May proposed the relocation of the parking
for the northern cottage to the rear and also proposed a substantial two storey
extension to the northern cottage to be located at the rear, but there are still
three parking spaces located within the front garden.

Assessment
Following the refusal of the applications to use the building as a nursery, it is
now proposed to convert the existing public house to two semi-detached
houses. There are three staircases in the building at present; one is an ancient
narrow winding stair alongside the main stack a second in the northern part of
the building is an external fire escape. The third is in the southern side of the
building and its position appears to fit in with the original plan form from
evidence of surviving doors etc. To facilitate the new use a replacement
staircase is proposed in the rear of the brick southern wing for the use of the

Page 114

southern cottage, but it was designed for the previously proposed nursery use
and appears to be out of scale with the cottage. Consideration should be given
to retaining all or part of the existing southern staircase and first floor original
plan form. It was originally proposed that the northern cottage would use the
ancient, narrow winder stair the fire escape on the north elevation would be
retained, with just a conservatory extension at the west end of the rear wing of
the northern cottage. However, the amended plans submitted in May proposed
the removal of this unsightly structure and proposed a new internal staircase, in
the existing two story rear wing of the northern cottage, however, one again too
large for the scale of the cottage.
The amended plans however, also include a substantial two storey extension
beyond the relocated staircase, to provide an additional bedroom and family
bathroom at first floor level, rather than the subdivision of the older front part
of the building into small rooms and corridors. The rear wing of the proposed
southern cottage finishes at the west end with a single storey lean-to, however,
it is proposed to extend the rear wing of the proposed northern cottage with a
two storey extension around 3.5 metres longer than the adjoining two storey
rear wing; the resulting very long extension would be out of scale with the
original building. The eaves height of the proposed northern rear wing is also
significantly higher than the southern wing, giving an awkward juxtaposition and
an awkward valley gutter junction. The design of the proposed two storey
extension is considered bulky and incongruous, not helped by the lower ground
levels towards the rear of the property. The eaves are higher than all the
adjoining roofs (except the wing it is attached to), and the normal convention of
subservience for extensions to listed buildings has been disregarded. A jettied?
brick gable has been added in at first floor on the north elevation, presumably to
break up the long expanse of the rear wing, but again this is an incongruous
feature which would detract from the significance of the historic building. The
proposed new windows are considered too large and not in character with the
historic building. This extension would be viewed with the main listed building
and would be particularly prominent in the gap between this and the adjoining
public house and the new building would block views of the countryside beyond.
It is proposed to add a new lantern light on top of the concealed flat roof of the
existing toilet block. However, no existing sections have been provided and it is
unclear if the lantern will be visible. This would not be considered acceptable as
it would draw attention to the flat roof.
The subdivision/ reduction in the rear garden of the property is also a concern.
No application has been made for the proposed fencing to subdivide the
property and a separate new property on the rear plot may cause harm to the
setting of the listed building. There is also a concern that not sufficient space has

Page 115

been retained for two properties to function properly. Three new car parking
spaces are proposed in the currently landscaped side/ front garden; these will be
intrusive and cause harm to the open countryside setting of the listed building
and the enjoyment of the common. All the allocated parking should be located
at the rear. It is understood that three parking spaces will be required for both
properties. Any other new structures, eg bin stores and cycle sheds should all be
located in the rear garden and will require planning permission.
It is understood that the conversion of this building from a public house to two
residential properties would be considered by Building Regulations to be a
‘change of use’ requiring the building to be upgrade for means of escape and for
noise and thermal upgrading. No evidence has been provided by the applicants
that this will not be the case, and upgrading the building eg to comply with
modern thermal efficiency targets or to provide fire and sound insulation
between the properties could cause harm to the significance of the listed
building.
Even if the conversion of this public house and ‘asset of community value’ to one
or two residential units could be undertaken without physical harm to the
significance of the designated heritage asset, the sub-division and change of use
of this historic public house to a non-public use is a concern as this social and
community link with the area is an important part of the significance of the
building the loss of which would cause ‘less than substantial harm’ to the
significance of the designated heritage asset.
It is considered that the scale and design of the proposed extension, the
alterations, loss of historic fabric, loss of the original plan form, loss of the social
and community significance and the harm to the setting due to the proposed
allocated parking and fencing etc, would cause ‘less than substantial harm’ to
the significance of the designated heritage asset. Paragraph 196 therefore
applies; in applying this policy/ guidance it is considered that no public benefits
outweigh that harm. Paragraphs 184/189/192/193 have all also been considered
in this advice.’

Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
Core Strategy Policies:
CS31 (Infrastructure)
5.25 The development is a type of development where CIL would be chargeable.

Page 116

6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1

In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. In addition, Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the
Town and Country Planning Act relating to the determination of planning
applications and states that in dealing with planning applications, the authority
shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations

6.2

As set out above it is considered that the proposed development would not
accord with adopted Local Plan policies GC1, GC3, GB2, GB11, LB1, LB2, and LB4
and Core Policy CS20.

6.3

Human Rights
The following recommendation is made having regard to the above and also to
the content of the Human Rights Act 1998.

7.0

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach
decision-taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments. As such, the opportunity was given for
amended proposals to be submitted but those received are still unacceptable to
the Council as set out above.
In this instance


The applicant/agent chose not to seek any pre-application advice,



the applicant/agent was updated of issues after the initial site visit,



The applicant was provided the opportunity to submit amendments to the
scheme/address issues.



The application was determined without delay.



The applicant was informed/ advised how the proposal did not accord with
the development plan, that no material considerations are apparent to
outweigh these matters and provided the opportunity to amend the
application or provide further justification in support of it.

Page 117

8.0

Recommendation: Refuse

1.

It is considered that the scale and design of the proposed extension, the alterations,
loss of historic fabric, loss of the original plan form, loss of the social and community
significance and the harm to the setting due to the proposed allocated parking and
fencing etc, would cause harm to the significance of the designated heritage asset.
Paragraph 196 therefore applies, but in applying this policy/ guidance it is considered
that no public benefits outweigh that harm. Consequently, the proposal conflicts with
Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the Planning (Listed
Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and policies LB1 and LB2 of the Chiltern
District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May
2011), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011 and ‘Managing Significance
in Decision-Taking in the Historic Environment – 2015, and Making Changes to
Heritage Assets – 2016.

2.

It is considered that the scale and design of the proposed extension would be of a
scale, height and design that is out of keeping with this Grade II Listed Building. As
such, the proposed development would appear overly obtrusive and would adversely
affect the character and appearance of the area contrary to the National Planning
Policy Framework, the National Design Guide, Policy GC1, LB1 and LB2 of The Chiltern
District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May
2001) Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, Policy CS20 of The Core
Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011 and policies DM DP13 of the
emerging Chiltern and South Bucks District Local Plan.

3.

It is considered that the scale and design of the proposed extension would be of a
scale, height and design that would appear overly obtrusive and would adversely
affect the residential amenities of 1 – 5 Crown Cottages contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework, the National Design Guide, Policy GC1 and GC3 of The
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, Policy CS20 of The
Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011 and policies DM DP13 and
DM DP 16 of the emerging Chiltern and South Bucks District Local Plan.

Page 118

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Latimer and Ley Hill Parish Council:

Objection as follows:

‘Thank you for consulting us in respect of the above application. I write to confirm that
Latimer & Ley Hill Parish Council wishes to strongly object to the above two planning
applications on the following grounds:
• Contrary to Development Plan • Detriment to Listed Building • Other Loss of Amenities •
Other non-planning reasons • Traffic / Parking
No rationale has been put forward to demonstrate the exceptional circumstances of this
case. The previous application avoided this Policy as it was considered the Nursery also fell
under the bracket of a ‘community facility’ however this is not the case this time round.
Local Plan Policy GB11 states The Council will only consider the change of use of a non
residential, listed building to residential as not ‘inappropriate development in the Green
Belt’ where the conversion would not cause harm to its special interest. This Policy does not
require demonstration of ‘significant’ or ‘more than substantial’ harm. It just refers to the
word ‘harm’. The Applicant’s Heritage Assessment confirms this will be the case in
Paragraph 4.2 ‘The loss of its current use would mean that the communal and social
connection The Swan has with the Ley Hill area would be lost and so would result in less
than substantial harm’.
Local Plan Policy GB24 states ‘In the Green Belt the Council will not allow the
redevelopment or change of use of a building or land which is in use, or was last used for,
local community purposes as defined in Policy GB23, unless: a replacement building or land
can be provided in an equally convenient location that complies with Policy GB23; or it can
be demonstrated to the Council that the facility is no longer 2 required for any other
community use in the village and adjoining area where the facility is located.’
Notwithstanding the marketing and viability evidence submitted and given the strong local
opposition to the application we feel that they have not demonstrated the facility is ‘no
longer required’ for community use in the village.
The new Local Plan 2036 includes two relevant Policies:
• Policy DP2 highlights the importance of the social and cultural benefits of Designated
Heritage Assets • Policy EP10 states permission will be granted for Change of Use from a
public house providing: • all reasonable efforts have been made to market the premises for
its existing use in accordance with Appendix EP1 and no other potential occupier can be
found. • all reasonable efforts have been made to improve the operation and management
of the business or facility. • evidence of non-viability is submitted. • it is demonstrated that,
in the case of the loss of a public house, suitable alternative public houses exist to meet the
needs of the local community.
Lastly, National Planning Policy requires any harm to Listed Buildings to be clearly and
convincingly justified:
• National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) – Paragraph 194 requires any harm to a
designated heritage asset to be clearly and convincingly justified. • National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) – Paragraph 196 requires any less than substantial harm to a designated

Page 119

heritage asset to be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. In Paragraph 4.2 of The Heritage Assessment it
is suggested that the harm caused by the loss of the social and communal connection to Ley
Hill ‘will be outweighed by the benefit of converting the building back to its original use as
cottages.’ The Parish Council strongly disagrees with this reasoning and apparent
justification: o The Swan has been a pub for the entirety of the villages current living
memory (i.e. well over 140+ years at least) therefore the supposed ‘beneficiaries’ of this
change of use have never known it as cottages and there is no demand or appetite for it, in
fact quite the opposite.
• The building was in use as a pub when it was Listed as a Designated Heritage Asset (in
1984) and the function ‘Public House’ is included in the text of the Listing. • The pub
(including the function not the just the building fabric) has been approved as an Asset of
Community Value (ACV).
• Building uses change over time and the Heritage Value of a building must take this into
account. The social and cultural value of The Swan is heavily embedded in the function of
the pub. No-one would argue the Tate Modern would ‘benefit’ by being converted back into
an oil-fired Power Station or that the O2 would ‘benefit’ from returning to a single large
exhibition hall just because they were originally built as such. The original use of The Swan
as ‘cottages’ is convenient to this application but is not a show-stopper in terms of heritage
value assessment.
• As made clear by the strong local opposition and the different uses proposed (first a day
nursery and now residential) this and the previous application have clearly been driven by
commercial motives, not by a commitment to public benefits or recognising the value of the
socio-cultural importance of the building to the village.
• The Swan, a Grade II listed building, has been an ale house since the 16th century and a
pub since the mid -1800s when pubs were first designated
• It has been very much the community hub of the village over the years and extremely
popular with residents, village clubs e.g. Cricket and Rotary Clubs and parents and staff from
local schools
• The Swan has had a Darts, Quiz, Cribbage and Domino teams in the past attracting both
locals and visitors to the pub and offering a valuable social service to people
• The location of the pub attracts walkers and cyclists to the pub for drinks, lunches etc
• The Annual Ley Hill Music and Beer festival held over 3 days during August Bank Holiday is
organised by the Swan in conjunction with the neighbouring Crown public house. This is a
nationally acclaimed festival and attracts thousands of visitors and thousands of pounds to
both businesses.
• In the past both pubs, the Swan and the Crown have worked very well together as they do
presently in local villages such as Chenies and Little Missenden.
• The community’s negative response to the previous change of use into a nursery was
overwhelming. The comments posted for this new application reiterate this strength of
feeling and a commitment to support The Swan in the future under new management.
• Over the last two years the Parish Council has become very active in the village organising
social groups for locals such as Coffee and Chat mornings. Such meetings could be held in
the Swan as well as some of our informal meetings.
• Over the years the Swan has employed many local teenagers, giving them a local start on
the employment ladder. o The Parish Council has recently secured Large Project Funding

Page 120

from Chiltern District Council to add seating to the area around the Beacon, very close to
the Swan and to install an Activity Trail in the wooded area along the golf fairway very close
to The Swan. These additions to the village will attract walkers, families, visitors to the pub
as they will seek out food and drink.
• The Parish Council would question whether the present landlord is maximising the
potential of the pub. He seems to be making little effort to make the pub viable.
In Conclusion, the Parish Council object to these two planning applications and feel that our
concerns demonstrate that planning permission must be refused.’
And
‘Latimer & Ley Hill Parish Council wishes to strongly object to the above two planning
applications on the following grounds: o Contrary to Development Plan o Detriment to
Listed Building o Other Loss of Amenities o Other non-planning reasons o Poor Design o
Traffic / Parking Structural Details
 The plans show reasonable areas for living and dining spaces, but the bedrooms are well
below current standards for single and double bedrooms.
2  The levels of natural daylight within the lounges of both houses will not meet current
standards as the windows are small.
 The access stair to the first floor from the lounge of House 2 does not comply with Building
Regulations of Disability Standards.
 Bedroom 4 in House 2 has very poor outlook and aspect with poor natural light.
 The car parking area at the front of the property will spoil the appearance and character of
this beautiful building.
Loss of a community asset Core Strategy Policy CS29 states The Council will ‘only permit the
loss of community facilities in exceptional circumstances’. However, no rationale has been
put forward to demonstrate the exceptional circumstances of this case. The previous
application avoided this Policy as it was considered the Nursery also fell under the bracket
of a ‘community facility’ however this is not the case this time round. Local Plan Policy GB11
states The Council will only consider the change of use of a nonresidential, listed building to
residential as not ‘inappropriate development in the Green Belt’ where the conversion
would not cause harm to its special interest. This Policy does not require demonstration of
‘significant’ or ‘more than substantial’ harm. It just refers to the word ‘harm’. The
Applicant’s Heritage Assessment confirms this will be the case in Paragraph 4.2 ‘The loss of
its current use would mean that the communal and social connection The Swan has with the
Ley Hill area would be lost and so would result in less than substantial harm’. Local Plan
Policy GB24 states ‘In the Green Belt the Council will not allow the redevelopment or
change of use of a building or land which is in use, or was last used for, local community
purposes as defined in Policy GB23, unless: a replacement building or land can be provided
in an equally convenient location that complies with Policy GB23; or it can be demonstrated
to the Council that the facility is no longer required for any other community use in the
village and adjoining area where the facility is located.’ Notwithstanding the marketing and
viability evidence submitted and given the strong local opposition to the application we feel
that they have not demonstrated the facility is ‘no longer required’ for community use in
the village.

Page 121

The new Local Plan 2036 (expected to be adopted as soon as April 2020) includes two
relevant Policies:
 Policy DP2 highlights the importance of the social and cultural benefits of Designated
Heritage Assets and
 Policy EP10 states permission will be granted for Change of Use from a public house
providing:
- all reasonable efforts have been made to market the premises for its existing use in
accordance with Appendix EP1 and no other potential occupier can be found.
- all reasonable efforts have been made to improve the operation and management of
the business or facility.
- evidence of non-viability is submitted.
- it is demonstrated that, in the case of the loss of a public house, suitable alternative
public houses exist to meet the needs of the local community.
- Lastly, National Planning Policy requires any harm to Listed Buildings to be clearly
and convincingly justified:
- National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) – Paragraph 194 requires any harm to a
designated heritage asset to be clearly and convincingly justified.
3 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) – Paragraph 196 requires any less than
substantial harm to a designated heritage asset to be weighed against the public benefits of
the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. In Paragraph
4.2 of The Heritage Assessment it is suggested that the harm caused by the loss of the social
and communal connection to Ley Hill ‘will be outweighed by the benefit of converting the
building back to its original use as cottages.’ The Parish Council strongly disagrees with this
reasoning and apparent justification:
- The Swan has been a pub for the entirety of the villages current living memory (i.e.
well over 140+ years at least) therefore the supposed ‘beneficiaries’ of this change of
use have never known it as cottages and there is no demand or appetite for it, in fact
quite the opposite.
- The building was in use as a pub when it was Listed as a Designated Heritage Asset
(in 1984) and the function ‘Public House’ is included in the text of the Listing.
- The pub (including the function not the just the building fabric) has been approved
as an Asset of Community Value (ACV).
- Building uses change over time and the Heritage Value of a building must take this
into account. The social and cultural value of The Swan is heavily embedded in the
function of the pub. No-one would argue the Tate Modern would ‘benefit’ by being
converted back into an oil-fired Power Station or that the O2 would ‘benefit’ from
returning to a single large exhibition hall just because they were originally built as
such. The original use of The Swan as ‘cottages’ is convenient to this application but
is not a show-stopper in terms of heritage value assessment.
- As made clear by the strong local opposition and the different uses proposed (first a
day nursery and now residential) this and the previous application have clearly been
driven by commercial motives, not by a commitment to public benefits or
recognising the value of the socio-cultural importance of the building to the village.
Our previous objection to loss of a community asset
- The Swan. A Grade II listed building, has been an ale house since the 16th century
and a pub since the mid -1800s when pubs were first designated

Page 122

-

-

-

It has been very much the community hub of the village over the years and
extremely popular with residents, village clubs e.g. Cricket and Rotary Clubs and
parents and staff from local schools
The Swan has had a Darts, Quiz, Cribbage and Domino teams in the past attracting
both locals and visitors to the pub and offering a valuable social service to people
The location of the pub attracts walkers and cyclists to the pub for drinks, lunches
etc
The Annual Ley Hill Music and Beer festival held over 3 days during August Bank
Holiday is organised by the Swan in conjunction with the neighbouring Crown public
house. This is a nationally acclaimed festival and attracts thousands of visitors and
thousands of pounds to both businesses.
In the past both pubs, the Swan and the Crown have worked very well together as
they do presently in local villages such as Chenies and Little Missenden.
The community’s negative response to the previous change of use into a nursery was
overwhelming. The comments posted so far for this new application reiterate this
strength of feeling and a commitment to support The Swan in the future under new
management.

4 Over the last two years the Parish Council has become very active in the village organising
social groups for locals such as Coffee and Chat mornings. Such meetings could be held in
the Swan as well as some of our informal meetings.
- Over the years the Swan has employed many local teenagers, giving them a local
start on the employment ladder.
- The Parish Council has recently secured Large Project Funding from Chiltern District
Council to add seating to the area around the Beacon, very close to the Swan and to
install an Activity Trail in the wooded area along the golf fairway very close to The
Swan. These additions to the village will attract walkers, families, visitors to the pub
as they will seek out food and drink.
- The Parish Council would question whether the present landlord is maximising the
potential of the pub. He seems to be making little effort to make the pub viable.
In Conclusion, the Parish Council object to these two planning applications and feel that our
concerns demonstrate that planning permission must be refused.’
Conservation and Design Officer: Objection
The heritage assessment is the impact on the significance the special historic and
architectural interest of the listed building.
Significance
The Swan PH dates from the 16th century. The northern two timber framed bays were
constructed in 1520, with the southern brick wing added in 1680. Part of the building was
used as a PH from at least 1843, and by 1881, the entire building was used as a pub. The
building sits on the edge of the common; an area of public open space on the edge of the
village, and views across the green to the building and its open rural setting are part of its
significance.

Page 123

This attractive composition of historic buildings is prominently located facing onto the
common. The earlier timber framed building has a timber fronted gable to the right with a
thin brick 17th century stack behind, with the main entrance in the central bay. To the left/
south is the later brick wing, the gable end of which faces the road. Although the building
has been altered over the years, the building retains many original features including the
exposed timber frame, a narrow winding staircase, original plan form and many old doors
etc.
The building has also been designated as ‘an asset of community value.’
Description of proposed works
This building has been in use a public house since at least 1843, but following the refusal of
the application last year for the change of use to a children’s nursery, it is now proposed to
divide the property in half to provide two semi-detached houses.
The application as originally submitted also included the addition of five allocated parking
spaces in the front garden, and a single story extension, including a conservatory at the rear
of the northern cottage, a new rooflight on the modern front extension on the front/south
side, and the rear garden of the public house had been subdivided to leave a plot at the rear
and then further subdivided to provide small rear gardens for the two cottages.
Amended plans submitted on 22nd May proposed the relocation of the parking for the
northern cottage to the rear and also proposed a substantial two storey extension to the
northern cottage to be located at the rear, but there are still three parking spaces located
within the front garden.
Assessment
Following the refusal of the applications to use the building as a nursery, it is now proposed
to convert the existing public house to two semi-detached houses. There are three
staircases in the building at present; one is an ancient narrow winding stair alongside the
main stack a second in the northern part of the building is an external fire escape. The third
is in the southern side of the building and its position appears to fit in with the original plan
form from evidence of surviving doors etc. To facilitate the new use a replacement staircase
is proposed in the rear of the brick southern wing for the use of the southern cottage, but it
was designed for the previously proposed nursery use and appears to be out of scale with
the cottage. Consideration should be given to retaning all or part of the existing southern
staircase and first floor original plan form. It was originally proposed that the northern
cottage would use the ancient, narrow winder stair the fire escape on the north elevation
would be retained, with just a conservatory extension at the west end of the rear wing of
the northern cottage. However, the amended plans submitted in May proposed the removal
of this unsightly structure and proposed a new internal staircase, in the existing two story
rear wing of the northern cottage, however, one again too large for the scale of the cottage.
The amended plans however, also include a substantial two storey extension beyond the
relocated staircase, to provide an additional bedroom and family bathroom at first floor
level, rather than the subdivision of the older front part of the building into small rooms and
corridors. The rear wing of the proposed southern cottage finishes at the west end with a
single storey lean-to, however, it is proposed to extend the rear wing of the proposed
northern cottage with a two storey extension around 3.5 metres longer than the adjoining
two storey rear wing; the resulting very long extension would be out of scale with the

Page 124

original building. The eaves height of the proposed northern rear wing is also significantly
higher than the southern wing, giving an awkward juxtaposition and an awkward valley
gutter junction. The design of the proposed two storey extension is considered bulky and
incongruous, not helped by the lower ground levels towards the rear of the property. The
eaves are higher than all the adjoining roofs (except the wing it is attached to), and the
normal convention of subservience for extensions to listed buildings has been disregarded.
A jettied? brick gable has been added in at first floor on the north elevation, presumably to
break up the long expanse of the rear wing, but again this is an incongruous feature which
would detract from the significance of the historic building. The proposed new windows are
considered too large and not in character with the historic building. This extension would be
viewed with the main listed building and would be particularly prominent in the gap
between this and the adjoining public house and the new building would block views of the
countryside beyond.
It is proposed to add a new lantern light on top of the concealed flat roof of the existing
toilet block. However, no existing sections have been provided and it is unclear if the lantern
will be visible. This would not be considered acceptable as it would draw attention to the
flat roof.
The subdivision/ reduction in the rear garden of the property is also a concern.
No application has been made for the proposed fencing to subdivide the property and a
separate new property on the rear plot may cause harm to the setting of the listed building.
There is also a concern that not sufficient space has been retained for two properties to
function properly. Three new car parking spaces are proposed in the currently landscaped
side/ front garden; these will be intrusive and cause harm to the open countryside setting of
the listed building and the enjoyment of the common. All the allocated parking should be
located at the rear. It is understood that three parking spaces will be required for both
properties. Any other new structures, eg bin stores and cycle sheds should all be located in
the rear garden and will require planning permission.
It is understood that the conversion of this building from a public house to two residential
properties would be considered by Building Regulations to be a ‘change of use’ requiring the
building to be upgrade for means of escape and for noise and thermal upgrading. No
evidence has been provided by the applicants that this will not be the case, and upgrading
the building eg to comply with modern thermal efficiency targets or to provide fire and
sound insulation between the properties could cause harm to the significance of the listed
building.
Even if the conversion of this public house and ‘asset of community value’ to one or two
residential units could be undertaken without physical harm to the significance of the
designated heritage asset, the sub-division and change of use of this historic public house to
a non-public use is a concern as this social and community link with the area is an important
part of the significance of the building the loss of which would cause ‘less than substantial
harm’ to the significance of the designated heritage asset.
It is considered that the scale and design of the proposed extension, the alterations, loss of
historic fabric, loss of the original plan form, loss of the social and community significance

Page 125

and the harm to the setting due to the proposed allocated parking and fencing etc, would
cause ‘less than substantial harm’ to the significance of the designated heritage asset.
Paragraph 196 therefore applies; in applying this policy/ guidance it is considered that no
public benefits outweigh that harm. Paragraphs 184/189/192/193 have all also been
considered in this advice.
Heritage Policy Assessment
The Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
The proposals would not preserve the architectural and historic interest of the listed
building and therefore does not comply with sections 16/66 of the Act.
NPPF
The proposal would cause harm to the significance of the designated heritage asset. (listed
building)
Local Plan
The proposals do not comply with the Chiltern District Council adopted local plan
(consolidated Nov 2011) LB 1, LB 2
Historic England Guidance
Managing Significance in Decision-Taking in the Historic Environment- 2015, and Making
Changes to Heritage Assets- 2016
Conclusion
For the reasons given above it is felt that in heritage terms:
That the application does not comply with the relevant heritage policy and therefore it
should be refused for this reason.
Highways:
informatives.

No objection in principle subject to the imposition of 1 condition and 2

Refuse and Recycling:

No objections.

Access for the Disabled: No objections.
Letters of objections have been received from 52 addresses and the Campaign for Rear Ale
(CAMRA) and the Chiltern Society Heritage Group on the following grounds:






Principle of loss of Public House;
Contrary to development plan policies including policy EP10 of the emerging
Draft Local Plan and adopted Local Plan GB11;
Loss of public access to this historic building;
The Ley Hill Community Pub Ltd have advanced and credible plans for bidding
for the pub and running it;
The existing owners have refused to engage positively with members of the
community to enable its continued use as a Public House;

Page 126




















The pub garden has not been used to its potential, restricted opening hours,
precluded dog walkers and hikers;
The pub has been allowed to run down;
The asking price for the Pub was too high;
The marketing was deficient;
Reference to cricket club licensed sales is erroneous because it is only open
when matches are played;
The Council’s Surveyors did not undertake a site visit;
The application was submitted before Covid 19 and this pub has the advantage
of a large rear garden, a front garden and is opposite a common;
The Council’s Surveyors did not appreciate the fact that the Pub did not fit
their 3 models because it is frequented by visitors to the countryside and is a
community pub;
There is no substance to claims that The Bellcote/The Lazy Pig has caused
business to fall and that is a chain and has had to be rebranded;
This Public House has been deliberately allowed to decline;
The Crown and The Swan complemented each other and worked together;
The owners did not allow a cash buyer to further their interest in purchasing
the Pub;
Loss of employment opportunity for local young people;
Loss of access by the public to this historic building;
Loss of a community facility;
Detrimental to the listed building and Conservation Area;
Loss of residential amenity to adjoining properties including 65 Blackwell Hall
Lane, Crown Cottages.

Page 127

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan - PL/20/0335/FA

Do not scale – this map is indicative only
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 128

Agenda Item 9

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/20/1166/FA

Proposal:

Erection of a detached dwelling with the formation of new
vehicle access and associated works, following demolition of
existing building

Site Location:

Fir Tree Cottage, Monument Lane, Chalfont St Peter,
Buckinghamshire, SL9 0HY

Applicant:

Mr Lawrence Fenwick

Case Officer:

Lucy Wenzel

Ward affected:

Chalfont St Peter

Parish Council:

Chalfont St Peter

Valid date:

7 April 2020

Determination date:

26 June 2020

Extension of Time:

28 August 2020

Recommendation:

Conditional Permission

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1 Permission is sought for the erection of a replacement dwelling.
1.2 The application is before Committee as the Local Member Councillor Rush has
indicated concerns with the proposal. These concerns are that the proposal does
not respect the character and integrate with the surrounding area by virtue of its
scale and does not respond appropriately to existing adjacent buildings.
1.3 The recommendation for the proposal is conditional permission.

2.0

Description of Proposed Development
2.1 Permission is sought for the erection of a replacement dwelling. The site is
located to the northern side of Monument Lane which is a residential road

Page 129

2.2

2.3

situated to the north west of Chalfont St Peter. A dwelling currently exists on
site but is of a derelict nature and has not been inhabited for a number of years.
The replacement dwelling measures approximately 17.7 metres in maximum
depth with a maximum width of 9.5 metres. The dwelling is a chalet bungalow in
form with a front former window, front hip projection with a dormer on the rear
elevation with a gabled projection. The main ridge height measures 5.8 metres.
The application is accompanied by:
a) Design and Access Statement
b) Preliminary Bat Roost Assessment
c) Waste and Recycling Strategy
d) Flood map

3.0

Relevant Planning History
3.1 No planning history found on our records. Representations from neighbouring
dwellings mention a covenant over the land; however no record can be found of
this.

4.0

Policy Considerations and Evaluation
•
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.
•
National Design Guidance, October 2019
•
Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:
•
Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.
•
Draft Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan 2036.
•
Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) - Adopted 21
February 2012
•
Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule
Principle and Location of Development
Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy),
CS2 (Amount and distribution of residential development 2006-2026),
Local Plan Saved Policies:
H3 (Provision of new dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt
(other than in accordance with Policies H2, H4 & H7)),
4.1

The site is located in the built up area of Chalfont St Peter where, in accordance
with Development Plan Policy H3, proposals for replacement dwellings are
acceptable in principle, provided the proposed development is compatible with
the character of the area by respecting the general density, scale, siting, height
and character of buildings in the locality and the presence of trees, shrubs, lawns

Page 130

4.2

4.3

and verges and the size, design and external appearance of the dwelling should
be compatible with existing dwellings.
In addition, Core Strategy Policy CS20 also states that the Council will require
that new development within the District is of a high standard of design which
reflects and respects the character of the surrounding area and those features
which contribute to local distinctiveness. All other relevant Development Plan
Policies should be complied with.
Given the derelict nature of the site as it currently stands, the existing built form
on site would need to be demolished

Raising the quality of place making and design
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
H11 (Distance between flank elevation(s) of a proposed multi-storey dwelling and
boundary of dwelling's curtilage throughout the district)
4.4

The proposal seeks permission for the erection of a replacement dwelling. The
site lies off of Monument Lane which is characterised by a wide variety of
dwelling form and appearance with no overriding design character but currently
has no direct access onto the highway network. Currently the dwelling that
resides on site is in a dilapidated and derelict form and as such is not considered
to be habitable. However, built form remains to be located on site which shows
that a bungalow was located on site. The proposed replacement dwelling will be
erected partially on the existing footprint and will therefore have a similar
position within the plot. Due to the narrow form of the plot, the replacement
dwelling will occupy close to the full width; with a one metre spacing retained to
the north eastern boundary. To ensure that the dwelling is viewed cohesively
with the street scene and isn’t dominant in its visual appearance, a chalet
bungalow is proposed with projecting gable elements and dormer windows to
facilitate the use of the roof space. To further incorporate the dwelling into the
street scene, a low ridge height is proposed to ensure the dwelling is viewed
subserviently to adjacent dwellings. In terms of the materiality of the dwelling,
the elevations are proposed to be constructed from a mixture of render and
brick with a plain tile roof. In contrast to the original dwelling on site, this is
constructed from red brick but given the variation in materiality along
Monument Lane it is considered that these chosen materials are acceptable.

Page 131

4.5

In relation to the surrounding residential dwellings; the proposed replacement
dwelling is not considered to negatively impact upon the character and
appearance of the area given the small scaled nature of the dwelling proposed
which sensitively and cohesively blends into the street scene. As
aforementioned, the dwelling will not be visually dominant in its appearance.

Amenity of existing and future residents
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
H14 (Safeguarding the amenities of neighbours)
H12 (Private residential garden areas throughout the district)
4.6

4.7

4.8

In terms of the siting of the dwelling; it has an unusual layout with neighbouring
dwellings such that it neighbours No. 27, sits to the rear of No. 39 and with the
rear amenity space extending to No. 33. The proposed replacement dwelling
would be sited predominately on the exiting footprint of the original dwelling
but would extend greater to the western boundary. The increase in width is
considered to be marginal and would not negatively impact upon the western
neighbour. In comparison to the depth of the original dwelling; the replacement
dwelling would not project as far to the rear northern boundary. Limited flank
elevation windows are proposed on the dwelling; although it is stated that the
first floor south western window will be obscurely glazed this will be conditioned
to remove any potential for overlooking and to ensure that it is built to this
specification. Whilst the scale of the dwelling will be larger than existing, it
remains sensitive in scale to neighbouring dwellings and would not appear as
obtrusive or dominant. Given the above assessment, the proposed replacement
dwelling isn’t considered to cause detrimental impacts that would result in a
severe loss of amenity levels for existing and future occupiers of neighbouring
dwellings and therefore the proposal complies with Policies GC3 and H14.
In line with this, the general standard depth expected is 15 metres. Where
average garden depths in the vicinity of the development are significantly more
or less than 15 metres then the proposed garden depth should reflect this. From
viewing the site and adjacent dwelling plots, there is high level of variation in
garden depths and as such there is no uniformity amongst the dwellings located
along Monument Lane. In comparison to the dwelling scale, the garden is
narrow and rectangular in form but provides an area of private residential space
appropriate to the scale of the accommodation and commensurate to
surrounding gardens. Therefore, the proposal is compliant with Policy.
A private bin storage area is proposed to be sited along the north eastern
boundary edge which can accommodate the required number of bins for this
scale of dwelling.

Page 132

Transport matters and parking
Local Plan Saved Policies:
TR2 (Highway aspects of planning applications throughout the district)
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the district)
TR12 (Relaxation of parking standards throughout the district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
4.9

In order to serve the replacement dwelling, a new access point is proposed
which will feed onto Monument Lane and therefore an assessment is required to
ensure that the adjacent highway can safely accommodate associated vehicular
movements. The Highways Authority have stated that in line with the Manual
for Streets Guidance, visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m would be required;
however, these can be achieved at the right hand exist but not along the left.
Whilst this is noted, a visibility splay of 34m can be accommodated. Although
this is a noted shortfall, this is not a substantive reason for a refusal that could
be sustained and upheld at appeal. Therefore, subject to conditions ensuring the
creation of these visibility splays no concerns are raised.
4.10 In relation to the level of parking on site, the denoted spaces have been
confirmed by the Highways Authority to be of appropriate dimension and have
been laid out to ensure sufficient manoeuvrability on site.
Ecology
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
CS24 (Biodiversity)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
NC1 (Safeguarding of nature conservation interests throughout the district)
4.11 In relation to protected species on site, an ecology survey was undertaken by GS
Ecology (April 2020). It is considered that due regard has been given to
protected species on site and subject to conditions relating to ecological
enhancements the proposal is deemed acceptable.
5.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
5.1 This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order
to weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a
conclusion on the application.
5.2 In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in

Page 133

5.3
5.4

6.0

accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. In addition, Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the
Town and Country Planning Act relating to the determination of planning
applications and states that in dealing with planning applications, the authority
shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations
As set out above it is considered that, the proposed development would accord
with the development plan policies.
Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must
have due regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which
may result from socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not
considered that this proposal would disadvantage any sector of society to a
harmful extent.

Working with the applicant / agent
6.1 In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach
decision-taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments.
6.2 The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner
by offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating
applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their
application.
6.3 In this instance, the Officers consider the application to be acceptable as
submitted and no assistance was required.

Recommendation: Conditional Permission
Subject to the following conditions:1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to
enable the Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the
light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

Page 134

2.

Before any construction work commences above ground level, named types, or
samples of the facing materials and roofing materials to be used for the external
construction of the development hereby permitted shall be made available to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the development is not
detrimental to the character of the locality.

3.

Prior to the commencement of any works on site, detailed plans, including cross
section as appropriate, showing the existing ground levels and the proposed slab and
finished floor levels of the dwelling hereby permitted shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be shown in
relation to a fixed datum point normally located outside the application site.
Thereafter the development shall not be constructed other than as approved in
relation to the fixed datum point.
Reason: To protect, as far as is possible, the character of the locality and the amenities
of neighbouring properties.

4.

Prior to the construction of development above ground level a scheme of ecological
enhancements shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in order to ensure
an overall net gain in biodiversity will be achieved.
Reason: In the interests of improving biodiversity in accordance with NPPF and Core
Strategy Policy 24: Biodiversity of the Chiltern District Core Strategy and to ensure the
survival of protected and notable species protected by legislation that may otherwise
be affected by the development.

5.

The first floor window located on the south western elevation shall only be glazed
with obscured glass and shall be non opening up to a height of 1.7 metres above the
floor of the room in which the windows are installed. No alterations to the size or
glazing of these windows shall take place unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining property.

6.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order,
with or without modification), no additional windows shall be inserted or constructed
at any time at first floor level or above in either of the flank elevations of the dwelling.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining properties.

7.

Prior to the occupation of the development the new access to Monument Lane shall
be laid out in accordance with the approved plans.

Page 135

Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the
highway and of the development.
8.

Prior to occupation of the development space shall be laid out within the site for
parking for cars, loading and manoeuvring, in accordance with the approved plans.
This area shall be permanently maintained for this purpose.
Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise
danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway.

9.

Prior to occupation of the development minimum vehicular visibility splays of 43m
from 2.4m back from the edge of the carriageway from the right side of the new
access and 35m from the left side of the new access onto Monument Lane shall be
provided in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. The visibility splays shall be kept clear from any obstruction
between 0.6m and 2.0m above ground level.
Reason: To provide adequate visibility between the access and the existing public
highway for the safety and convenience of users of the highway and of the access.

10.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans:
Received
Plan Reference
7 Apr 2020
2062-202 PROPOSED PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
7 Apr 2020
2062-101 EXISTING SITE LAYOUT PLAN
7 Apr 2020
2062-200 PROPOSED
7 Apr 2020
2062-100 & BLOCK PLAN
28 Apr 2020
2062-201A PROPOSED

INFORMATIVE(S)
1.

All wild birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by
law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Consequently you should take adequate
precautions to ensure that any tree work does not cause any disturbance to birds and
their nests particularly during the normal nesting season of March to August. Similarly
all bats and their roosting sites are protected by the same legislation so precautions
should also be taken to avoid carrying out activities which might harm or disturb bats
or their roosts.

2.

The applicant is advised that the access should be constructed in accordance with the
Council’s Guidance note, "Private Vehicular Access within Highway Limits" 2013. In
addition, a licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are

Page 136

carried out on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the
highway. A period of 28 days must be allowed for the issuing of the licence, please
contact the Area Manager at the following address for information or apply online via
Buckinghamshire Council's website.
Transport for Buckinghamshire (Streetworks)
10th Floor, New County Offices
Walton Street, Aylesbury,
Buckinghamshire
HP20 1UY
01296 382416
3.

It is an offence under S151 of the Highways Act 1980 for vehicles leaving the
development site to carry mud onto the public highway. Facilities should therefore be
provided and used on the development site for cleaning the wheels of vehicles before
they leave the site.

4.

No vehicles associated with the building operations on the development site shall be
parked on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction. Any such wilful
obstruction is an offence under S137 of the Highways Act 1980.

5.

The Council is the Charging Authority for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL
is a charge on development; it is tariff-based and enables local authorities to raise
funds to pay for infrastructure.
If you have received a CIL Liability Notice, this Notice will set out the further
requirements that need to be complied with.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice, the development may still be liable for
CIL. Before development is commenced, for further information please refer to the
following website https://www.chiltern.gov.uk/CIL-implementation or contact 01494
732792 for more information.

Page 137

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Councillor Comments
Councillor Rush has called the application forward to Planning Committee should the
Officers recommendation be for conditional permission. The stated concerns are that the
proposal does not respect the character and integrate with the surrounding area by virtue of its
scale and does not respond appropriately to existing adjacent buildings.
Parish Council Comments
“Over development of a small plot, property on a bend and busy road. Design statement
gives ground Floor Area as 136m2. Policy No TR16 and emerging Policy CP3 apply and three
car parking spaces are required Plans show 4 bedrooms therefore three parking spaces
should be mandatory as there is little on street parking. NP-Policy 7.”
Consultation Responses
Highways:
“Monument Lane is an unclassified road which is subject to a 30mph speed limit. This
application seeks permission for the demolition of the existing building and the erection of a
dwelling with a new vehicular access.
In terms of trip generation, I would expect a dwelling in this location to generate
approximately 4-6 daily vehicular movements, two-way, which I am satisfied can be safely
accommodated onto the local highway network.
As a new access is proposed from the local highway, it is imperative that this is assessed to
ensure it can safely accommodate the associated vehicular movements. In line with current
guidance contained within Manual for Streets, visibility splays of 2.4m x 43m are required,
commensurate with a 30mph speed limit. Having assessed the submitted plans, I am
satisfied that full visibility splays can be achieved to the right upon exit and approximately
35m can be achieved to the left upon exit. Whilst this is not ideal, due to the nature of
Monument Lane, I do not believe I would be able to substantiate this as a reason for refusal
should the application go to appeal. However, in order to create and maintain the visibility
splays, a large amount of hedgerow will need to be cut down to a maximum of 0.6m or
removed entirely which I trust will be considered within the planning balance. I will secure
the creation and maintenance of the visibility splays by way of condition below.
Whilst I trust the Local Planning Authority will consider the level of parking proposed, I am
satisfied that the spaces are of sufficient dimensions and would allow vehicles to park,
manoeuvre and egress in a forward gear.
Mindful of the above, the Highway Authority has no objection to the proposed
development, subject to conditions being included on any planning permission you may
grant.”
Representations
Four letters of objection have been received which have been summarised below:

Page 138

Character and Appearance
- The dwelling appears too tight for the plot.
- The dwelling is overbearing.
Residential amenity
- Might block out sun for neighbouring dwellings.
Highways
- There is low visibility along Monument Lane.
- Concerns with the level of parking as there is space to accommodate spaces along
the highway.

Page 139

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 140

Agenda Item 10

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/20/1214/VRC

Proposal:

Variation of conditions 6 and 12 of planning permission
PL/18/3887/FA (Erection of two detached dwellings and a five
bay car port.) to allow for an alteration to the car port and the
relocation of the parking spaces.

Site Location:

75 Lye Green Road, Chesham, Buckinghamshire, HP5 3NB

Applicant:

VISAO Ltd

Case Officer:

Lucy Wenzel

Ward affected:

Chesham

Town Council:

Chesham

Valid date:

9 April 2020

Determination date:

4 June 2020

Extension of time:

28 August 2020

Recommendation:

Conditional Permission

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1 Permission is sought for the variation of conditions 6 and 12 of planning
permission PL/18/3887/FA (Erection of two detached dwellings and a five bay
car port.) to allow for an alteration to the car port and the relocation of the
parking spaces.
1.2 The application is before Committee as the Local Member Councillor
Culverhouse has indicated that he would like the application heard before
Committee should the Officers recommendation be for approval.
1.3 The recommendation for the proposal is conditional permission.

2.0

Description of Proposed Development

Page 141

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

Permission is sought for the variation of PL/18/3887/FA to allow for the
relocation of the car port and parking spaces and the reduction in scale of the
car port. The original description was to remove the proposed car port but this
now set to be retained.
The car port is proposed to be relocated from the south western end of the site
to the north western end but will remain to be positioned along the north
western boundary of the plot. The car parking spaces will likewise be
repositioned from the south western end but to both the north western and
eastern end of the plot. The car port measures approximately 7.4 metres in
width with a depth of 5 metres.
The application is accompanied by
a) Design and Access Statement
b) Parking Survey
c) Environmental Report

Relevant Planning History
PL/18/3887/FA – Erection of two detached dwellings and a five bay car port.
Conditional permission.
The below applications relate to the wider site boundary:
CH/2018/0366/FA - Redevelopment of site, erection of three detached houses and
one four bay car port with associated parking, amenity space and landscaping
(amendment to planning permission CH/2016/2230/FA). Conditional permission.
CH/2016/2230/FA - Redevelopment of site, erection of three detached houses and
one four bay car port with associated parking, amenity space and landscaping.
Conditional permission.

4.0

Summary of Representations
4.1 The Town Council raises its concern over the possible intensification of the site,
having noted the car ports are currently there to stop development. [Officer
Note: this is not the purpose of the car ports and each application has to be
considered on its own merits].
4.2

5.0

In addition, 12 letters of objection have been received, largely commenting on
the scheme already approved.

Policy Considerations and Evaluation

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.

National Design Guidance, October 2019

Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:

Page 142






Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations
adopted 29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.
Draft Chiltern and South Bucks Local Plan 2036.
Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) - Adopted 21
February 2012
Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule

Principle and Location of Development
Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy),
CS2 (Amount and distribution of residential development 2006-2026),
Local Plan Saved Policies:
H3 (Provision of new dwellings in the built-up areas excluded from the Green Belt
(other than in accordance with Policies H2, H4 & H7))
5.1

5.2

The site is located in the built up area of Chesham where, in accordance with
Development Plan Policy H3, proposals for replacement dwellings are acceptable
in principle, provided the proposed development is compatible with the
character of the area by respecting the general density, scale, siting, height and
character of buildings in the locality and the presence of trees, shrubs, lawns and
verges and the size, design and external appearance of the dwelling should be
compatible with existing dwellings.
In addition, Core Strategy Policy CS20 also states that the Council will require
that new development within the District is of a high standard of design which
reflects and respects the character of the surrounding area and those features
which contribute to local distinctiveness. All other relevant Development Plan
Policies should be complied with.

Raising the quality of place making and design
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
H11 (Distance between flank elevation(s) of a proposed multi-storey dwelling and
boundary of dwelling's curtilage throughout the district)
5.3

The proposed variation seeks to relocate both the proposed car port and parking
spaces set to serve the proposed two dwellings on site. Currently the car port is
sited along the north western boundary edge of the plot towards the south

Page 143

western end close to the access point leading into the site. The relocation of the
car port will see it remaining positioned along the north western boundary but
will be relocated to be positioned closer to the two proposed dwellings.
Additionally, the car port will reduce in scale from a five bay to a three bay
which reduces its visual presence within the site and its overall proportions. In
terms of the character and appearance of the site; this presents a visual
improvement as it keeps the spread of built form positioned to the north of the
site and is therefore viewed more cohesively and as a collective area of built
form. Likewise, to the relocation of the car port; the parking spaces serving the
two dwellings are to be relocated closer to the proposed dwellings.
5.4

The original proposed landscaping which was to be sited to the front of the two
dwellings will be lost as a result of the relocation of the parking but this will be
repositioned to border the north west boundary providing an area for public
enjoyment. This also separates the original 2015 permission to the 2018
permission by landscaping and increases the visual amenity of the whole site.
Given the above assessment, the proposed variation is not considered to have a
detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of the sit and does not
adversely affect the original permission on site. Therefore, the works are
deemed to be acceptable. In relation to the proposed dwellings these are not
altering from the original proposed scheme of works and therefore there are no
comments to make in this regard.

Amenity of existing and future residents
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
H14 (Safeguarding the amenities of neighbours)
H12 (Private residential garden areas throughout the district)
5.5

In terms of residential amenity, the relocation of both the car port and car
parking spaces will have a positive impact upon those dwellings approved under
the 2015 application. The former permission sited the parking serving the
additional two dwellings in close proximity to these original dwellings. As such,
the relocation further to the north of the site improves amenity levels for these
dwellings, reducing noise and pollution. As aforementioned, the movement of
the landscaped area will be repositioned such that it is readily accessible for the
whole site and this therefore likewise increases. In relation to the proposed
dwellings; these are not altering from the original permission and as such the
impacts upon neighbouring dwellings are not considered to be detrimental. As
such, having consideration for the above against the original scheme and

Page 144

5.6

potential impacts upon amenity levels, the variation is not considered to conflict
with Policies GC3 and H14.
With regards to the proposed amenity space associated with the new dwellings,
the proposed garden depths provided will not altered from the previous
permission and therefore the level of amenity space provided remains
acceptable to the scale of dwellings proposed and they comply with the
requirements of Policy TR12.

Transport matters and parking
Local Plan Saved Policies:
TR2 (Highway aspects of planning applications throughout the district)
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the district)
TR12 (Relaxation of parking standards throughout the district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
5.7

5.8

The variations sought under this scheme predominately relate to parking. The
proposed variations relate to the relocation of the car port and parking spaces.
The access leading off of Lye Green Road remains unaltered including the main
access drive into the site; therefore, there are no concerns raised in relation to
this and the previous Highways comments remain applicable of no objections.
As aforementioned, the proposed car port and parking spaces associated with
the two dwellings are set to be relocated from the south west of the site to the
north east of the site such that they reside to the front of the dwellings in which
they provide the spaces for. The number of parking space is retained at six which
meets the provisions of Policy TR16; with three within the car port and three
outside spaces. A designated turning bay is located opposite the car port to
enable vehicles to manoeuvre with ease within the constraints of the plot.

Trees
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
CS24 (Biodiversity)
5.9

A number of amended plans were received which altered the repositioning of
the car port and turning bay to reduce potential impacts those existing trees
which border the site. A specific Tree Protection Plan (TPP) has also been
submitted alongside an Arboricultural report which lay out the protection
measure for these existing trees. Whilst development is located in close
proximity to existing trees and hedging on site, the Tree Officer has raised no
objections to the development subject to a condition relating to the

Page 145

development being construction in accordance with the measures set out in the
Arboricultural report and TPP.
6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1 This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order
to weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a
conclusion on the application.
6.2 In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. In addition, Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the
Town and Country Planning Act relating to the determination of planning
applications and states that in dealing with planning applications, the authority
shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations
6.3 As set out above it is considered that, the proposed development would accord
with the development plan policies.
6.4 Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must
have due regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which
may result from socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not
considered that this proposal would disadvantage any sector of society to a
harmful extent.
6.5 The proposed variations are considered to be minor when considered against
the original planning scheme granted permission and will not adversely affect
the character or appearance of the area, the amenities of neighbouring
properties, or have parking/highway implications. As such, the proposal is
considered to be acceptable.
6.6 If approved, this planning permission will in effect grant a new planning
permission. Therefore, it is necessary to impost the same conditions which were
imposed on the previous permission, albeit with reference to the new plans
submitted.

7.0

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1 In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach
decision-taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to
development proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments.

Page 146

7.2

7.3

The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner
by offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating
applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their
application.
In this instance, Officers requested additional information and this was
submitted along with amended plans.

Recommendation: Conditional Permission
Subject to the following conditions:1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the
expiration of the 28th March 2022.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to
enable the Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the
light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

2.

The development shall only be carried out in the approved materials agreed under
application PL/20/1315/CONDA.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the development is not
detrimental to the character of the surrounding area and for all potential users of the
site, in accordance with Policies GC1 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September
2007 and November 2011, and Policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District
(Adopted November 2011).

3.

No tree or hedge shown to be retained on the Tree Protection Plan Rev D shall be
removed, uprooted, destroyed or pruned for a period of five years from the date of
implementation of the development hereby approved without the prior approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree or hedge is removed,
uprooted or destroyed, or dies during that period, another tree shall be planted of
such size and species as shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Furthermore, the existing soil levels within the root protection areas of the retained
trees and hedges shall not be altered.
Reason: To ensure the retention of the existing established trees and hedgerows
within the site that are in sound condition and of good amenity and wildlife value, in
accordance with Policy GC4 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September
1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and
November 2011.

Page 147

4.

Prior to the occupation of the development the modified access to Lye Green Road
shall be designed in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the
highway and of the development.

5.

No other part of the development shall begin until visibility splays have been provided
on both sides of the access between a point 2.4 metres along the centre line of the
access measured from the edge of the carriageway and a point 43 metres along the
edge of the carriageway measured from the intersection of the centre line of the
access. The area contained within the splays shall be kept free of any obstruction
exceeding 0.6 metres in height above the nearside channel level of the carriageway.
Reason: To provide adequate intervisibility between the access and the existing public
highway for the safety and convenience of users of the highway and of the access.

6.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, with or
without modification), no windows other than those expressly authorised by this
permission, shall be inserted or constructed at any time at first floor level or above in
the flank elevations of the dwellings hereby approved.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining properties and approved
dwellings.

7.

The proposed roof lights in the roof slopes of the proposed dwellings shall be a
minimum of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which they are installed. The
windows shall be permanently retained in that condition thereafter.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining properties, in
accordance with Policy GC3 of The Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September
1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and
November 2011.

8.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3(1) of the Town & Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or reenacting that Order) no development falling within Classes A - E; of Part 1; of Schedule
2 to the said Order shall be erected, constructed, or placed within the application site
unless planning permission is first granted by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: In
order to protect the amenities of adjoining properties and to ensure adequate
amenity space is retained for future occupiers of the dwellings, in accordance with
Policies GC3 and H12 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997
(including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and
November 2011.

Page 148

9.

The bin storage area shall only be carried out in line with the approved details under
application PL/20/1315/CONDA.
Reason: To ensure that adequate provision for the storage of waste is made for future
occupiers of the development and to ensure that the bin storage area does not appear
out of keeping with the development scheme in accordance with

10.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans:
Received
9 Apr 2020
14 Apr 2020
26 Jun 2020
26 Jun 2020
26 Jun 2020
26 Jun 2020
22 Jun 2020
17 Oct 2018
17 Oct 2018
23 Apr 2020
23 Apr 2020

Plan Reference
918.1119.PL103 1ST FL WEST
918.1119.PL101 GF WEST
AMENDED - 918.1119.PL102 GF EAST - REV B
AMENDED - 918.1119.PL104 1ST FL EAST REV B
AMENDED - 918.1119.PL100 SITE LAYOUT REV B
AMENDED - 918.1119.PL106 CONTEXT - REV B
TPP REV D
918:1119/PL105
LOCATION PLAN
918_PL-120_P1
2085 01 A

INFORMATIVE(S)
1.

The applicant is advised that a licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority
before any works are carried out on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land
forming part of the highway. A period of 28 days must be allowed for the issuing of
the licence, please contact the Area Manager at the following address for information.
Transportation for Buckinghamshire
London Road East
Little Chalfont
Amersham
Buckinghamshire
HP7 7DT

2.

It is contrary to section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private
development to drain onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage
system. The development shall therefore be so designed and constructed that surface
water from the development shall not be permitted to drain onto the highway or into
the highway drainage system.

Page 149

3.

The applicant is advised that if it is intended to use soakaways as the method of
dealing with the disposal of surface water then the permission of the appropriate
Water Authority may be necessary.

4.

It is an offence under S151 of the Highways Act 1980 for vehicles leaving the
development site to carry mud onto the public highway. Facilities should therefore be
provided and used on the development site for cleaning the wheels of vehicles before
they leave the site.

5.

No vehicles associated with the building operations on the development site shall be
parked on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction. Any such wilful
obstruction is an offence under S137 of the Highways Act 1980.

6.

The Council is the Charging Authority for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL
is a charge on development; it is tariff-based and enables local authorities to raise
funds to pay for infrastructure.
If you have received a CIL Liability Notice, this Notice will set out the further
requirements that need to be complied with.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice, the development may still be liable for
CIL. Before development is commenced, for further information please refer to the
following website https://www.chiltern.gov.uk/CIL-implementation or contact 01494
732792 for more information.

Page 150

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Councillor Comments
Councillor Culverhouse has called the application forward to Planning Committee should the
Officers recommendation be for conditional permission.
Town Council Comments
Received on the 10th June 2020
The Committee raises its concern over the possible intensification of the site, having noted
the car ports are currently there to stop development.
Consultation Responses
Tree Officer:
Received on the 11th June 2020
“The application proposes “to remove the car port from the application and relocate the car
parking closer to the houses”. This proposal would create an additional “amenity” area on
the north-western side of the access drive, which is nearly the same size as the plot for the
approved house on the south-eastern side of the access drive. The drive is shown narrowed
to a single track immediately adjacent to the approved house.
This proposed drive and parking area would be within the tree protection areas of, and very
close to, some retained trees both within and adjacent to the site. The submitted proposals
give no information about any tree protection measures in connection with this application.
PL/18/3887/FA required the submission and approval of a Tree Protection Plan under
Condition 3 and this has not yet been agreed. I note that PL/20/1315/CONDA has now been
submitted for the approval of details reserved by conditions 2, 3, and 11 on planning
permission PL/18/3887/FA. However, the submitted plan is the same as that approved
under PL/18/3054/CONDA for CH/2018/0336/FA, and it does not even show the
development approved under PL/18/3887/FA. If fencing was erected in the positions shown
on this plan, it would not be possible to construct the houses approved by PL/18/3887/FA.
I am concerned about the potential effects of the suggested changes on the trees around
the proposed parking spaces, which would be considerably greater effects than caused by
the current approved layout. However, it may be possible to mitigate these effects through
an appropriate Tree Protection Plan including the use of no-dig construction.”
{Further to these comments, a Tree Protection Plan was submitted and the Tree Officer was
reconsulted. Subsequently, further comments were received.}
Received on the 11th June 2020
“Under my earlier comments I had stated: I am concerned about the potential effects of the
suggested changes on the trees around the proposed parking spaces, which would be
considerably greater effects than caused by the current approved layout. However, it may
be possible to mitigate these effects through an appropriate Tree Protection Plan including
the use of no-dig construction.”

Page 151

A Tree Protection Plan has now been submitted for the application. This shows tree
protection fencing but no specific measures to reduce any potential damage to tree roots
within the additional hardstanding areas nor any no-dig construction of the hard surfaces.
However, one thing it does show is that the proposal would require the loss of T20 Apple
and T21 Flowering cherry. These appeared to be shown retained on the earlier application
plans with some trees being marked “extg trees retained” but it appears that these were
wrongly positioned and that it would not be possible to retain any existing trees in front of
the proposed two houses.
As it stands, the proposal is likely to cause root damage to T17 and T18, two lime trees
protected by Tree Preservation Order No 8 of 2003 within the rear garden of 79 Lye Green
Road, as well as T19 a Lawson cypress within the same garden. It would also cause damage
to G1, a cypress hedge on the boundary with 11a Codmore Crescent just within the rear
garden of the property.
Consequently, the Tree Protection Plan is not considered to be adequate and in these
circumstances I would object to the application because of its effect on the trees in and
around the site, particularly the limes protected by the Tree Preservation Order.”
{\i Further to the above comments there was correspondence between the Tree Officer and
Agent and a revised Arboricultural Survey and Tree Protection Plan were subsequently
submitted. As a result, further amended comments were received from the Tree Officer.}
“A revised Arboricultural Survey Rev B dated 22/06/20 along with a revised Tree Protection
Plan Rev D dated June 2020 have now been submitted.
These also show some changes to the previous development proposals. An area that
appears to have been a turning head beside the lime T18 and to the south-west of the three
parking spaces in front of Plot 4 has now been removed and replaced by a fourth parking
space. In addition, the plan now shows a triple car port over the three parking spaces
furthest from the house on Plot 4.
The tree report states:
5.6 The proposals have also made provision for car parking spaces at the front of plot 4. As
these overlap the root protection area of the lime (T18) and the Lawson cypress (T19) it is
proposed to install a no dig section of driveway here as well. The method for constructing
the no dig driveway is described in the method statement (appendix 4).
5.7 The car parking spaces also include the provision of a car port. This will be a lightweight
structure constructed on four main corner posts with an intermediate support post mid-way
along each of the three sides. The posts require a small localised excavation in order to be
installed.
There have been some concerns about work to the cypress hedges along the south-eastern
boundary: with Codmore Crescent just outside the red edge of the application site, which
are important in separating the site from the neighbouring properties. The tree report
comments:

Page 152

5.10 The cypress trees along the boundaries are to be pruned back to face them up. This will
help to thicken the hedges and prolong their useful life.
5.11 The houses at Plots A and B both encroach onto the root protection area of these trees,
but in my opinion this will be acceptable. The rpa’s of trees assumes a full crown, whereas
the hedges here have been kept pruned down and have a smaller volume of foliage to
sustain. Thus, some encroachment into the rpa of the hedges should not affect the hedges
unduly.
5.12 In my experience, cypress hedging that is kept pruned as this has been will have a
relatively small rooting area and given the available open ground on the neighbouring side,
this will ensure that enough roots are retained to sustain the hedging.
In theory the precautions mentioned in the revised tree report should avoid further
significant damage to the trees and hedges in and around the site if they are properly
implemented. However, I note that several neighbours have expressed concerns about the
measures implemented to date.
In these circumstances, although I have concerns about the site, I would not object to the
application provided the tree and hedge protection measures in the revised Arboricultural
Survey Rev B dated 22/06/20 and the revised Tree Protection Plan Rev D dated June 2020
are properly implemented.”
Highways Officer:
Received on the 6th August 2020
“Condition 6 relates to space within the site for the parking of cars and Condition 12 relates
to drawing numbers. The variation of conditions proposed do not materially alter the
proposals from a highways perspective and as such I have no objection to the proposals in
this instance.
Mindful of the above, I have no objection to the variation of conditions.”
Representations
12 letters of objection have been received throughout the process of the planning
application which have been summarised below. Throughout the consultation period the
description was amended to retain the car port and therefore the comments received relate
to before and after these amended plans.
Character and Appearance
- The car port is a fundamental part of the planning application.
- The original conditions on the application formed part of the reason why it was
approved and therefore they shouldn’t be varied or removed.
- The Tree Officer has not confirmed his agreement to the scheme.
- The creation of amenity space could provide an area for the developer to develop in
the future.
- There is a dense overdevelopment of the site.
- The trees on site should be retained and the condition retained on the permission to
ensure their protection.

Page 153

-

The movement of the car port and parking spaces could result in impacts to existing
trees on site proposed to be retained.
The development is not of a high standard and does not respect the character and
appearance of the area.
The houses of the development are not user friendly.

(OFFICER NOTE: Whilst the comments regarding the dwellings and the character and
appearance of the site and surrounding locality; this is not something that can be considered
under this application. This application relates to a variation of condition application with
the scheme as a whole already being granted conditional permission under application
PL/18/3887/FA.
Residential amenity
- The noise of development is disrupting local neighbouring residents.
- There would be a blocking of sunlight to neighbouring dwellings by the erection of
these dwellings.

Page 154

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 155

This page is intentionally left blank

